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Natural Grocers is a rapidly expanding specialty retailer

of natural and organic groceries and dietary supplements.

We focus on providing high-quality products at affordable prices, exceptional
customer service, nutrition education, and community outreach. We strive to
generate long-term relationships with our customers based on transparency and trust.
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Natural Grocers. Your Real Natural Food Store.
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Dear Fellow Stakeholders:

We delivered strong financial results this fiscal year. Our five founding principles continue to
drive our robust sales and we remain focused on our disciplined approach to cost controls. We
added 13 new stores to our chain and executed at a high level across all areas. Highlights of
fiscal year 2013 include:

. Net sales increased 28% to $430.7 million;

o Strong net income and EBITDA growth;

o 11.1% daily average comparable store sales growth; and
o 22% unit growth.

We are proud to continue to support the needs of the core health food and dietary supplement
consumers whose foremost concern is to provide improved nutrition for themselves and their
families. We believe our ongoing commitment to providing a broad selection of healthy,
natural, and minimally processed foods and dietary supplements is in line with growing
consumer preference for clean and safe ingredients and full transparency in the ingredient
supply chain.

As part of our commitment to helping people learn about good nutrition, all of our stores

h*™ position. The role of the Nutritional Health Coach

support a full-time Nutritional Health Coac
is to train, educate and support our employees, customers, and communities on health and
nutrition issues using science-based learning resources. To further strengthen our 55-year
commitment to nutrition education and community outreach, we continue to build full demo

kitchens and community rooms in many of our new and remodeled stores.

One question we hear often is whether we intend to uphold the standards, principles and
practices on which our success has been built. The answer, of course, is yes. We remain
focused on our five founding principles, which are to provide nutrition education, high quality
standards, Everyday Affordable Prices >V, support for our communities and great jobs for our
associates.

We believe we are well positioned to fund our accelerated growth and support it with rigorous
execution, capital discipline, and a robust operational infrastructure.

We remain confident in our strategy and our ability to grow our store base as we carry forward
the positive momentum we have generated in fiscal year 2013.
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Financial Highlights Fiscal 2009 - Fiscal 2013

Net sales (in thousands) Daily average comparable store sales growth
11.3% 9
$430,655 ° 11.1%
$336,385
$264,544
$206,080 $226,910
J I FY 2009 FY 2010 FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013
FY 2009 FY 2010 FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013 H Comp [ Mature comp
EBITDA (in thousands) and EBITDA margin Operating income (in thousands) and Operating
$33,082 margin

$23,341 © $19,088

$14,540 $15,137 $11,994

$12,442

FY 2009 FY 2010 FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2009 FY 2010 FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013

Diluted earnings per share (pro forma) Operating cash flow and Capital expenditures (in
millions) <347

$0.48 @
$25.2 $24.7 $25.7
50.36 2 $20.4
$16.7
$0.23 $11.4
$0.20 $0.19 $8.9 $7.6

J I I FY 2009 FY 2010 FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013

FY 2009 FY 2010 FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013 M Operating cash flow Capital expenditures (3)

(1) Adjusted EBITDA excludes $0.5 million and $1.4 million for fiscal year 2013 and 2012, respectively, of share-based and IPO incentive
compensation expenses.
Additionally, the stores with leases that are classified as capital and financing lease obligations, rather than being reflected as
operating leases, increased EBITDA as a percentage of sales by approximately 60 basis points for fiscal year 2013.
See reconciliation table in Item 7, page 42 of Form 10-K.

(2) Adjusted pro forma EPS illustrates net income as if we owned 100% of BVC for all periods illustrated, and further excludes $0.3 million and
$0.9 million for fiscal year 2013 and 2012, respectively, of tax effected share-based and IPO incentive compensation expenses.

See reconciliation table in Item 7, page 41 of Form 10-K.

(3) Capital expenditures are net of proceeds from sale of property and equipment.
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Except where the context otherwise requires or elogherwise indicated, all references herein toe|W*us,” “our,”
“Natural Grocers,” and “the Company” refer caodictively to Natural Grocers by Vitamin Cottage,.land its consolidated
subsidiaries.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report on Form 10-K includes forward-lookirigtements within the meaning of the Private Seiegrititigation
Reform Act of 1995 in addition to historical infoation. These forward-looking statements are inaduthieoughout this report on
Form 10-K, including in the sections entitled “Busss,” “Risk Factors,” and “Management’s Discussiad Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations.” All statetsethat are not statements of historical factudtig those that relate to matters
such as our industry, business strategy, goalegpelctations concerning our market position, fuaperations, margins,
profitability, capital expenditures, liquidity amépital resources and other financial and operatifaggmation are forward looking
statements. We have used the words “anticipatssume,” “believe,” “continue,” “could,” “estimate;&xpect,” “intend,” “may,”
“plan,” “potential,” “predict,” “project,” “future”and similar terms and phrases to identify forwlaaking statements in this report
on Form 10-K.

" ow ” ow " ou ” o

The forward-looking statements contained in thipreon Form 10-K are based on management’s cuesgrectations and
are subject to uncertainty and changes in circumst We cannot assure you that future developraffetsing us will be those that
we have anticipated. Actual results may differ matly from these expectations due to changesabajl, regional or local political,
economic, business, competitive, market, regulaaoid/ other factors, many of which are beyond outrob We believe that these
factors include those described in “Risk Factoghbuld one or more of these risks or uncertaimtiaterialize, or should any of our
assumptions prove incorrect, our actual results vaay in material respects from those projecteth@se forward-looking
statements.

Any forward-looking statement made by us in thisomt on Form 10-K speaks only as of the date af thport. Factors or
events that could cause our actual results tordifiiey emerge from time to time, and it is not plolesfor us to predict all of them.
We undertake no obligation to publicly update amyvard-looking statement, whether as a result @f idormation, future
developments or otherwise, except as may be retbireiny applicable securities laws. You are atljisiowever, to consult any
further disclosures we may make in our future reptar the Securities and Exchange Commission, onvebsite or otherwise.

PART I
Iltem 1. Business.

General

Natural Grocers is an expanding specialty retaferatural and organic groceries and dietary supptgs. We focus on
providing high-quality products at affordable pscexceptional customer service, nutrition educagind community outreach. We
strive to generate long-term relationships with customers based on transparency and trust by:

« selling only natural and organic groceries andagliesupplements that meet our strict quality gunds—we do not
approve for sale grocery products that are knoweotdain artificial colors, flavors, preservativesjeeteners, or partially
hydrogenated or hydrogenated oils;

« utilizing an efficient and flexible small-store foat to offer affordable prices and a shopper-friigmnetail environment;
and

 enhancing our customers’ shopping experience byigirg free science-based nutrition education tp loeir customers
make well-informed health and nutrition choices.

Our History and Founding Principles

Our founders, Margaret and Philip Isely, were eprlyponents of the connection between health andigk of natural and
organic products and dietary supplements. In theX850'’s, Margaret transformed her health and dath of her family by
applying concepts and principles she learned frookb on nutrition. This inspired the Iselys to pdevthe same type of nutrition
education to their community. The Iselys initiadigrted by lending books on nutrition and providsagnples of whole grain bread
door-to-door in Golden, Colorado and ultimately doded they could develop a viable business thafldvalso improve their
customers’ well-being. Over time, they fostere@tiehships through nutrition education and beg&imgporders for dietary
supplements, whole grain bread and unprocessed.féattheir customers gained more knowledge abaiition, they were
empowered to make changes to their diets in ordsupport their health.
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Using this model as the foundation for their bass) the Iselys opened their first store in 19%8¢ckvthey later moved to a
modest cottage.

We are committed to maintaining the following foumglprinciples, which have helped foster our grawth

* Nutrition Education.We provide nutrition education in the communities serve. Empowering our customers and our
associates to take charge of their lives and tiestth is the foundation upon which our businegsiift.

 Quality. Every product on our shelves must go through aroig® screening and approval process. Providingpititeest
quality groceries and supplements, Natural Grobearded products and only United States Departofefgriculture
(USDA), certified organic, fresh produce at thetlggces in the industry is part of our mission.

» Every Day Affordable PriceWe work hard to secure the best possible priceslaf our customers’ favorite natural and
organic foods and supplements. We believe everghoald be able to afford to take care of their theahd buy quality
natural and organic products.

» Community.From free nutrition education lectures, to bag-tkeckouts, to sourcing local products, to our ¢iona
program, we work hard to serve the communities e shape our world.

» Associates.Our associates make our company great. We worktbagdsure that our associates are able to livealHy,
balanced lifestyle. We support them with free tigni education programs, good pay and excellen¢fitsn

In 1998, the second generation of the family, idolg Kemper Isely, Zephyr Isely, Heather Isely &tidabeth Isely
purchased our predecessor andthamin Cottag€ trademark and assumed control of the businesse $iren, we have grown our
store count from 11 stores in Colorado to 72 stordS states as of September 30, 2013. We hawdémafdemented numerous
organizational and operational improvements thaelenhanced our ability to scale our operations béleve that by staying true to
our founding principles, we have been able to comito attract new customers, extend our geographith and further solidify our
competitive position.

Our Markets

We operate within the natural products retail indysvhich is a subset of the large and stable gr&cery industry. This
industry includes conventional, natural, gourmet apecialty food markets, mass and discount resailearehouse clubs,
independent health food stores, dietary supplemgaiiers, drug stores, farmers markets, mail oather online retailers and multi-
level marketers. The Nutrition Business Journal IN&stimates the 2012 to 2020 compound annual braatg of dietary supplement
category sales at 6.5%, natural and organic fotas$ sd 9.5% and natural personal care sales at. 7®%rall, NBJ anticipates the
compound annual growth rate of the nutrition indust 7.5% from 2012 to 2020.

We believe the growth in sales of natural and diggfoods and dietary supplements continues to benlby numerous
factors, including an increase in:

consumer focus on high-quality nutritional products

» awareness of the importance of good nutrition t@term wellness;

an aging U.S. population seeking to support heatiigg;

» consumer concerns over the purity and safety af fioa result of the presence of pesticide residuesith hormones,
artificial ingredients and genetically engineenegredients in foods;

« consumer concerns over the use of harmful cheradditives in body care and household cleaning $segpl

well-established natural and organic brands, wherate additional industry awareness and crégliliith consumers;
and

« consumers with unique dietary requirements.



Our Competitive Strengths

We believe we are well-positioned to capitalizefavorable natural and organic grocery and dietappement industry
dynamics as a result of the following competititresgths:

Strict focus on high-quality natural and organimgery products and dietary supplemenige offer high-quality products
and brands, including an extensive selection otlyidecognized natural and organic food, dietappsements, body care products,
pet care products and books. We offer our custoares/erage of approximately 20,000 SKUs of natamal organic products per
store, including an average of approximately 6,38Ws of dietary supplements. We believe this prodéfering enables our
customers to utilize our stores for all of theiogcgry and dietary supplement purchases. In ourgyatepartments, we only sell
USDA certified organic produce and do not apprawesile products that are known to contain aréficolors, flavors, preservatives,
sweeteners, or partially hydrogenated or hydrogehails. Consistent with this strategy, our merctisé selection does not include
conventional products or merchandise that doesneet our strict quality guidelines. Our store maragnhance our robust product
offering by customizing their stores’ selectionsatiress the preferences of local customers. Atywts undergo a stringent review
process to ensure the products we sell meet aat gtrality guidelines, which helps us generategiterm relationships with our
customers based on transparency and trust.

Engaging customer service experience based on &doand empowermeniVe strive to consistently offer exceptional
customer service in a shopper-friendly environmetich we believe creates a differentiated shoppixgerience and generates
repeat visits from our loyal customer base. Outarasr service model is focused on providing fregition education to our
customers. This focus provides an engaging rexaidgence while also empowering our customers tkeniiaformed decisions about
their health. We offer our science-based nutrigddocation through our trained associakésalth Hotliné newsletter and sales flyer,
one-on-one nutrition health coaching and nutrittasses. Our commitment to nutrition education @mstomer empowerment is
emphasized throughout our entire organization, fesscutive management to store associates. Evangy also maintains a
Nutritional Health Coach position. The Nutritiortd¢alth Coach is responsible for training our sessociates and educating our
customers in accordance with applicable localesaatd federal regulations. Each Nutritional He@lttach must have earned a degree
or certificate in nutrition, human sciences or latedl field from an accredited school, completetioming education in nutrition, and
be thoroughly committed to fulfilling our missioBubstantially all of our Nutritional Health Coaclae full-time employees. We
believe our Nutritional Health Coach position gextlgris unique within our industry and representeg element of our customer
service model.

Scalable operations and replicable, cost-effecsivee model.We believe our scalable operating structureaetitre new
store model, flexible real estate strategy andiglised approach to new store development allowousaximize store performance
and continue to grow our store base. Our store hisdeiccessful in highly competitive markets aiad Bupported significant growth
outside of our original Colorado geography. Wedadiour supply chain and infrastructure are scalabtl will accommodate
significant growth based on the ability of our paim distribution relationships to effectively sewiour planned store locations. Our
investments in overhead and information technolafastructure, including purchasing, receivingséntory, point of sale,
warehousing, distribution, accounting, reporting &éinancial systems support this growth. To furtbepport the scalability of our
operations, we intend to invest in a human resaurdermation and learning management system, dSHiRfiscal year 2014. In
addition, we have established effective site selrgjuidelines, as well as scalable procedureshaible us to open a new store within
approximately nine months from the time of siteesgbn. Our limited offering of prepared foods afeduces real estate costs, labor
costs and perishable inventory shrink and allow®wugiickly leverage our new store opening costs.

Experienced and committed team with proven tracknge Our executive management team has an averageywass of
experience in the natural grocery industry, while entire management team has an average of owsaé28 of relevant experience.
Since the second generation of the Isely familyaesl control of the business in 1998, we have growrstore count from 11 to
72 stores as of September 30, 2013 while remanhéaticated to our founding principles. Over theimuiee, members of our executive
management team have been instrumental in estalgiatsuccessful, scalable operating model, gangrabnsistently strong
financial results and developing an effective sé&ection and store opening process. The depthrahanagement experience
extends beyond our home office. As of Septembe303, 43% of our store managers at comparabless{etores open for 13
months or longer) have tenures of over four yeatis us, and our store and department managergse $tores have average tenures
of over three years with us. In addition, we haweek record of promoting store management perdnom within. We believe our
management’s experience at all levels will allowaisontinue to grow our store base while improvipgrations and driving
efficiencies.

Our Growth Strategies

We are pursuing several strategies to continugomfitable growth, including:



Expand our store baséie intend to continue expanding our store basmitth new store openings in existing markets, as
well as penetrating new markets, by leveragingcowe competencies of site selection and efficimresopenings. Based upon our
operating experience and research conducted foy aastomer analytics firm The Buxton Company, wbdve the entire U.S.
market can support at least 1,100 Natural Groderses including approximately 200 additional Natugrocers stores in the 14
states in which we currently operate or have sideases. In the fiscal years 2013 and 2012, weexp#8 and ten new stores,
respectively, and we plan to open 15 new stordiséal year 2014, three of which we have openeéhduhe first quarter of fiscal
year 2014 prior to filing this report on Form 10¥e intend to target new store openings at or alboveurrent levels over the near
term.

Current store locations and signed leases.

*Includes signed leases for stores to be openéiddal year 2014: three leases in Oregon, onelga€olorado, one lease
in Idaho, one lease in Kansas, one lease in Newddgegne lease in Utah and one lease in Washington.

Increase sales from existing customevge have achieved positive comparable store gatasth for over 45 consecutive
quarters. In order to increase our average tickétthe number of customer transactions, we platbinue offering an engaging
customer experience through science-based nutgtloication and a differentiated merchandisingesgsabf delivering affordable,
high-quality natural and organic grocery productd dietary supplements. We also plan to continugitize targeted marketing
efforts for our existing customers, which we amtate will drive customer transactions and convediteonal occasional, single-
category customers into core, multi-category custsm

Grow our customer basé/Ne plan to continue building our brand awarenessch we anticipate will grow our customer
base. We believe offering nutrition education hiatohically been one of our most effective markegtgiforts to reach new customers
and increase the demand for natural and organaeges and dietary supplements in our markets.inémd to enhance potential
customers’ nutrition knowledge through targetedkmting efforts, including the distribution of odiealth Hotlinenewsletter and
sales flyer, the internet and social media, as asln expansion of our educational outreach efforschools, businesses and
communities, offering lectures, classes, printedi @mine educational resources and publicatiorsitihdairs and community
wellness events. In addition to offering nutritetucation, we intend to attract new customers withevery day affordable prices
and to build community awareness through our supgfdocal vendors and charities.

Improve operating marginsWe expect to continue to improve our operatinggims as we benefit from investments we
have made or are making in fixed overhead and imédion technology, including the implementatioroaf enterprise resource
planning (ERP) system in fiscal year 2010 and pdanmplementation of the HRIS in fiscal year 20@ anticipate these
investments will support our long-term growth st with only a modest amount of additional capléé expect to achieve greater
economies of scale through sourcing and distrinui® we add more stores, and we intend to optipgz®rmance, maintain
appropriate store labor levels and effectively ngenaroduct selection and pricing to achieve additionargin expansion.

Our Stores

Our stores offer a comprehensive selection of ahaurd organic groceries and dietary supplemerassimall-store format
that aims to provide a convenient, easily shoppebralaxed environment for our customers. Our siiessgn emphasizes a clutter-
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free, organized feel, a quiet ambience accentedwadtrm lighting and the absence of aromas from medtseafood counters present
in many of our competitors’ stores. We believe oarre customers consider us a destination stohér matural and organic products
and that we are their primary choice for natural arganic groceries and dietary supplements.

Our Store Format.Our stores range from 5,000 to 16,000 sellingaegeet, and average approximately 10,000 selling
square feet. In fiscal year 2013, our 13 new stavesaged approximately 11,500 selling square fggtroximately one quarter of
our stores’ selling square footage is dedicatetiétary supplements. Some of our stores also irctudedicated community room
available for public gathering, demonstration kéntor cooking education and lecture space. Ourpeoable stores sell an average
of approximately 20,000 SKUs of natural and orgamimducts per store, including an average of apprately 6,750 SKUs of
dietary supplements. We begin to include storemimcomparable store base on the first day ofhilieeenth full month following the
store’s opening.

The following diagram depicts a typical new stagadut:
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Site SelectionOur real estate strategy is adaptable to a yasiamarket conditions. When selecting locationsifew stores,
we use analytical models, based on research prbtigdhe Buxton Company and our extensive expegieémdédentify promising
store locations. We typically locate new storeprime locations which offer easy customer accedshégh visibility. Many of our
stores are near other supermarkets or gourmetritaders, and we complement their conventionatipod offerings with high-
quality, affordable natural and organic groceried dietary supplements in an efficient and convarietail setting. Our site
selection model incorporates factors such as talg@iographics, community characteristics, neartajl rectivity and other measures
in determining viable new store locations and iseobon first-hand observation of the community’aralsteristics surrounding each
site. We have a team of associates dedicated turapeew stores efficiently and quickly, typicallgthin nine months from the time
of site selection.
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Store Level EconomicdHistorically our new stores opened since Jantia®005 have required an upfront capital
investment of approximately $2.1 million. We aigate that our fiscal year 2014 new stores willuisgjan upfront capital
investment of approximately $2.5 million consistiofgcapital expenditures of approximately $1.9 imil| net of tenant allowances,
initial inventory of approximately $0.3 million, hef payables, and pre-opening expenses of less#ha million. We project that
these stores will have higher first year salesamedargeting approximately four years to recoupimitial net cash investments and
approximately 35% cash-on-cash returns by the éthiedifth year following the opening.

Individual new store investment levels and the grenince of new store locations may differ widelynfroriginally targeted
levels and from store-to-store due to a varietiaofors, and these differences may be materigdatticular, investments in individual
stores, store-level sales, profit margins, paylmeriods and cash-on-cash return levels are impdwstedrange of risks and
uncertainties beyond our control, including thossalibed under the caption “Risk Factors.”

Our Focus on Nutrition Education

Nutrition education is one of our founding prin@gland is a primary focus for all associates. Wiesmour emphasis on
science-based nutrition education differentiatebarm our competitors and creates a unique shopgxpgrience for our customers.
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Our Nutritional Health Coaches are a core eleméatipnutrition education program. Most of our s®are staffed with a
full-time Nutritional Health Coach to educate cum#gs and train associates on nutrition. Nutritidiehlth Coaches must have
earned a degree or certificate in nutrition, huseiances or a related field from an accredited @i¢cltomplete continuing education
in nutrition, and be thoroughly committed to fulfilg our mission. Our Nutritional Health Coachesyde free one-on-one nutrition
health coaching to educate and empower customenske informed nutrition choices. Each Nutritiorigalth Coach is also
responsible for various educational outreach g@&wisuch as nutrition classes, lectures, semihagdth fairs and store tours. Our
training and education programs are supplementazlitsjde experts, online materials and printed batel For our associates, our
Nutritional Health Coaches are an onsite resowrcadtrition training and education. Each Nutritdhlealth Coach trains our
associates on using a compliant educational apprimacustomer service without attempting to diagnostreat.

Additionally, we use ouHealth Hotlineto educate our customers. THealth Hotlineis a newsletter and sales flyer which is
published eight times per year and includes infuepticles on health and nutrition, along with kesgon of sale items.

Our Products
Product Selection GuidelinedVe have a set of strict quality guidelines cavgfall products we sell. For example:

» we do not approve for sale food known to contatificial colors, flavors, preservatives, sweetenerspartially
hydrogenated or hydrogenated oils, regardlesseoptbportion of its natural or organic ingredients;

» we only sell USDA certified organic produce;

» we only sell meats naturally raised without antiic& hormone treatments and that were not fed aryrproducts; and

» we do not sell wine, beer, liquor or tobacco.

Our product review team analyzes all new produstsapproves them for sale based on ingredients pnd uniqueness
within the current product set. We actively resharew products in the marketplace via our prodeciders, private label
manufacturers, scientific findings, customer retgiasd general trends in popular media. Our stmeable to fully merchandise all
departments by providing an extensive assortmenatifral and organic products. We do not needlt@éseventional products to fill

our selection, increase our margins or draw in ncoKgOMers.

What We SellWe operate both a full-service natural and orggnbcery store and a dietary supplement storemétsingle
retail location. The following is a breakdown ofr@ales mix for the year ended September 30, 2013:

The products in our stores include:

» Grocery. We offer a broad selection of natural and organizery products with an emphasis on minimally psseel and
single ingredient products that are not known totaim artificial colors, flavors, preservatives,eateners, partially



hydrogenated oils or hydrogenated oils. Additionalle carry a wide variety of products associaté&tl pecial diets such
as gluten free, vegetarian and non-dairy. Our gyopeoducts include:

» Produce. We sell only USDA certified organic produce andrseurom local, organic producers whenever
possible. Our selection varies based on seasoadahiity, and we offer a variety of organic pramuofferings
that are not typically found at conventional foetkilers.

 Bulk Food and Private Label ProductgVe sell a wide selection of private label produitsluding nuts, water,
pasta, dried fruits, grains, granolas, honey, ag@etar, herbs, spices and teas. We also sell paadwalmond
butters ground in-store under the Natural Groceagadh

* Dry, Frozen and Canned Grocerie®/e offer a wide variety of natural and organic drgzen and canned
groceries, including cereals, soups, baby foodzein entrees and snack items. We offer a broadtieief
natural chocolate bars, and energy, protein and faos.

» Meats and SeafoodiVe only offer naturally-raised or organic meat proid. The meat products we offer are not
treated with antibiotics, hormones or fed animajpbgducts. Additionally, we only buy from companigs
believe employ humane animal-raising practices. $2afood items are generally frozen at the timgroeéessing
and sold from our freezer section, thereby ensurighness and reducing food spoilage and safetyess

« Dairy Products and Dairy Substitute®Ve offer a broad selection of natural and orgaaicydproducts, such as
milk, eggs, cheeses, yogurts and beverages assvebn-dairy substitutes made from almonds, cospnige and
soy.

 Prepared FoodsOur stores have a convenient selection of refrigerprepared food items, including salads,
sandwiches, fresh salsa, fresh humus and wrapssiZéef this offering varies by location.

» Bread and Baked Good#Ve receive regular deliveries of a wide selectibhakery products for our fresh bakery
section, which includes an extensive selectionuteg-free items.

» BeveragesWe offer a wide variety of beverages containinguradtand organic ingredients. We also offer low-
cost, self-serve filtered drinking water that ispglnsed into one-gallon or larger containers pexvigy our
customers.

* Dietary SupplementOur dietary supplement department primarily sedlsa-brand supplements, as well as an extensive
line of private label dietary supplements. The dapent is carefully organized to help both assesiand customers find
products efficiently. We generally offer severdfelient formulations and potencies for each typprofiuct in order to
meet our customers’ varying needs.

» Other.

» Body Care.We offer a full range of cosmetics, skin care, leaire, fragrance and personal care products
containing natural and organic ingredients. Ounhbeate offerings range from bargain-priced basidsigh-end
formulations.

 Pet Care. We offer a full line of natural pet care and foadgucts which comply with our human food
guidelines.

» Household and General Merchandis@le offer sustainable household products, includiegning supplies,
paper products, dish and laundry soap and othemmmhousehold products, including diapers.

» Books and HandoutsWe stock approximately 400 titles in our book démpant. Titles cover various approaches
to diet, lifestyle and health. Additionally, we effapproximately 300 handouts on various healtfcsopnd
dietary supplements to our customers free of charge

Quality Assurance We endeavor to ensure the quality of the prodwetsell. We work with reputable suppliers we badie
to be in compliance with established regulatory maddistry guidelines. Our purchasing departmentireg a complete supplier and
product profile as part of the approval process. @etary supplement suppliers must follow Food Bindg Administration (FDA)
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good manufacturing practices supported by quatisueance testing for both the base ingredientgranfinished product. We expect
our suppliers to comply with industry best pradifer food safety.

Many of our suppliers are inspected and certifiedar the USDA National Organic Program, voluntagustry
associations, and other third party auditing progravith regard to additional ingredients, manufdnggand handling standards.
Each Natural Grocers store is certified as an degaendler and processor by an accredited USDAfiegrin the calendar year after
it opens. We operate all of our stores in compkawih National Organic Program standards, whicluire segregation of organic
and conventional products, restricted use of aedabstances for cleaning and pest control andaigorecordkeeping, among other
requirements.

Our Pricing Strategy

We have an every day affordable pricing strategh @ahEDAP - Every Day Affordable Pricé” on many products, while
also providing special sale pricing on hundredadifitional items. We believe our every day affotdairicing strategy allows our
customers to shop our stores on a regular basthdargroceries and dietary supplements.

Our pricing strategies include the following:

« every day affordable pricing throughout our stores;

« heavily advertisettealth Hotlinedeals supported by manufacturer participation;

* in-store specials generally lasting for one momtth aot advertised outside the store;

» managers’ specials, such as clearance, overstogk;dated or promotional incentives; and
* specials on seasonally harvested produce.

As we continue to expand our store base, we betlere are opportunities for increased leveradixéu costs, such as
administrative expenses, as well as increased atiesmf scale in sourcing products. We continustfive to keep our product,
operating and general and administrative costsoavder to continue to offer attractive pricing fmur customers.

Our Store Operations

Store Hours.Our stores are open seven days a week, genéaity8:56 a.m. to 8:04 p.m. Monday through Satuydengl
Sunday from 9:56 a.m. to 6:06 p.m.

Store Management and Staffin@ur stores are managed by a manager and assistaager, with department managers in
each of the dietary supplement, grocery, dairyfeowken, produce, body care and receiving departsn&sch store manager is
responsible for managing his or her monthly statdipand loss, including labor, merchandising ameentory costs. We also employ
regional managers to oversee all store operatmm®§ions consisting of approximately 15 stores.

Each store is staffed with several non-managenssuciates. To ensure a high level of service, &sscreceive ongoing
nutrition training. Associates are carefully trairend evaluated based on a requirement that tlesgpt nutrition information in an
appropriate and legally compliant educational cxinteéhile interacting with customers. Additionalltore associates are cross-trained
in various functions, including cashier dutiescktog and receiving product.

All associates are eligible to participate in awdntive compensation plan after 90 days of empérfor management
level associates and after one year of employnmmdn-management level associates. The criteriméentive compensation
include meeting sales projections, sales to labar goals and cost of goods sold metrics, whicp b&yn all store associates with
both corporate and store-level financial goals.Mdee an established set of standard operating guoes, which includes hiring and
human resource policies, training practices andadjal instruction manuals. This allows eachestoroperate with strict
accountability and still maintain independencegspond to its unique circumstances.

Every store also maintains a Nutritional Health €oposition. The Nutritional Health Coach is resgible for training our
store associates and educating our customers andeote with applicable local, state and fedemlilaions. Substantially all of our
Nutritional Health Coaches are full-time employees.

Bulk Food Repackaging Facility and Distribution @Gemn Our 107,000 square foot bulk food repackagingifaand
distribution center is in Golden, Colorado. Theilfgchandles several different operational funaspincluding distribution of a
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limited number of grocery and dietary supplememtdi. The facility also houses our private labeklbobds repackaging lines. The
distribution center maintains a small fleet of coenafal delivery trucks for use within Colorado.

Inventory. We use a robust merchandise management and pairpgetentory system that values goods at movireyaye
cost. We manage shelf stock based on weeks-on+etative to sales, resupply time and minimum ecaoarder quantity.

Sourcing and VendorsWe source from over 900 suppliers, which inclader 2,500 brands. These suppliers range from
small mom-and-pop businesses to multi-national ongrates. As of September 30, 2013, we purch&3$8d of the goods we sell
from our top 20 suppliers.

We contract with third-party manufacturers to proglgroceries and dietary supplements under ouateriabels, which
include the Natural Grocers akitamin Cottagérands. We have longstanding relationships withsogppliers, and we require
disclosure from them regarding quality, freshnes$ency and safety data information. Our bulk fpoigate label products are
packaged by us in pre-packed sealed bags to heleprcontamination while in transit and in ours$o Unlike most of our
competitors, most of our private label nuts, tnaik and flours are refrigerated in our warehousg stores to maintain freshness.

For the year ended September 30, 2013, approxiynéféb of our total purchases were from United Nat&oods Inc., or
UNFI. In addition, approximately 8% of our purchaseere from Albert’'s Organics, a subsidiary of UNif&t distributes fresh
produce and meat. We maintain good relations witl-Land believe we have adequate alternative supplyods, including self-
distribution.

Our Associates

Commitment to our associates is one of our fivenfbng principles. Associates are eligible for Headibng-term disability,
vision and dental insurance coverage, as well asgany paid short-term disability and life insurabemefits, after they meet
eligibility requirements. Additionally, our assotga are offered a 401(k) retirement savings plah wentribution matching
opportunities. We believe we pay above averagel igages, and all associates earn an addition@b§er hour, up to $30 a week,
in “Vitamin Bucks” which can be used to purchasedurcts in our stores. It is important to us thatassociates live a healthy,
balanced lifestyle, and we believe the Vitamin Baugicentive provides an additional resource foramsociates to purchase natural
and organic products. This further offers our asdes the opportunity to become more familiar vaith products, which we believe
improves the customer service our associates éd@provide. We believe these and other factessit in higher retention rates and
encourage our associates to appreciate our cultiieh helps them better promote our brand.

As of September 30, 2013, we employed 1,648 foiketand 355 part-time (less than 30 hours per wasdgciates,
including 170 associates at our home office. Ndmauo associates is subject to a collective baiggiagreement. We believe we
have good relations with our associates.

Our Customers

The growth in the natural and organic grocery aietady supplement industries and growing consumerést in health and
nutrition have led to an increase in our core austobase. We believe the demands for affordabteitious food and dietary
supplements are shared attributes of our core s regardless of their socio-economic statuslitihally, we believe our core
customers prefer a retail store environment thigrsicarefully selected natural and organic proslaad dietary supplements. Our
customers tend to be interested in health andtimutriand expect our store associates to be highdyvledgeable about these topics
and related products.

An analysis of ouHealth Hotlinesubscriber database indicates that our custoroens érom broad geographic segments,
including urban, suburban and rural areas, whiflbats the varied characteristics and portabilftpor store locations.

Our Communities

One of our founding principles is to be an activenmber and steward of the communities we serve. dgranitment to this
principle, we:

« provide extensive free educational services toornsts in the form of lectures, classes, printedugss, online resources,
publications and one-on-one nutrition coaching;

* participate in health fairs, school outreach, comityuwwvellness events and other activities to engaitie and educate the
community;



» disseminate new research on nutrition information;

* participate in the legislative and regulatory psxcat local, state and national levels so thatostomers have access to
quality food and dietary supplements and the edutaltresources to guide their own wellness;

« continually strive to source products and servfoes local producers and vendors;
« carefully collect all of our excess or distressedd and merchandise and donate it to local nontprafanizations;

« provide cash to local food banks, making donatietexninations based on the number of customerssivbp our stores
with their own bags;

do not provide paper or plastic bags at our regisiad encourage use of reusable totes;

« reduce our energy costs and carbon footprint usffigient heating, ventilation and air conditionjdigihting, and
refrigerating systems;

 implement strategies to eliminate excess packagingrgy and transportation costs;

« recycle and reuse paper, plastic, glass and etéctpooducts whenever possible; and

use healthy and environmentally responsible bujjdiraterials and finishes in our new stores and detiso
Marketing and Advertising

A significant portion of our marketing efforts isdused on educating our customers on the benéfitatoral and organic
grocery products and dietary supplements. Our cusst@utreach programs provide practical generaltimrt knowledge to a variety
of groups and individuals, schools, businessesiliEsrand seniors. These educational efforts fudfile of our founding principles
and also offer us the opportunity to build relasbips with our customers.

Health Hotline. At the heart of our marketing efforts is dtealth Hotling a 20-page newsletter and sales flyer which is
published eight times a year and mailed to overBIDsubscribers by U.S. Mail. Additionally, appiroately 80,000 copies of each
release are distributed at the in-store level. @v@million abridged versions of tlitealth Hotlineare inserted into the weekly
newspaper of many of our communities 35 times par,yand an email version is distributed approx@hgaince a week to over
63,000 subscribers. Thtealth Hotlinecontains a mix of in-depth health and nutritioticds, information on our community-based
initiatives and current in-store event listinggra with a selection of popular sale items. Thiegleg are relevant, science-based and
written to reflect the most recent research findingenerally, we negotiate with our suppliers fgn#icantly lower costs oilealth
Hotline sale items, which in turn allows us to offer loalesprices to our customers. Focused staff traiatragl locations precedes the
release of eacHealth Hotlineto ensure that store staff are familiar with cobia each issue. We believe both store visitssaies
increase when thidealth Hotlineis published.

Web Sites and Social Medi&/e maintainvww.naturalgrocers.coras our official company website to host store
information, sales flyers, educational materiatsdpict information, policies and contact forms, @hcy and news items and e-
commerce activities. We believe the continued ghowitsite visitors, page views and other metricewfwebsite activity indicates
that our content is timely and informative to tlmeronunities we serve. Our website is interlinkechwaither online and social media
outlets, including Facebook, Foursquare, Googled3laYELP, Twitter, Pinterest and others.

Television CommercialsWe occasionally run television commercials in markets. The commercials are produced locally
and primarily feature members of the Isely family.

Billboards.Increasingly, we have used billboards in our mankeefforts. These billboards typically are nearpo the same
site as, our stores.

Competition

The food and dietary supplement retail businesslasge, highly-fragmented and competitive indusyr competition
varies by market and includes conventional supetetarsuch as Kroger and Safeway, mass or discetailars such as Walmart and
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Target, natural and gourmet markets such as Wrade$-and The Fresh Market, specialty food retagach as Sprouts and Trader
Joe’s, warehouse clubs such as Sam’s Club and @ astiependent health food stores, dietary suppiénetailers, drug stores,
farmers markets, mail order and online retaileis multi-level marketers. Each of these outlets cetep with us on the basis of
price, selection, quality, customer service, shogg@xperience or any combination of these faciMies believe our commitment to
carrying only carefully vetted, affordably priceddahigh-quality natural and organic products aretaty supplements differentiates
us in the industry.

Seasonality

Our business is active throughout the calendar gedrdoes not experience significant fluctuationsea by seasonal
changes in consumer purchasing.

Insurance and Risk Management

We use a combination of insurance and self-ins@amcover workers’ compensation, general liahilisoduct liability,
director and officers’ liability, employment pragis liability, associate healthcare benefits ahdrotasualty and property risks.
Changes in legal trends and interpretations, viitiaim inflation rates, changes in the nature anethod of claims settlement, benefit
level changes due to changes in applicable laws|vyancy of insurance carriers and changes in diga@tes could all affect
ultimate settlements of claims. We evaluate ounrigisce requirements on an ongoing basis to enseiraaintain adequate levels of
coverage.

Trademarks and Other Intellectual Property

We believe that our intellectual property is impmitto the success of our business. We have rettieeregistration of
trademarks not only fovitamin CottageandHealth Hotlinebut also for our logd\Natural Grocers by Vitamin CottageandVitamin
Cottage Natural Grocefsfor appropriate categories of trade. We do not omficense for use any patents, franchises oressions
on which our business depends. Our trademarksearerglly valid and may be renewed indefinitelyasylas they are in use and
their registrations are property maintained.

Information Technology Systems

We have made significant investments in overheadfiormation technology infrastructure, includipgrchasing,
receiving, inventory, point of sale, warehousinigtribution, accounting, reporting and financiabgms. We use an ERP system
with integrated merchandise management, reportidgaacounting system at all of our stores, as aght our bulk food repackaging
facility and distribution center and for corporédections including accounting, reporting and pasihg. Our ERP system
application support and hardware are outsourceatiwdilows us to focus on our core business. Wenihto implement an
enterprise wide HRIS in fiscal year 2014 which wllbw us to more effectively onboard and train employees at all locations.

Regulatory Compliance

The safety, formulation, manufacturing, processpagkaging, importation, labeling, promotion, adigimg and distribution
of products we sell in our stores, including prévitbel products, are subject to regulation by isdfederal agencies, including the
FDA, the Federal Trade Commission, or the FTCUB®A, the Consumer Product Safety Commission aadethvironmental
Protection Agency and various agencies of the statel localities. Pursuant to the Food, Drug, aoshi&tic Act, or the FDCA, the
FDA regulates the safety, formulation, manufactyriprocessing, packaging, labeling, importation distfibution of food and
dietary supplements (including vitamins, mineralsino acids and herbs). In addition, the FTC hasdiction to regulate the
promotion and advertising of these products.

Dietary SupplementsThe FDCA has been amended several times witlece$p dietary supplements, in particular by the
Dietary Supplement Health and Education Act of 1984DSHEA. DSHEA established a framework governimgcomposition,
safety, labeling, manufacturing and marketing etally supplements, defined “dietary supplement” ‘aeav dietary ingredient” and
established new statutory criteria for evaluatimg $afety of substances meeting the respectivaitiefis. In the process, DSHEA
removed dietary supplements and new dietary ingrelifrom pre-market approval requirements thalyappfood additives and
pharmaceuticals and established a combinationdaffication” and “post marketing controls” for relgting product safety.
Notwithstanding, non-dietary ingredients in a digtsupplement remain subject to the FDA's food tideliauthorities. The FDA
does not require notification to market a dietargdement if it contains only dietary ingrediertattwere present in the U.S. food
supply prior to DSHEA'’s enactment on October 1®4.However, for a dietary ingredient not presarthe food supply prior to this
date, the manufacturer must provide the FDA witbrimation supporting the conclusion that the ingeatiwill reasonably be
expected to be safe at least 75 days before intiega new dietary ingredient into interstate comgaeAs required by the FSMA,
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the FDA issued draft guidance in July 2011, whitterapted to clarify when an ingredient would besidared a “new dietary
ingredient,” the evidence needed to document tfetysaf a new dietary ingredient and appropriatéhods for establishing the
identity of a new dietary ingredient. The draftdamce has not been finalized. If finalized, thdtdgaidance may cause dietary
supplement products available in the market baBi8elEA to be classified to include a “new dietargriedient” if the dietary
supplement product was produced using manufactyiogesses different from those used in 1994.

DSHEA also empowered the FDA to establish good ri@auring practice regulations governing key aspetthe
production of dietary supplements. DSHEA exprepsiymits dietary supplements to bear statementsidesrhow a product affects
the structure, function and general well-beinghef body. Although manufacturers must be able tstamtiate any such statement, no
pre-market approval authorization is required fartsstatements and manufacturers need only ndiify that they are employing a
given claim. No statement may expressly or impligiépresent that a dietary supplement will diagnasire, mitigate, treat or
prevent a disease. DSHEA does, however, authangglement sellers to provide “third-party literayir(e.g., a reprint of a peer-
reviewed scientific publication linking a particuldietary ingredient with health benefits) in coatien with the sale of a dietary
supplement to consumers. This provision is an ei@epo the FDA'’s broad powers over the promotiémegulated products.
Accordingly, the authorization is limited and ajglionly if the publication is printed in its entireis not false or misleading, presents
a balanced view of the available scientific infotima and does not “promote” a particular manufaetur brand of dietary
supplement and is displayed in an area physicefpasate from the dietary supplements.

Food. The FDA has comprehensive authority to regulagesafety of food and food ingredients other thiatedy
supplements. Food additives and food contact sobs$aare subject to pre-market approvals or natifio requirements. The FDA’s
overall food safety authority was dramatically emted in 2011 with the passage of the Food Safetgdvtozation Act, or FSMA.
The FSMA required the FDA to issue regulations nading that risk-based preventive controls be olestby the majority of food
producers. Regulations and rules issued under F&MAn varying degrees of finalization. Regardl#iss,FDA'’s authority under
FSMA applies to all domestic food facilities ang,Way of imported food supplier verification recgrnents, to all foreign facilities
that supply us with food products. In addition, E®MA required the FDA to establish science-basadmum standards for the safe
production and harvesting of produce, to identhigh risk” foods and “high risk” facilities and imacted the FDA to set goals for
the frequency of FDA inspections of such high fetilities as well as non-high risk facilities afateign facilities from which food
is imported into the United States. With respedidth foods and dietary supplements, the FSMA nmegdnily augmented the FDA'’s
ability to access producers’ records and suppliesords. This increased access could cause thet&Rikntify areas of concern it
had not previously considered to be problematioforsuppliers and contract manufacturers. The F@MA gives the FDA
authority to require food producers, distributonsl @ellers to recall adulterated or misbranded fbdte FDA determines that there is
a reasonable probability that the food will causeasis adverse health consequences to persongnmalanAdditionally, the FSMA
increases the FDA's authority for administrativéesi¢ions of adulterated and misbranded foods. BMdA also could cause
enhanced tracking and tracing of food requiremantt as a result, added recordkeeping burdensayrssuppliers and contract
manufacturers.

The FDA also exercises broad jurisdiction overl#eling and promotion of food. Labeling is a br@adcept that, under
certain circumstances, extends even to productetlzlaims and representations made on a compwamgsite or similar printed or
graphic medium. All foods, including dietary suppkents, must bear labeling that provides consumihsessential information with
respect to ingredients, product weight, etc. ThdBOministers a pre-market authorization prograpiiapble to foods and
supplements alike regarding the use of “nutriemtent” claims (e.g., “high in antioxidants,” “low ffat,” etc.), “health” claims
(claims describing the relationship between a fealistance and a health or disease condition) aatdrad and “all natural” claims.
“Organic” claims, however, are primarily regulateglithe USDA. In addition, the FDA has authority ppeoducts falsely or
misleadingly labeled “organic.” Products labeledganic” must be certified by an accredited agertaspliant with USDA-
established standards.

FDA Enforcement.The FDA has broad authority to enforce the piiowis of the FDCA applicable to the safety, labeling
manufacturing and promotion of foods and dietappdements, including powers to issue a public waghétter to a company,
publicize information about illegal products, iste an administrative detention of food, requesirder a recall of illegal products
from the market, and request the Department ofciugi initiate a seizure action, an injunction@tibr a criminal prosecution in the
United States courts. Pursuant to the FSMA, the I3 has the power to refuse the import of ang foodietary supplement from a
foreign supplier that is not appropriately verifigslin compliance with all FDA laws and regulatiok®reover, the FDA has the
authority to administratively suspend the regigrapf any facility producing food, including sugphents, deemed to present a
reasonable probability of causing serious adveesdtin consequences.

Food and Dietary Supplement Advertisinghe FTC exercises jurisdiction over the advertjsif foods and dietary

supplements. The FTC has the power to instituteatawn sanctions and the imposition of “consent ge€r and penalties that can
severely limit a company’s business practicesetient years, the FTC has instituted numerous estfeent actions against dietary
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supplement companies for failure to have adequadistantiation for claims made in advertising ortfoe use of false or misleading
advertising claims.

Compliance.As is common in our industry, we rely on our digyg and contract manufacturers to ensure thaptbeucts
they manufacture and sell to us comply with allleyaple regulatory and legislative requirementsgémeral, we seek certifications
of compliance, representations and warranties nmdfcation and insurance from our suppliers andti@rt manufacturers.
However, even with adequate certifications, repreg®ns and warranties, insurance and indemnidinaany claims of non-
compliance could significantly damage our reputatiod consumer confidence in our products. In addithe failure of such
products to comply with applicable regulatory aedislative requirements could prevent us from magehe products or require us
to recall or remove such products from our stamesrder to comply with applicable statutes andutatjons, our suppliers and
contract manufacturers have from time to time mefdated, eliminated or relabeled certain of theaducts and we have revised
certain provisions of our sales and marketing paogr

Furthermore, to ensure compliant practices, owaates working in our stores are trained regulanyhow to provide
customer service using an educational approachstiedhical, honest, accurate and does not crassioto a scope of practice
reserved for licensed healthcare professionalsirfstence, we do not allow discussion of any “di&dar “cure.” Instead, we focus
on how the structure and function of the body fecéd by lifestyle choices and the different riigrial components of an
individual’s diet, including those contained in tdigy supplements. Our customers are encouragedite mformed decisions about
their diet, lifestyle, and possible need for suppatation. We also conduct internal complianceawsion all free nutrition literature
that we make available to our customers upon requifsthe goal of ensuring that these materialy oeference relevant dietary
supplement ingredients and not any particular samgroducts. One role of the Nutritional HealiaCh is to oversee our FDA and
FTC compliance measures. We believe that our rartréducation practices are in compliance with fetlend state requirements,
but a finding to the contrary could pose significesues with respect to our business and repuatatieong our customers or
otherwise have a material adverse effect on ounbss.

New or revised government laws and regulationsctiffg our business or our industry, such as theksing to genetically
modified foods, could result in additional compbarcosts and civil remedies. The risks associat#dthese laws and regulations
are further described under the caption “Risk Facto

Segment Information

We have one reporting segment, natural and orgetad stores, through which we conduct all of business. Please see
the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Comfanrthe fiscal year ended September 30, 2013Jpstt in Part IV of this report
on Form 10-K, for financial information regardirtgg segment.

Available Information

Our website is located atww.naturalgrocers.comNe will make our periodic reports and other imfiation filed with or
furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commis®io8EC, available, free of charge, through oubsite as soon as reasonably
practicable after those reports and other inforomaire electronically filed with or furnished te@tBEC. In addition, our Corporate
Governance Guidelines, the charters for our Audin@ittee and Compensation Committee, and our CbE¢hacs are publicly
available on our website atww.naturalgrocers.comander the “Investor Relations — Corporate Goveraasection, and we will post
any amendments to, or waivers from, a provisiothisf Code of Ethics on our website, at the addaesislocation specified above.
A printed copy of this information is also availablithout charge by sending a written request tqpGate Secretary, Natural
Grocers by Vitamin Cottage, Inc., 12612 West AlamBdrkway, Lakewood, CO 80228. You may read ang aag materials we
file with the SEC at the Securities and Exchangm@dsion Public Reference Room at 100 F Street,, N\Mashington, D.C. 20549.
The SEC also maintains a website that containseports and other informationatvw.sec.govnformation on our website or any
other website is not incorporated by reference thi®report on Form 10-K.

Item 1A. Risk Factors.
Our business, financial condition and results oéigtions can be impacted by a number of factorglwhould cause our
actual results to vary materially from recent rasudr from our anticipated future results. If amfythe following risks actually

occurs, our business, financial condition, resolt®perations, cash flow and prospects could besnadly and adversely affected. As
a result, the trading price of our common stockldalecline and you could lose all or part of yonvéstment in our common stock.
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Risks related to our business
We may not be successful in our efforts to grow.

Our continued growth largely depends on our abibtguccessfully open and operate new stores oofigble basis.
During fiscal years 2013 and 2012, we opened ti3t@mnew stores, respectively. We plan to openel stores and remodel two
stores in fiscal year 2014. Delays or failurespeming new stores, or achieving lower than expessdes in new stores, could
materially and adversely affect our growth. Oumgléor continued expansion could place increasetades on our financial,
managerial, operational and administrative resauri€éer example, our planned expansion will requ¢o increase the number of
people we employ and may require us to upgradenamagement information system and our distributirastructure. We
currently operate a single bulk food repackagirggjifs and distribution center, which houses outkfiood repackaging operation. In
order to support our recent and expected futuresrand to maintain the efficient operation of business, we may need to add
additional distribution centers in the future. Thé@screased demands and operating complexitiesl cawise us to operate our
business less efficiently, which could materialhyadversely affect our operations, financial peri@ance and ability to grow in the
future.

Our ability to successfully open new stores is dejeat upon a number of factors, including our gbib select suitable
sites for our new store locations, to negotiate exetute leases, to coordinate the contracting worur new stores, to identify and
recruit store managers, Nutritional Health Coadresother staff, to secure and manage the invenexrgssary for the launch and
successful operation of our new stores and to &@ffdg promote and market our new stores. If weiaedfective in performing these
activities, then our efforts to open and operate s®res may be unsuccessful or unprofitable, amdnay be unable to execute our
growth plans.

Although we target particular levels of cash-onkcesturns and capital investment for each of owv s®res, new stores
may not meet these targets. Any store we open malyenprofitable or achieve operating results simib those of our existing
stores. There is also the potential that some phew stores will be located near areas where we Baisting stores, thereby
reducing the sales of such existing stores.

If we are unable to successfully identify markeetrds and react to changing consumer preferences itimely manner,
our sales may decrease.

We believe our success depends, in substantiglgradur ability to:

* anticipate, identify and react to natural and orggnocery and dietary supplement trends and cimgngbnsumer
preferences in a timely manner;

* translate market trends into appropriate, saleafulduct and service offerings in our stores befanecompetitors; and

* develop and maintain vendor relationships that ideus access to the newest merchandise on redsdeabs.

Consumer preferences often change rapidly and utitivarning, moving from one trend to another amoramy product or
retail concepts. Our performance is impacted bydsaegarding natural and organic products, dietapplements and at-home meal
preparation. Consumer preferences towards dietargiements or natural and organic food producthspift as a result of, among
other things, economic conditions, food safety pptions and the cost of these products. Our stifedrgs remain composed of
natural and organic products and dietary supplesnénthange in consumer preferences away from terirogs would have a
material adverse effect on our business. Additignakgative publicity over the safety of any siteims may adversely affect
demand for our products and could result in lowestamer traffic, sales and results of operations.

If we are unable to anticipate and satisfy consumerchandise preferences in the regions where weat® our net sales
may decrease, and we may be forced to increasedmaris of slow-moving merchandise, either of whiolld have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial conditiod results of operations.

Our inability to maintain or improve levels of conapable store sales could cause our stock price ¢glohe.

We may not be able to maintain or improve the lewdlcomparable store sales that we have expeddndbe past. In
addition, our overall comparable store sales magtdiate in the future. A variety of factors affeomparable store sales, including:

* our ability to execute our business strategy effebt, including successfully opening new storeat thichieve sales
consistent with our existing stores;
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consumer preferences;

competition;

economic conditions;

product pricing and availability;

in-store merchandising-related activities;

» consumer confidence;

unusually strong initial sales performance by cawstores; and

our ability to source and distribute products édfitly.

In addition, many specialty retailers have beerbiento sustain high levels of comparable storessdiging and after
periods of substantial expansion. These factorscaage our comparable store sales results to teriaihtlower than in recent
periods, which could have a material adverse effaatur business, financial condition and resultsperations, and could result in a
decline in the price of our common stock.

Our comparable store sales and quarterly financf@rformance may fluctuate for a variety of reasons.

Our comparable store sales and quarterly resuttp@fations have fluctuated in the past, and weexpem to continue to
fluctuate in the future. A variety of other fact@ffect our comparable store sales and quartergnfiial performance, including:

 changes in our merchandising strategy or produxt mi
» performance of our newer and remodeled stores;
« the effectiveness of our inventory management;

« the timing and concentration of new store openiags, the related additional human resource reqeinésrand pre-
opening and other start-up costs;

« the cannibalization of existing store sales by s&we openings;
* levels of pre-opening expenses associated withsteres;

« timing and effectiveness of our marketing actitie

seasonal fluctuations due to weather conditionsesti@me weather-related disruptions;

« actions by our existing or new competitors, inchggpricing changes;
* supply shortages; and
 general U.S. economic conditions and, in particuter retail sales environment.

Accordingly, our results for any one fiscal yealgoarter are not necessarily indicative of the lteta be expected for any
other year or quarter, and comparable store salesyoparticular future period may decrease. Ingbent of such a decrease, the
price of our common stock would likely decline. Foore information on our results of operationstfa fiscal year 2013, see
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahdition and Results of Operations.”

Disruptions in the worldwide economy may adversaffect our business, results of operations and fir@al condition
and could negatively impact our ability to execudar growth strategy.

Adverse and uncertain economic conditions may irndamand for the products we sell in our storesiS0mer spending
and levels of disposable income, including spenéingatural and organic grocery and dietary sumglet products that we sell, are
affected by, among other things, prevailing ecomoeuinditions, levels of employment, salaries andesainterest rates, the
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availability of credit, tax rates, housing markenditions, consumer confidence, political instapiind consumer perception of
economic conditions. The outbreak or escalatiomanf the occurrence of terrorist acts or otherilitiss in or affecting the United
States, or concern regarding epidemics in the dr8tates or in international markets could alsd keaa decrease in spending by
consumers. In the event of an economic slowdownsamer spending could be adversely affected, andowkl experience lower
net sales than expected. We could be forced ty @elalow our new store growth plans, which coudddna material adverse effect
on our business, financial condition and resultspsrations. In addition, our ability to managemak commercial relationships with
our suppliers, manufacturers of our private laletpcts, distributors, customers and creditors sudfer. Customers may shift
purchases to lower-priced or other perceived vaftexings during economic downturns. In particutaustomers may reduce the
amount of natural and organic products that theghmse and instead purchase conventional offerimigish generally have lower
retail prices, at other stores. In addition, constgtmay choose to purchase private label producther stores rather than branded
products because they are generally less exper&iypliers may become more conservative in respionese conditions and seek
to reduce their production. Our results of operaidepend upon, among other things, our abilitp&intain and increase sales
volume with our existing customers, to attract reasstomers and to provide products that appealdtomers at prices they are
willing and able to pay. Prolonged unfavorable exoit conditions may have an adverse effect on al@ssand profitability.

We may be unable to compete effectively in our hygbompetitive markets.

The markets for natural and organic groceries aeihiy supplements are highly competitive with feavriers to entry. Our
competition varies by market and includes converaionatural, gourmet and specialty food marketssrand discount retailers,
warehouse clubs, independent health food storerglisupplement retailers, drug stores, farmerkets mail order and online
retailers and multi-level marketers. Many of oumpetitors are larger, more established and haweegrénancial, marketing and
other resources than us, and may be able to amlaphaihges in consumer preferences more quicklygtdeyreater resources to the
marketing and sale of their products, or generegatgr brand recognition. As a result, we may toaeket share to our competitors,
which could have a material adverse effect on asirtess, financial condition and results of operati

Our inability to maintain or increase our operatinghargins could adversely affect our results of optons and the price
of our stock.

We intend to continue to increase our operatingginarby leveraging efficiencies of scale, improggdtems, continued
cost discipline, focus on appropriate store labwels and disciplined product selection. If we @mable to successfully manage the
potential difficulties associated with store growile may not be able to capture the efficienciescafe that we expect from
expansion. If we are not able to continue to capaificiencies of scale, improve our systems, coiour cost discipline and
maintain appropriate store labor levels and digugol product selection, we may not be able to aehiair goals with respect to
operating margins. In addition, if we do not addglyarefine and improve our various ordering, tiagkand allocation systems, we
may not be able to increase sales and reduce wryestirink. As a result, our operating margins rsgnate or decline, which could
have a material adverse effect on our businesandial condition and results of operations and esihg affect the price of our stock.

A reduction in traffic to anchor stores in the shppg areas in close proximity to our stores couidrsficantly reduce our
sales and leave us with unsold inventory, which bhave a material adverse effect on our busind@sancial condition and
results of operations.

Many of our stores are located in close proximitghopping areas that may also accommodate othiekmeavn anchor
stores. Sales at our stores are derived, in pary fhe volume of traffic generated by the otherham stores in the shopping areas
where our stores are located. Customer traffic beagdversely affected by regional economic dowstuairgeneral downturn in the
local area where our store is located, long-terarimeroad construction projects, the closing ofbganchor stores or other nearby
stores or the decline of the shopping environmeat particular shopping area. Any of these evewotgdaweduce our sales and leave
us with excess inventory, which could have a makadverse effect on our business, financial camdind results of operation. In
response to such events, we may be required teasermarkdowns or initiate marketing promotiongthice excess inventory,
which would further decrease our gross profits a@dincome.

If we or our third-party suppliers fail to comply ith regulatory requirements, or are unable to pralé products that meet
our specifications, our business and our reputaticould suffer.

If we or our third-party suppliers, including sujgps of our private label products, fail to complith applicable regulatory
requirements or to meet our specifications for ifpialve could be required to take costly correctietion and our reputation could
suffer. We do not own or operate any manufactuf@wngities, except for our bulk food repackagingifiy and distribution center
discussed below, and therefore depend upon indepétitrd-party vendors to produce our private lddvanded products, such as
vitamins, minerals, dietary supplements, body paoglucts, food products and bottled water. Thirdypsuppliers of our private
label products may not maintain adequate contrdals respect to product specifications and quaftych suppliers may be unable to
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produce products on a timely basis or in a manassistent with regulatory requirements. We depgywhwur bulk food
repackaging facility and distribution center foe tmajority of our private label bulk food produdfge may also be unable to
maintain adequate product specification and quabtytrols at our bulk food repackaging facility atidtribution center, or produce
products on a timely basis and in a manner comgistgh regulatory requirements. In addition, weynhe required to find new third-
party suppliers of our private label products ofind third-party suppliers to source our bulk fso@here can be no assurance that
we would be successful in finding such third-patppliers that meet our quality guidelines.

We, as well as our vendors, are subject to numerlawgs and regulations and our compliance with thdsgvs and
regulations, as they currently exist or as modifiedthe future, may increase our costs, limit ofimiinate our ability to sell certain
products, raise regulatory enforcement risks noepent in the past or otherwise adversely affect business, results of operations
and financial condition.

As a retailer of food and dietary supplements asdligr of many of our own private label produgts,are subject to
numerous federal and state health and safety lad/segyulations. Our suppliers and contract manufacs are also subject to such
laws and regulations. These laws and regulatiopb/ap many aspects of our business, includingnth@ufacturing, packaging,
labeling, distribution, advertising, sale, quakityd safety of our products, as well as the healthsafety of our employees and the
protection of the environment. In the U.S., we subject to regulation by various federal governnag@ncies, including the FDA,
the USDA, the FTC, the Occupational Safety and the&tiministration, the Consumer Product Safety Cagsian and the
Environmental Protection Agency, as well as varistase and local agencies. We are also subjebettd EDA’s Organic Rule, which
facilitates interstate commerce and the marketfrayganically produced food, and provides assurao@ir customers that such
products meet consistent, uniform standards. Campéd with the USDA’s Organic Rule also places aiigant burden on some of
our suppliers, which may cause a disruption in sohwur product offerings. In addition, our salésl®tary supplements are
regulated under the Dietary Supplement Health ahec&ion Act of 1994, or DSHEA. DSHEA expresslymis dietary
supplements to bear statements describing howduptaffects the structure, function and generdl-being of the body. However,
no statement may expressly or implicitly represbat a dietary supplement will diagnose, cure,gait, treat or prevent a disease. If
these laws and regulations were violated by ouragament, associates, suppliers, distributors cdatesn we could be subject to
fines, penalties and sanctions, including injuntdiagainst future shipment and sale of producissigeand confiscation of products,
prohibition on the operation of our stores, resititu and disgorgement of profits, operating reiits and criminal prosecution.

In connection with the marketing and advertisenedémur products, we could be the target of claiglating to false or
deceptive advertising, including under the auspafehe FTC and the consumer protection statute®ofe states. These events
could interrupt the marketing and sales of prodirctsur stores, including our private label produseverely damage our brand
reputation and public image, increase the costadyrcts in our stores, result in product recalltiyation, and impede our ability to
deliver merchandise in sufficient quantities orlgydo our stores, which could result in a mateadverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

New or revised government laws and regulations lhees adopted in recent years, such as thosengtatigenetically
modified foods, could result in additional compliarcosts and the increased use of civil remediesfrce such laws and
regulations. Additionally, increased enforcemengbyernment agencies could result in such costsemddies, as well as the
payment of fines or penalties imposed by such dgenc

The Food Safety Modernization Act, or FSMA, pasisedanuary 2011, granted the FDA greater authoxigr the safety of
the national food supply and required the FDA suésregulations mandating that risk-based preveictiwtrols be observed by the
majority of food producers. Regulations and rugssied under FSMA are in varying degrees of fintibna Regardless, the FDA's
authority under FSMA applies to all domestic foadifities and, by way of imported food supplierifieation requirements, to all
foreign facilities that supply food products. Indéebn, the FSMA required the FDA to establish scie based minimum standards for
the safe production and harvesting of produce,iredihe FDA to identify “high risk” foods and “hHigrisk” facilities and instructed
the FDA to set goals for the frequency of FDA ingmns of such high risk facilities as well as riuigh risk facilities and foreign
facilities from which food is imported into the Wedl States. With respect to both food and dietappkements, the FSMA
meaningfully augmented the FDA's ability to accagsroducer’s records and a supplier’'s records. ifkigased access could permit
the FDA to identify areas of concern it had notjwasly considered to be problematic either foou$or our suppliers. The FSMA
also could result in the implementation of enhartcacking and tracing of food requirements andq assult, added recordkeeping
burdens upon our suppliers. In addition, undeRB®A, the FDA now has the authority to inspectifiedtions and therefore
evaluate whether foods and ingredients from oupkens are compliant with the FDA'’s regulatory r@gments. Such inspections
may delay the supply of certain products or resutertain products being unavailable to us foe salour stores.

DSHEA established that no notification to the F3Aequired to market a dietary supplement if ittaors only dietary
ingredients that were present in the U.S. food supior to DSHEA'’s enactment. However, for a digtangredient not present in the
food supply prior to DSHEA's enactment, the mantifeer is required to provide the FDA with infornmtisupporting the
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conclusion that the ingredient will reasonably Rpexted to be safe at least 75 days before intinducnew dietary ingredient into
interstate commerce. As required by the FSMA, thé kssued draft guidance in July 2011, which atteadpo clarify when an
ingredient would be considered a “new dietary idgget,” the evidence needed to document the safedynew dietary ingredient
and appropriate methods for establishing the itkenfia new dietary ingredient. The draft guidahes not yet been finalized. If
finalized, the draft guidance may cause dietarypkmpent products available in the market before BAHb be classified to include
a new dietary ingredient if the dietary supplenmoduct was produced using manufacturing procediffiesent from those used in
1994. Accordingly, the finalization and adoptiontioé draft FDA guidance or similar guidance coulatenially adversely affect the
availability of dietary supplement products.

Furthermore, in recent years, the FDA has beercantinues to be aggressive in enforcing its regadatwith respect to
nutrient content claims (e.g., “low fat,” “good soe of,” “calorie free,” etc.), unauthorized “hdaltlaims” (claims that characterize
the relationship between a food or food ingredaamt a disease or health condition) and other cléiaisimpermissibly suggest
therapeutic benefits for certain foods or food congnts. Such FDA enforcement with respect to suchptional practices could
result in costly product changes, potential privdigation, bad publicity and loss of consumer doall.

We are also subject to laws and regulations monergdly applicable to retailers, including labodaamployment, taxation,
zoning and land use. In addition, changes in fdderé state minimum wage laws and other laws rajath employee benefits could
cause us to incur additional wage and benefitscedtich could hurt our profitability.

We cannot predict the nature of future laws, refijuta, interpretations or applications, or detemmivhat effect either
additional government regulations or administrativeéers, when and if promulgated, or disparatertddstate and local regulatory
schemes would have on our business in the futurey Tould, however, require the reformulation ataie products to meet new
standards, the recall or discontinuance of cepainlucts not able to be reformulated, additionabrekeeping, expanded
documentation of the properties of certain produetpanded or different labeling and scientificsahtiation. Any or all of such
requirements could have an adverse effect on oceratipg results.

The activities of our Nutritional Health Coaches anour nutrition education services may be impactagdgovernment
regulation or our inability to secure adequate lidity insurance.

Some of the activities of our Nutritional Healtha@hes who, among other duties, provide nutritiogended educational
services to our customers, may be subject to atatdederal regulation, and oversight by profesdionganizations. In the past, the
FDA has expressed concerns regarding summarizédit laea nutrition related information that (1) does, in the FDA'’s view,
accurately present such information, (2) divert®asumer’s attention and focus from FDA-requirettition labeling and
information or (3) impermissibly promotes drug-tyisease related benefits. Although we have pralvidining to our Nutritional
Health Coaches on relevant regulatory requiremev@s;annot control the actions of such individuatg] our Nutritional Health
Coaches may not act in accordance with such regatatlf our Nutritional Health Coaches or othemdoyees do not act in
accordance with regulatory requirements, we magimecsubject to penalties which could have a matadieerse effect on our
business. We believe we are currently in compliamitie relevant regulatory requirements, and we tad@inprofessional liability
insurance on behalf of our Nutritional Health Caain order to mitigate risks associated with outrilonal Health Coaches’
nutrition oriented educational activities. Howewsg cannot predict the nature of future governmegtilation and oversight,
including the potential impact of any such regalaton the services currently provided by our Niagtnial Health Coaches.
Furthermore, the availability of professional liggiinsurance or the scope of such coverage maygé, or our insurance coverage
may prove inadequate, which may adversely impacatility of our Nutritional Health Coaches to pidesome services to our
customers. The occurrence of any such developnsentd negatively impact the perception of our brang sales and our ability to
attract new customers.

Our future business, results of operations and fimgial condition may be adversely affected by reddieaailability of
organic products.

Our ability to ensure a continuing supply of orgapioducts at competitive prices depends on maetprfsbeyond our
control, such as the number and size of farmsgitat organic crops or raise organic livestock,\thgaries of these farming
businesses and our ability to accurately forecassourcing requirements. The organic ingrediesesiun many of the products we
sell are vulnerable to adverse weather conditimasratural disasters, such as floods, droughtstdrearthquakes, hurricanes and
pestilences. Adverse weather conditions and natiisakters can lower crop yields and reduce cmasid quality, which in turn
could reduce the available supply of, or increaseptrice of, organic ingredients. Certain produatspurchase from our suppliers
include organic ingredients sourced offshore, &edatvailability of such ingredients may be affedtgcevents in other countries. In
addition, we and our suppliers compete with otbedfproducers in the procurement of organic ingneidi, which are often less
plentiful in the open market than conventional adjents. This competition may increase in the tticonsumer demand for
organic products increases. If supplies of orgamgcedients are reduced or there is greater derfmarslich ingredients from us and
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others, we may not be able to obtain sufficienfbupn favorable terms, or at all, which could impaur ability to supply products
to our stores and may adversely affect our busjmesslts of operations and financial condition.

The organic products we sell rely on independeritfimation and must comply with the requirementsnalependent
organizations or certification authorities in ordeibe labeled as such. Certain products we selliirstores can lose their “organic”
certification if a contract manufacturing plant bewes contaminated with non-organic materials @risf not properly cleaned after a
production run, among other issues. The loss ofimsgpendent certifications could reduce the abdity of organic products that
we can sell in our stores and harm our business.

Disruptions affecting our significant suppliers, aour relationships with such suppliers, could negatly affect our
business.

United Natural Foods Inc., or UNFI, is our singdegest third-party supplier, accounting for appneadely 47% of our total
purchases in fiscal year 2013. In addition, appraely 8% of our purchases were made through Ath@nrganics, a subsidiary of
UNFI that distributes fresh produce and meat. Dyfiscal year 2012, we extended our long-term i@ship with UNFI as our
primary supplier of dry grocery and frozen food gwots through 2016. Due to this concentration a€pases from a single third-
party supplier, the cancellation of our distribatimgreement or the disruption, delay or inabilityJdlFI to deliver product to our
stores may materially and adversely affect our apeg results and we may be unable to establighraltive distribution channels on
reasonable terms or at all.

Certain of our vendors use overseas sourcing tgingdegrees to manufacture some or all of thedpcts. Any event
causing a sudden disruption of manufacturing oroirtgofrom such foreign countries, including the ompion of additional import
restrictions, unanticipated political changes, éased customs duties, labor disputes, health efideatverse weather conditions,
crop failure, acts of war or terrorism, legal ooleemic restrictions on overseas suppliers’ abibitproduce and deliver products, and
natural disasters, could increase our costs andriay harm our operations, business and finarsmaldition. Our business is also
subject to a variety of other risks generally aigged with indirectly sourcing goods from abroadisas political instability,
disruption of imports by labor disputes and loaasibess practices. In addition, requirements impdgethe FSMA compel
importers to verify that food products and ingredéeproduced by a foreign supplier comply withagdplicable legal and regulatory
requirements enforced by the FDA, which could reisutertain products being deemed inadequatenipoit.

The current geographic concentration of our storegeates exposure to local economies, regional dawms or severe
weather or catastrophic occurrences.

As of September 30, 2013, we have store concemtratiColorado and Texas, operating 31 stores argtdres in those
states, respectively, or a total of 59.7% of oaredt. As a result, our business is currently maseeptible to regional conditions than
the operations of more geographically diversifiedhpetitors, and we are vulnerable to economic domastin those regions. Any
unforeseen events or circumstances that negataffdgt these areas could materially adversely tffacrevenues and profitability.
These factors include, among other things, chaimggemographics, population, competition, consupneferences, new or revised
laws or regulations, fires, floods or other natwalishsters in these regions.

If we fail to maintain our reputation and the valuef our brand, our sales may decline.

We believe our continued success depends on dlitiydabimaintain and grow the value of thatural Grocers by Vitamin
Cottag€ brand. Maintaining, promoting and positioning buand and reputation will depend largely on thecess of our marketing
and merchandising efforts and our ability to prevadconsistent, high quality customer experiencan@ value is based in large part
on perceptions of subjective qualities, and evelaied incidents can erode trust and confidenaticpéarly if they result in adverse
publicity, governmental investigations or litigaticOur brand could be adversely affected if wetfahchieve these objectives, or if
our public image or reputation were to be tarnistwedegative publicity. Sources of negative pubfichay include, among others,
social media posts, investment or financial comityumbsts and poor reviews of stores, productsocost service and employment.
Our reputation could also suffer from real or pered issues involving the labeling or marketingaf products as “natural.”
Although the FDA and USDA each has issued statesmegiarding the appropriate use of the word “natutzere is no single, U.S.
government regulated definition of the term “nakufar use in the food industry. The resulting urteinty has led to consumer
confusion, distrust and legal challenges. Plamtiive commenced legal actions against a numbieodfcompanies that market
“natural” products, asserting false, misleading dadeptive advertising and labeling claims, inahgditlaims related to genetically
modified ingredients. In limited circumstances, Bi2A has taken regulatory action against prodwieled “natural” but that
nonetheless contain synthetic ingredients or comptsn Should we become subject to similar claimssamers may avoid
purchasing products from us or seek alternativea ¢ the basis for the claim is unfounded. Adeegpsiblicity about these matters
may discourage consumers from buying our prodddts.cost of defending against any such claims cbeldignificant. Any loss of
confidence on the part of consumers in the trutte@ss of our labeling or ingredient claims woulddifécult and costly to overcome
and may significantly reduce our brand value. Afthese events could adversely affect our reputaind brand and decrease our
sales, which would have a material adverse effeauw business, financial condition and resultepdrations.

19



Perishable food product losses could materially iagp our results of operations.

Our stores offer a significant number of perishabteducts. Our offering of perishable products mesult in significant
product inventory losses in the event of extendmalgy or other utility outages, natural disasterstber catastrophic occurrences.

The decision by certain of our suppliers to distuite their specialty products through other retailstkibution channels
could negatively impact our revenue from the safesach products.

Some of the specialty retail products that weisedlur stores are not generally available througdieoretail distribution
channels such as drug stores, conventional gratergs or mass merchandisers. In the future, qplisus could decide to distribute
such products through other retail distributionroiels, allowing more of our competitors to offeesk products, and adversely
affecting the desirability of these products to oore customers, which could negatively impactrenenues.

Our ability to operate our business effectively ddie impaired if we fail to retain or attract kgyersonnel or are unable
to attract, train and retain qualified employees.

Our business requires disciplined execution dea#ls of our organization. This execution requaasxperienced and
talented management team. The loss of any memlmirafenior management team, particularly Kempay lsr Zephyr Isely, our
Co-Presidents since 1998, or Heather Isely or Btitalsely, our Executive Vice Presidents since81@8uld have a material adverse
effect on our ability to operate our business, fmancial condition and results of operations, saleand until, we are able to find a
qualified replacement. Furthermore, our abilitytanage our new store growth will require us taaatirmotivate and retain qualified
managers, Nutritional Health Coaches and storecagss who understand and appreciate our cultudeaemable to represent our
brand effectively in our stores. Competition foclsyersonnel is intense, and we may be unabldraxgtassimilate and retain the
personnel required to grow and operate our busimediably.

Any significant interruption in the operations ofur bulk food repackaging facility and distributiomenter could disrupt
our ability to deliver our merchandise in a timefpanner.

Any significant interruption in the operation ofrdaulk food repackaging and distribution centerasfructure, such as
disruptions due to fire, severe weather or othtasteophic events, power outages, labor disagresmenshipping problems, could
adversely impact our ability to receive and proeasiers, and distribute products to our storesh$uterruptions could result in lost
sales, cancelled sales and a loss of customerttyagabur brand. While we maintain business intetian and property insurance, if
the operation of our distribution facility wereéntupted for any reason causing delays in shipmiemerchandise to our stores, our
insurance may not be sufficient to cover lossegexaerience. This could have a material adverseedin our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

A widespread health epidemic could materially impaacr business.

Our business could be severely impacted by a widasiregional, national or global health epidemisvidespread health
epidemic may cause customers to avoid public gath@iaces such as our stores or otherwise chdmjieshopping behaviors.
Additionally, a widespread health epidemic coul#texdely impact our business by disrupting producéind delivery of products to
our stores and by impacting our ability to apprafmiy staff our stores.

Union activity at third-party transportation compaes or labor organizing activities among our empt®ss could disrupt
our operations and harm our business.

Independent third-party transportation companidiselethe majority of our merchandise to our stomes to our customers.
Some of these third parties employ personnel repted by labor unions. Disruptions in the delivefynerchandise or work
stoppages by employees of these third parties arlly the timely receipt of merchandise, whichldaasult in cancelled sales, a
loss of loyalty to our stores and excess inventdfiiile all of our employees are currently non-uniattempts on the part of our
employees to organize labor or union activities aghour employees could result in work slowdownduméng the efficiency of our
operations, which could have a material adversetin our business, financial condition and resuilioperations.

Our management has limited experience managing dfixicompany.
We are subject to various regulatory requirementsuding those of the SEC and The New York StogkHange, or the

NYSE. These requirements include, among other shiregord keeping, financial reporting and corpogaivernance rules and
regulations. Our management has been managinglia pampany since the Company’s initial public offgy, or IPO, in fiscal year
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2012, and therefore its overall experience in manpg public company remains limited. Our publiengany reporting obligations
have increased, and continue to impose, demandsranternal infrastructure and resources. Althoug have hired additional staff
in order to comply with these requirements, we tmaynable to retain the staff necessary to compily these requirements in the
future. In certain continuing respects, we relyooitside consultants and professionals to supplemercapacity to meet these
requirements. Our business could be adverselytatféEwe are unable to fulfill our public compaalligations.

Future events could result in impairment of longvied assets, which may result in charges that adesraffect our results
of operations and capitalization.

Our total assets included long-lived assets taje$i®9.8 million at September 30, 2013. Long-livededs are evaluated for
impairment whenever events or changes in circurastaimdicate that the carrying amount of an assgtmot be recoverable. Our
impairment evaluations require use of financiainestes of future cash flows. Application of alteima assumptions could produce
significantly different results. We may be requitedecognize impairments of long-lived assets dasefuture economic factors
such as unfavorable changes in estimated futurissemuhted cash flows of an asset group.

We have significant lease obligations, which mayjuére us to continue paying rent for store locatierthat we no longer
operate.

Our stores, bulk food repackaging facility and mlisttion center and administrative facility areded. We are subject to
risks associated with our current and future retdte leases. Our costs could increase becaubandes in the real estate markets
and supply or demand for real estate sites. Werghyeannot cancel our leases, so if we decide#dse or relocate a location, we
may nonetheless be committed to perform our obtigatunder the applicable lease including payimglthse rent for the remaining
lease term. As each lease expires, we may faik¢tiate renewals, either on commercially acceptyims or any terms at all and
may not be able to find replacement locations Wikiprovide for the same success as current dtaations. Of the current leases for
our stores, none expires in fiscal year 2014, twaire in fiscal year 2015, five expire in fiscalaye2016, one expires in fiscal year
2017, and the remainder expire between fiscalsy2@t8 and 2034.

Any material failure of our information systems cdainegatively impact our operations.

We are increasingly dependent on a variety of métion systems to effectively manage the operatbmsir growing store
base, including our supply chain. The failure of imformation systems to perform as designed, iolg the failure of our vendors
to maintain and make available software or theifaibf our warehouse management software systemeti@ate as expected or to
support our distribution facility, could have arvatse effect on our business and results of operstiAny material failure or
slowdown of our systems could disrupt our abildytrack, record and analyze our merchandise, anldl cezgatively impact our
operations, including, among other things, ourighib process and receive shipments of goods amcegs financial and credit card
transactions. Any security breaches of our infoiomasystems could disrupt our operational systeemlting in a slowdown of our
normal business activities or limitations on ouilighto process credit card transactions. Moreo\eaiks of proprietary information,
including leaks of customers’ private data, coulthken customer confidence in our company and dlityab compete in the food
retail marketplace, which could have a materialaslw effect on our business, financial conditioth sults of operations.
Additionally, changes in technology could causeinformation systems to become obsolete and it beagecessary to incur
additional costs to upgrade such systems, and ifndormation systems prove inadequate to handtegoawth, we could lose
customers, which could have a material adversetedie our business, financial condition and resoiltsperations. We are also
vulnerable to certain risks and uncertainties d@ased with our websites, including changes in regitechnology interfaces, website
downtime and other technical failures, securityalstees and consumer privacy concerns. Our failusei¢oessfully respond to these
risks could damage our reputation.

Claims under our self-insurance program may difffnrom our estimates, which could materially impactioresults of
operations.

We currently maintain insurance customary for besses of our size and type using a combinationsafrance and self-
insurance plans to provide for the potential ligiei$ for workers’ compensation, general liabilipypfessional liability, property
insurance, director and officers’ liability insuran vehicle liability and employee health-care li¢neThere are types of losses we
may incur that cannot be insured against or thab&lieve are not economically reasonable to inssueh losses could have a
material adverse effect on our business and restiperations. In addition, liabilities associateith the risks that are retained by
the Company are estimated, in part, by considdristrical claims experience, demographic facteesgrity factors and other
actuarial assumptions. Our results could be malteimapacted by claims and other expenses relatesith plans if future
occurrences and claims differ from these assumgtionl historical trends.
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If we are unable to protect our intellectual proggrrights, our ability to compete and the value adir brand could be
harmed.

We believe that our trademarks or service marksletidress, copyrights, trade secrets, know-hovsemitar intellectual
property are important to our success. In particul@ believe that thBatural Grocers by Vitamin Cottageme is important to our
business, as well as to the implementation of oowth strategy. Our principal intellectual properights include registered marks
on Vitamin Cottag&, Natural Grocers by Vitamin Cotta§jendVitamin Cottage Natural Grocets copyrights of our website
content, rights to our domain names includingw.vitamincottage.comndwww.naturalgrocers.comand trade secrets and know-
how with respect to our product sourcing, salesraadketing and other aspects of our business. s, sve rely on trademark or
service mark and copyright law, trade secret ptate@nd confidentiality agreements with our emgley and certain of our
consultants, suppliers and others to protect capnetary rights. If we are unable to defend ornt@cbor preserve the value of our
trademarks or service marks, copyrights, tradeetgar other proprietary rights for any reason,lmand and reputation could be
impaired and we could lose customers.

Although several of our brand names are registeréioe United States, we may not be successfudserding trademark or
service mark or trade name protection and the cesqtsired to protect our trademarks or service siarid trade names may be
substantial. In addition, the relationship betwssgulations governing domain names and laws piiatgttademarks or service
marks and similar proprietary rights is uncleareidfore, we may be unable to prevent third paft@s acquiring domain names
that are similar to, infringe upon or otherwise @ase the value of our trademarks or service nan#other proprietary rights.
Additionally, other parties may infringe on ourefiectual property rights and may thereby dilute loand in the marketplace. Third
parties could also bring additional intellectuabperty infringement suits against us from timeiteetto challenge our intellectual
property rights. Any such infringement of our ihéetual property rights by others, or claims bydhparties against us, would likely
result in a commitment of our time and resourcgsrtect these rights through litigation or othessvilf we were to receive an
adverse judgment in such a matter, we could stdféner dilution of our trademarks or service maaksl other rights, which could
harm our ability to compete as well as our busipesspects, financial condition and results of atiens.

Our products could cause unexpected side effediisess, injury or death that could result in thettiscontinuance or
expose us to lawsuits, either of which could resnltunexpected costs and damage to our reputation.

There is substantial governmental scrutiny of amolip awareness regarding food safety. We belibaérmany customers
hold us to a higher quality standard than othailess. Unexpected side effects, illness, injurgeath caused by our products could
result in the discontinuance of sales of our prégloc prevent us from achieving market acceptamtieecaffected products. Such
side effects, illnesses, injuries and death coldd expose us to product liability or negligenogdaits. Any claims brought against
us may exceed our existing or future insurancecpaoverage or limits. Any judgment against us tham excess of our policy limits
would have to be paid from our cash reserves, wivimhid reduce our capital resources. Further, wg mad have sufficient capital
resources to pay a judgment in which case our tnedéould levy against our assets. The real argpeed sale of contaminated or
harmful products would cause negative publicityareiing our company, brand or products, includingati#e publicity in social
media, which could in turn harm our reputation artisales, which could have a material adversetsffe our business, financial
condition and results of operations, or resultuniasolvency.

Increase in the cost of raw materials could hurt osales and profitability.

Many of the raw agricultural commodities used tdkenaur private label products, including our buidbackaged products,
further increased globally during fiscal year 2048d are generally subject to availability consiiaand price volatility caused by
weather, supply conditions, government regulatiengrgy prices, price inflation and general ecomaronditions and other
unpredictable factors. An increase in the demandofothe price of, raw agricultural commoditiesuttbcause our vendors to seek
price increases from us, or may cause the retiaié pve charge for certain products to increas&yrim decreasing our sales of such
products. As a result, our profitability may be abely impacted through reduced gross marginsdechne in the number and
average size of customer transactions. The casirgdtruction materials we use to build and remodelstores is also subject to
significant price volatility based on market andmamic conditions. Higher construction materiabps would increase the capital
expenditures needed to construct a new store ardehan existing store and, as a result, coulceam® the rent payable by the
Company under its leases.

Energy costs are a significant component of our ogng expenses and increasing energy costs, unteféset by more
efficient usage or other operational responses, nipact our profitability.

We utilize natural gas, water, sewer and eleciriaitour stores and use gasoline and diesel inraaks that deliver products
to our stores. Increases in energy costs, whetihardby increased demand, decreased or disrupfgulysor an anticipation of any
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such events will increase the costs of operatingstares. Our shipping costs have also increaseddalfuel and freight prices, and
these costs may continue to increase. We may nableeto recover these rising costs through inecasices charged to our
customers, and any increased prices may exacdHhgatesk of customers choosing lower-cost alteuegti In addition, if we are
unsuccessful in attempts to protect against theseases in energy costs through long-term energlyacts, improved energy
procurement, improved efficiency and other operatiomprovements, the overall costs of operatingsbores will increase which
would impact our profitability, financial conditicend results of operations.

Increases in certain costs affecting our marketinggvertising and promotions may adversely impact ability to
advertise effectively and reduce our profitability.

Postal rate increases, and increasing paper amtihgrcosts affect the cost of our promotional imgi. Previous changes in
postal rates increased the cost of daalth Hotliné mailings and previous increases in paper andipgmosts increased the cost of
producing ouHealth Hotlinenewspaper inserts. In response to any future asere mailing costs, we may consider reducing the
number and size of certain promotional piecesdutiteon, we rely on discounts from the basic postéé structure, such as discounts
for bulk mailings and sorting by zip code and @rrbutes. We are not party to any long-term catsréor the supply of paper. We
are also affected by increases in billboard castisthe cost of producing and broadcasting our ig@v, radio and internet
advertising pieces. Previous changes in broadases resulted in an increase in the cost of oavigibn commercials. In response to
any future increase in broadcast costs, we mayidenseducing the frequency, placement and lenfjttegain promotional pieces.
We are not party to any long-term contracts forgast time. Future increases in costs affectimgrauwketing, advertising and
promotions could adversely impact our ability tverdise effectively and our profitability.

Our credit facility could limit our operational fleibility.

On December 12, 2013, we entered into an amendkdeatated credit facility. Our amended creditliigcallows us to
borrow up to $25.0 million. As of September 30120no borrowings were outstanding under our cifaditity. Our amended credit
facility is secured by a lien on substantially@llour assets and contains usual and customaryctas&t covenants relating to our
management and the operation of our business. Toesmants, among other things, restrict our gitititincur additional
indebtedness, grant liens, engage in certain mecgasolidation or asset sale transactions, mataineénvestments, make loans,
advances, guarantees or acquisitions, engagetairc&ansactions with affiliates or permit certaale and leaseback transactions
without lender consent. We are also required tataai certain financial ratios under our amendedlitragreement, including a
consolidated leverage ratio and a consolidatedl fotearge ratio. These covenants could restricoparational flexibility, including
our ability to open stores, and any failure to chmyth these covenants or our payment obligatiensid limit our ability to borrow
under our revolving credit facility and, in certaincumstances, may allow the lender thereundegdaire repayment.

We may need to raise additional debt or equity ¢abi

We have depended primarily on cash flow from owrapons, borrowings from our credit facility angi@rtion of the net
proceeds from our IPO to fund our business andwgeaan our growth strategy. From time to time, wayrhe required to seek
additional equity or debt financing in order to ducapital expenditures or to provide additional kilog capital for our business, or to
fund the execution of our growth strategy. In aiddit changes in economic conditions, or market &an requiring a shift in our
business model could result in our need for adutiaebt or equity financing. We cannot now prethiettiming or amount of any
such capital requirements. We do not know whetteemwll be able to take any of such actions on &lnasis, on terms satisfactory
to us or at all. If financing is not available t® on satisfactory terms, or at all, we may be uwnatbperate or expand our business or
to successfully pursue our growth strategy, andresults of operations may suffer. Pursuant taNW&E Listed Company Manual,
in order to rely on the “controlled company” corata governance exemptions, the Isely family igndities controlled by the Isely
family are, required to retain more than 50% ofttital voting power of our common shares for threxbn of directors. As long as
we intend to remain a “controlled company,” theséng requirements will constrain our ability taig additional shares of our
common stock in the future.

Our political advocacy activities may reduce ourstamer count and sales.

We believe our ability to profitably operate oursmess depends, in part, upon our access to nattabrganic products
and dietary supplements. We attempt to protectraerest in this access through ongoing and preagolitical advocacy
campaigns, including participation in educationgseans, petitions, letter writing, phone calls, pglconferences, advisory boards,
industry groups, public commentary and meetingh wade groups, office holders and regulators. Vg publicly ally with and
support trade groups, political candidates, govemtrofficials and regulators who support a particglolicy we consider important
to our business and in alignment with our prin@plegarding access to natural and organic produnctslietary supplements. We
may, from time to time, publicly oppose other tragleups, candidates, officeholders and regulattvese point of view we believe
will harm our business, or impede access to natritifood and dietary supplements. In some casesjaydose customers and sales
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because our political advocacy activities are peeckto be contrary to those customers’ pointsiefw political affiliations, political
beliefs or voting preferences.

Effective tax rate changes and results of examirats by taxing authorities could materially impactioresults of
operations.

Our future effective tax rates could be adverséflycted by our earnings mix being lower than his@rresults in states
where we have lower statutory rates and higher fiigtorical results in states where we have higheutory rates, by changes in the
valuation of our deferred tax assets and liabditie by changes in tax laws or interpretationsebirin addition, we are subject to
periodic audits and examinations by the InternaldRee Service, or the IRS, and other state and faxiamg authorities. Our results
could be materially impacted by the determinatiand expenses related to proceedings by the IR®thed state and local taxing
authorities.

Failure to maintain adequate financial and managemieprocesses and controls could lead to errors i financial
reporting and could harm our ability to manage o@xpenses.

Our anticipated growth, and continuing reportingjgdtions as a public company, are placing a caittippand considerable
strain on our financial and management systemggegses and controls, as well as on our persommatidition, as a public company,
we are required to document and test our intermiadrols over financial reporting pursuant to Setd®4 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, or Sarbanes-Oxley, so that our managememtergodically certify the effectiveness of such tots. As an “emerging growth
company,” we have opted to take advantage of ceeteémptions contained in the JOBS Act, and asuatreour independent
registered public accounting firm will not be real to formally attest to the effectiveness of imbernal control over financial
reporting pursuant to Section 404 until the lafigthe year following our first annual report reaadrto be filed with the SEC, or the
date we are no longer an “emerging growth compasydefined in the JOBS Act. We expect that we ngithain an “emerging
growth company” until the earliest of (a) the lday of our fiscal year following the fifth annivary of our IPO on July 25, 2012,

(b) the last day of our fiscal year in which we @annual gross revenue of $1.0 billion or moreti{e)date on which we have, during
the previous three-year period, issued more thab lillion in non-convertible debt, or (d) the date which we are deemed to be a
“large accelerated filer,” which will occur at sutiitne as we have (1) an aggregate worldwide maskiee of common equity
securities held by non-affiliates of $700 millionraore as of the last business day of our mosniBceompleted second fiscal
quarter, (2) been required to file annual, quaytard current reports under the Exchange Act foeréod of at least 12 calendar
months and (3) filed at least one annual reporsymmt to the Exchange Act. As a result, we mayifyuas an “emerging growth
company” until as late as September 30, 2017. & $ime, our independent registered public accogrfirm may issue a report that
is adverse in the event it is not satisfied with lgvel at which our controls are documented, shesigr operating. If our senior
management is unable to conclude that we havetiefeiaternal control over financial reporting, torcertify the effectiveness of
such controls, or if our independent registeredipwtcounting firm cannot render an unqualifiednign on management’s
assessment and the effectiveness of our intermataiaver financial reporting, or if material wessses in our internal controls are
identified, we could be subject to regulatory sieryaand a loss of public confidence, which coulddha material adverse effect on
our business and our stock price.

We are an “emerging growth company” and, althougtewdo not now believe that investors have found cammon stock
less attractive since our IPO as a result, we cahhe certain if the reduced disclosure requiremengsplicable to emerging growth
companies will make our common stock less attragtio investors in the future.

We are an “emerging growth company,” as definetthhénJOBS Act, and we may take advantage of cegt@mptions from
various reporting and other requirements that ppdi@able to other public companies that are natéeging growth companies.” For
so long as we are an “emerging growth company,ille among other things:

* not be required to comply with the auditor attéstatequirements of section 404(b) of Sarbanes-¥xle

* not be required to hold a nonbinding advisory shadéier vote on executive compensation pursuanetdi& 14A(a) of
the Exchange Act;

* not be required to seek stockholder approval ofgoiglen parachute payments not previously apprpuesuant to
Section 14A(b) of the Exchange Act;

» be exempt from any rule adopted by the Public Campeccounting Oversight Board requiring mandatangiaifirm
rotation or a supplemental auditor discussion arayais; and

* be subject to reduced disclosure obligations reggrelxecutive compensation in our periodic reparts proxy statements.
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Although we do not now believe that investors hpeerd our common stock less attractive since oQr blecause we rely
on certain of these exemptions, we cannot preflictéstors may in the future view our common stleds favorably as a result of
our “emerging growth company” status. If some Btees in the future find our common stock lessaative as a result, there may be
a less active trading market for our common stouk @ur stock price may be more volatile.

In addition, Section 107 of the JOBS Act providesttan “emerging growth company” can take advantddlee extended
transition period provided in Section 7(a)(2)(B)tleé Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or Séesivict, for complying with new
or revised accounting standards. An “emerging gnaxempany” can delay the adoption of certain actingrstandards until those
standards would otherwise apply to private commrti®wever, we chose to “opt out” of such extendladsition period, and as a
result, we have and will comply with new or revisetounting standards on the relevant dates orhwvatoption of such standards is
required for non-emerging growth companies. Section of the JOBS Act provides that our decisiongbout of the extended
transition period for complying with new or revisadcounting standards is irrevocable.

Risks related to our stock

The market price of our common stock may be volt&nd you may not be able to sell our stock ahadrable price or at
all.

The market price of our common stock is likely liectuate significantly from time to time in respert® a number of
factors, most of which we cannot control, includthgse described under “—Risks related to our mssihand the following:

« differences between our actual financial and opregaesults and those expected by investors;

fluctuations in our quarterly operating results;
» market conditions in our industry and the econosg avhole;
» changes in our earnings guidance;

 a change in the recommendation by any researclistrbht follows our stock or any failure to mewst £stimates made by
research analysts;

* investor perceptions of our prospects and the gaispf the grocery and dietary supplement indesstri
« the performance of our key vendors;

« announcements by us, our vendors or our competiggerding performance, strategy, significant agitjons, divestitures,
strategic partnerships, joint ventures or capibahmitments;

« introductions of new product or new pricing pol&igy us or our competitors;
« failure to recruit or retain key personnel; and

« the level and quality of securities research ataggerage for our common stock.

In addition, the stock markets have experiencecee price and volume fluctuations that have adf@end continue to
affect the market price of equity securities.

Our current principal stockholders have significaimfluence over us, and they could delay, detempoevent a change of
control or other business combination or otherwisause us to take action with which you might notrag.

Members of the Isely family and certain personsties and accounts subject to a stockholders aggaerelating to voting
and limitations on the sale of shares, own or @&¥.6% of our common stock. Due to their holdiofifsommon stock, members of
the Isely family are able to continue to deterntime outcome of virtually all matters submitted tockholders for approval, including
the election of directors, an amendment of ouiifegate of incorporation (except when a class vsteequired by law), any merger or
consolidation requiring common stockholder apprpaat a sale of all or substantially all of the @amy’s assets. Members of the
Isely family have the ability to prevent changeeinitrol transactions as long as they maintain gotiontrol of the Company. In
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addition, members of the Isely family and trustatoolled by them entered into a stockholders agesgry which they agreed to
aggregate their voting power with regard to thet@a of directors.

In addition, because these holders have the atiliglect all of our directors, they are able tateol our policies and
operations, including the appointment of managenfahire issuances of our common stock or otheursigzs, the payments of
dividends on our common stock and entering intoaextinary transactions, and their interests maymall cases be aligned with
your interests.

A substantial number of shares of our common staale eligible for sale, and their sale could advegsaffect our stock
price and could impair our ability to raise capitéhrough the sale of equity securities.

If certain of our stockholders sell, or the marnpetceives that certain of our stockholders intenskll, in the public market,
substantial amounts of our common stock, the maotieé of our common stock could decline signifitanThese sales also might
make it more difficult for us to sell equity or eétyurelated securities in the future at a time anide we deem appropriate. As of
December 9, 2013 we had a total of 22,442,389 shlafreommon stock outstanding. Of those, the 82Z851shares of common stock
issued in the IPO and the 226,341 shares that@sadmber 9, 2013 had been issued in connectidntiagt vesting of restricted
stock units issued under the 2012 Omnibus Inceiftiaa, are registered and freely tradable withestriction under the Securities
Act. The Company is aware that 34,947 shares heggr bold, and 419,704 shares could be sold, ingxeamsactions. Up to
approximately 13,547,112 additional shares of comstock could be sold, subject to compliance withrequirements of the
Securities Act and the stockholders agreement ammergbers of the Isely family and certain personsties and accounts. The
market price of our common stock could drop sigaifitly if the holders of restricted shares selhtlor are perceived by the market
as intending to sell them. Also, in the future, way issue shares of our common stock as a resthieafesting of up to 85,121
additional restricted stock units or in connectidth investments or acquisitions. The amount ofeb@f our common stock issued
in connection with an investment or acquisitionldatonstitute a material portion of our then outstiag shares of our common
stock.

We do not anticipate paying dividends on our cap#ock in the foreseeable future and capital appi&ion may be your
sole source of potential gain.

We anticipate that we will retain our future eagsnfor the foreseeable future, in order to fundgrowth strategy and for
general corporate purposes. The declaration anchgatyof future dividends to holders of our commtwrck will be at the discretion
of our board of directors, (our board), and wilpdad upon many factors, including our financialditan, earnings, legal
requirements, restrictions in our debt agreememisogher factors our board deems relevant. Aswtrage can make no assurance
that we will pay cash dividends to our stockholdarthe future. Capital appreciation, if any, of @@mmon stock will be your sole
source of potential gain for the foreseeable future

If securities or industry analysts do not publiskesearch or reports about our business, if they agedy change their
recommendations regarding our stock or if our opéirg results do not meet their expectations, oundit price could decline.

The trading market for our common stock is influeshdy the research and reports that industry argis analysts publish
about us or our business. If one or more of theséyats cease to cover our company or fail to ghlleports on us regularly, we may
lose visibility in the financial markets, which ddwause our stock price or trading volume to eeclMoreover, if one or more of the
analysts who cover our company downgrades our stydkour operating results do not meet theireotptions, our stock price
could decline.

Anti-takeover provisions in our organizational doments and Delaware law may discourage or prevechange in
control, even if a sale of the Company would be bgaial to our stockholders, which could cause ostock price to decline and
prevent attempts by our stockholders to replace&emove our current management.

Several provisions of our certificate of incorpavatand amended and restated bylaws could malk#idudt for our
stockholders to change the composition of our bagameventing them from changing the compositiomahagement. In addition, the
same provisions may discourage, delay or prevemtrger or acquisition that our stockholders maysier favorable.

These provisions include:

* a staggered, or classified, board of directors;

» authorizing our board to issue “blank check” prefdrstock without stockholder approval;
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* prohibiting cumulative voting in the election ofectors;
* limiting the persons who may call special meetiofjstockholders;

» prohibiting stockholders from acting by written sent after the Isely family ceases to own more 8@ of the total
voting power of our shares; and

» establishing advance notice requirements for notioing for election to our board or for proposingtiaes that can be
acted on by stockholders at stockholder meetings.

These anti-takeover provisions could substantiailyede the ability of our common stockholders todfi from a change in
control and, as a result, could materially advgradfect the market price of our common stock aodryability to realize any
potential change-in-control premium.

We are a “controlled company” within the meaning tfie NYSE Listed Company Manual, and, as a resudy on
exemptions from certain corporate governance regurrents that provide protection to stockholders tfer companies.

The Isely family, or entities controlled by thelisamily, own more than 50% of the total votingwger of our common
shares for the election of directors, and therefaeare considered a “controlled company” undercibrporate governance standards
set forth in the NYSE Listed Company Manual. Agaritrolled company,” certain exemptions under NYs&ndards free us from
the obligation to comply with certain corporate gmance requirements of the NYSE, including theliregnents:

« that a majority of our board consists of “indepamdtirectors,” as defined under the rules of theSgy

« that our director nominees be selected, or recordee:for our boards’ selection, either (1) by a migjof independent
directors in a vote by independent directors, pamsto a nominations process adopted by a boaotutem, or (2) by a
nominating and governance committee composed sofehdependent directors with a written chartedradsing the
nominations process; and

« that the compensation of our executive officerslbiermined, or recommended to the board for detettioin, by a
majority of independent directors in a vote by ipeledent directors, or a compensation committee osetpsolely of
independent directors.

Accordingly, for so long as we are a “controlledrmgzany,” you will not have the same protections iaféal to stockholders
of companies that are subject to all of the NYSEporate governance requirements.

Our costs have increased significantly as a resaflioperating as a public company, and our managemsrequired to
devote substantial time to complying with publicnapany regulations.

Prior to our IPO in fiscal year 2012, we operatadlausiness as a private company. As a public cagpnpae have incurred
and will further incur additional legal, accountjrmpmpliance and other expenses that we did nat ia€ a private company. We are
obligated to file with the SEC annual and quarteelyorts and other reports that are specified oii@e 13 and other sections of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, dexichange Act. In addition, we have, and may inftiiere, become subject to
other reporting and corporate governance requirégsnarciuding certain requirements of the NYSE, aadain provisions of
Sarbanes-Oxley and the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reford Consumer Protection Act, (Dodd-Frank), wiaichimposing or will
impose significant compliance obligations upon us.

Sarbanes-Oxley and Dodd-Frank, as well as rulesesuently implemented by the SEC and the NYSE, hapesed
enhanced corporate governance and disclosure ggadtr public companies. Our efforts to complyhwatolving laws, regulations
and standards in this regard have resulted anlikehg to continue to result in increased admirgtitre expenses and a diversion of
management’s time and attention from revenue géngractivities to compliance activities. Thesemyes have required and are
likely to continue to require a significant commént of additional capital and resources. We maybeauccessful in implementing
these requirements, and implementing them coulémadlyy adversely affect our business, resultspdrations and financial
condition. In addition, if we fail to implement thequirements with respect to our internal accagnéind audit functions, our ability
to report our operating results on a timely andueate basis could be impaired. If we do not implenseich requirements in a timely
manner or with adequate compliance, we might bgestlo sanctions or investigation by regulatorthauties, such as the SEC or
the NYSE. Any such action could harm our reputatiad the confidence of investors and customersiirtompany and materially
adversely affect our business and cause our shiaeetp fall.
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.
Not applicable.
Item 2. Properties.

As of September 30, 2013, we had 72 stores lo¢atd8 states, as shown in the chart below:

Number
State of Stores
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In the fiscal years ended September 30, 2013 ahd, 2@ opened 13 and ten new stores, respectdeahyng fiscal year
2014, through the date of this report, we have egd¢hree new stores in Tulsa, Oklahoma, Idaho Hdégo and Wichita Falls,
Texas. We have signed leases for an additionalafitfee 15 new stores expected to open in fiscal 2814.

Our home office is located in Lakewood, Coloradae ¥¢cupy our home office under a lease for apprateiy 35,000
square feet that expires in 2026; this facilitgaslocated with one of our stores. Additionallye hvave a bulk food repackaging
facility and distribution center located in Gold€glorado.

All of our stores and facilities are leased, wittrying terms and renewal options. Lease terms djlgicange between ten
and 20 years, with additional renewal options. Wendt believe that any individual store propertynisterial to our financial
condition or results of operations. Of the curideases for our stores, none expire in fiscal yg€dA2two expire in fiscal year 2015,
five expire in fiscal year 2016, one expires itéisyear 2017 and the remainder will expire betwisral years 2018 and 2034. We
expect that we will be able to renegotiate theaeds or relocate these stores as necessary.

In addition to new store openings, we remodel wcage stores periodically in order to improve pariance. For fiscal year
2014, we plan to remodel two stores.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

We periodically are involved in various legal predings that are incidental to the conduct of owifess, including but not
limited to employment discrimination claims, custarmjury claims and investigations. When the ptiédfiability from a matter can
be estimated and the loss is considered probabklecgord the estimated loss. Due to uncertaingiesed to the resolution of
lawsuits, investigations and claims, the ultimatecome may differ from our estimates. Although vaamot predict with certainty the
ultimate resolution of any lawsuits, investigati@msl claims asserted against us, we do not bedieyeurrently pending legal
proceeding to which we are a party will have a maltadverse effect on our business, prospectanéial condition, cash flows or
results of operations.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.

Not applicable.
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PART Il
ltem 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Efty Securities.

Market Information

Our common stock has traded on the NYSE undentimbdasl “NGVC” since July 25, 2012, following the pimg of our
IPO. Prior to that date, there was no public miafteeour common stock.

Price Range of Our Common Stock

The following table shows the high and low salegsiper share of our common stock as quoted bMYI®E for the 2013
fiscal year periods and fourth quarter of fiscary2012 following the $15.00 pricing of our IPO duly 25, 2012:

Year ended September 30, 2013 High Low

First Quarter (October 1, 2012 — December 31, 2012)............ $ 25.00 $ 17.45
Second Quarter (January 1, 2013 — March 31, 2013)............. 23.4¢ 17.47
Third Quarter (April 1, 2013 — June 30, 2013)...cccccvvvvrveeerenrnnn. 34.3¢ 21.00
Fourth Quarter (July 1, 2013 — September 30, 2013).............. 42.8¢ 29.24
Year ended September 30, 2012 High Low

Fourth Quarter (from July 25, 2012 — Septembe28Q2)........... $ 23.30 ¢ 17.20

Holders of Record

As of September 30, 2013, there were 105 holdersanird of our common stock, and the closing poiceur common stock
was $39.70.

Dividend Policy

We anticipate that we will retain our future eagsnfor the foreseeable future, in order to fundgrowth strategy and for
general corporate purposes. The declaration anchgrtyof future dividends to holders of our commtuotk will be at the discretion
of our board and will depend upon many factorsluiding our financial condition, earnings, legalugements, and restrictions in our
debt agreements and other factors our board desdensant. Additionally, the revolving credit facylito which we are a party under
which JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., or the bank, seagethe lender and administrative agent prohibé&gpayment of cash dividends
to Natural Grocers by Vitamin Cottage, Inc., thédimgy company, from Vitamin Cottage Natural Foodrks, Inc., the operating
company, without the bank’s consent except whedefault or event of default exists. If no defadtevent of default exists,
dividends are allowed for various audit, accountiag, securities, indemnification, reimbursemémurance and other reasonable
expenses in the ordinary course of business.

Performance Graph

The graph below compares the cumulative returtémeholders of our common stock relative to the ative total returns
of the NYSE Composite Index and the S&P Food Rétaiéx from July 25, 2012 to September 30, 2013¢kvis the amount of time
our stock has been trading publicly following oBQ on July 25, 2012. The graph tracks the perfoomaf a $100 investment in
our common stock and in each of the indexes fromZii, 2012 to September 30, 2013. The stock gr@éormance included in this
graph is not necessarily indicative of future stpcke performance.
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Use of Proceeds From Registered Securities

None.

Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities

None.

Iltem 6. Selected Financial Data.

The following selected financial data presentedwas derived from the Company’s consolidated friahstatements and
should be read in conjunction with “Item 1A. Riskdors,” “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and As&lyf Financial Condition
and Results of Operations” and “Item 8. Financiat&nents and Supplementary Data.” Our historigsillts set forth below are not
necessarily indicative of results to be expectedafty future period.

Year ended September 30,

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Statements of Income Datadollars in

thousands:
NEt SAIES......ceviiiiie e $ 430,655 336,385 264,544 226,910 206,080
Cost of goods sold and occupancy costs........ 304,922 237,328 187,162 159,797 145,937

GroSS Profit ....eeeeeeiiciveeeeeeiiiiieecc e seiieeeee e 125,733 99,057 77,382 67,113 60,143
StOre EXPENSES .....cocviiiiiiiiiiiee e ereeeee e 89,935 72,157 57,610 47,162 41,992
Administrative eXpenses .........ccccceeeeeeeeeazeenn, 13,479 12,733 10,397 9,631 8,619
Pre-opening and relocation expenses............. 3,231 2,173 1,964 1,293 1,236

Operating iNCOMEe ........ccccuvvviiiiiieeeccceeiiiaes 19,088 11,994 7,411 9,027 8,296
Other income (expense):
INtEreSt EXPENSE ..vvvveieeereeieeieeee e e s e e (2,166) (568) (66P (967) (1,146)
Other income (expense), Net ........cccccvveeeeeenn.. 9 6 35 3 (60)

Income before income taxes............ccocuueeee. 16,931 11,432 6,777 8,063 7,090
Provision for income taxes ..........ccccccvuvennnnnn. (6,379) (3,955) (2,197 (2,466) (2,039)

NEt INCOME ..ooooviiiiiiiiee it 10,552 7,477 4,610 5,597 5,051
Net income attributable to noncontrolling inter — (828) (1,108 (1,189) (1,513)

Net income attributable to Natural Grocers by

Vitamin Cottage, INC. ....ccevvvvvvveeiieieiieecmnn. $ 10,552 6,649 3,504 4,408 3,538
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Year ended September 30,

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Per Share Data:
Net income attributable to Natural Grocers

Vitamin Cottage, Inc. per common share

BASIC .vveiiiiiiiiiiiee e $ 0.47 0.30 0.16 0.20 0.16

Diluted ..ooeeeiiiiiiieee e $ 0.47 0.30 0.16 0.20 0.16
Shares used in computation of net income

attributable to Natural Grocers by Vitamin

Cottage, Inc. per common share

BASIC .vvviiieeeiiiiiiie e 22,399,346 22,372,184  22,372,1842,372,184 22,372,184

Diluted ..ooooeiiiiiiieee e 22,441,382 22,463,093  22,461,40%22,461,405 22,461,405
Pro Forma Statements of Income Data

(Unaudited) (dollars in thousand¥1):
Income before income taxes .........cccccceeeeeeeees $ 16,931 11,432 6,777 8,063 7,090
Pro forma provision for income taxes.............. (6,379 (4,264) (2,589 (2,892) (2,592)
Pro forma net income attributable to Natural

Grocers by Vitamin Cottage, Inc.................. $ 10,552 7,168 4,188 5,171 4,498
Pro Forma Per Share Data (Unaudited)2):
Pro forma net income per common share

BASIC evvviiiieiiiiiiiie e $ 0.47 0.32 0.19 0.23 0.20

Diluted ..ooooeiiiiiiiiee e $ 0.47 0.32 0.19 0.23 0.20
Other Financial Data (Unaudited) dollars in

thousands:
EBITDA(3) evveeeeeiiiiiiieeee s iiiieemmsibeeee e $ 32,593 21,949 15,137 14,540 12,442
EBITDA Margin(4) ..ccccceeeevviiiiieeeeiivieeeneeeee e 7.6% 6.5 5.7 6.4 6.0
Other Operating Data (Unaudited):
Number of stores at end of pefi....................... 72 59 49 39 33
Change in comparable store sales(5)............. 10.8% 11.6 4.9 2.1 2.6
Change in daily average comparable store

SAUES(5) vvviieiiiiiiii e 11.1% 11.3 4.9 2.1 2.9
Change in mature store sales(6).............c.c..... 6.1% 7.6 2.0 0.2 2.8
Change in daily average mature store sales(6) 6.4 7.3 2.0 0.2 3.1
Gross square footage at end of period(7)........ 1,097,708 801,914 619,172 472,393 401,919
Selling square footage at end of period(7)...... 728,609 572,132 459,435 360,764 309,792
Average comparable store size (gross square

feet)(8) v, 13,900 12,816 12,239 12,328 12,189
Average comparable store size (selling square

fEEL)(8) wivveeiiiiiie e 9,872 9,458 9,284 9,483 9,640
Comparable store sales per selling square foot

during period(9) .....ooeveeiiiiiiee $ 729 734 720 730 773

As of September 30,
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Selected Balance Sheet Datddgllars in

thousands:
Cash and cash equivalents .........ccccccvceeeeeean.s, $ 8,132 17,291 37¢ 446 2,140
Total @SSEtS ..uvveeiiiiiiiiiiie e 159,903 125,662 78,91! 60,272 48,565
Total debt(10) ....oeveeviiiiiiiieiiiieee e, 19,822 5,808 28,44. 23,748 20,410
Total stockholders’ equity .............eevvieeeemeeennns 84,533 72,949 15,92 12,307 7,791

(1) In connection with our IPO in the fourth quarterfistal year 2012, we purchased the 45% noncoirigoihterest in BVC not
previously owned by us. Prior to the purchasénefrtoncontrolling interest, we held a controllirg@®interest in BVC for all
periods presented. As such, our consolidatedrstatts of income include the revenues and experi€gg© for the fiscal
years ended September 30, 2012, 2011, 2010 anda20@@uired by generally accepted accounting ipteein the United
States of America (GAAP). We previously reporteel #5% of BVC's net income as net income attribigablnoncontrolling
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(2)

3)

interest in our consolidated statements of incoonehfe periods in which we did not own 100% of BVie pro forma
financial data presented above illustrates whahetiincome would have been had we owned 100% & BV the fiscal years
ended September 30, 2012, 2011, 2010 and 2009 eft@gtive tax rate increased as a result of th€Bi¢quisition, as the
income attributable to the noncontrolling intereals nontaxable income prior to the acquisition,iuicluded in our taxable
income after the acquisition. The following tabéeonciles our effective tax rate to our pro forrffactive tax rate had we
owned 100% of BVC for the fiscal years ended Septr30, 2012, 2011, 2010 and 2009:

Year ended September 30,

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Statutory tax rate ......ccceeeeviiiiieiiiiin. 34.0% 34.0 34.0 34.0 34.0
Nontaxable net income attributable

noncontrolling interest .................cooeees — 2.7) (6.2) (5.3) (7.7)
State income taxes, net of federal

iNCOME taX EXPENSE .....cceeeeeveeveeiiiieennnns 3.3 3.0 3.4 2.5 3.1
Other, Nt ....cvvvvieeiie e 0.4 0.3 0.8 (0.6) (0.6)

Effective tax rate .....cccceeeeieiiiiiiiiiiieeen, 37.7 34.6 32.0 30.6 28.8
Pro forma adjustment to exclude nontaxable

net income attributable to noncontrolling

1] (=T (=T PR — 2.7 6.2 5.3 7.7

Pro forma effective tax rate .................... 37.7% 37.3 38.2 35.9 36.5

Effective October 31, 2012, BVC merged with an@ iour operating company and ceased to exist.

Pro forma per share data is calculated using pradaet income had we owned 100% of BVC for thealiyears ended
September 30, 2012, 2011, 2010 and 2009, as distabove, divided by basic and diluted weightedagye shares outstanding
for those fiscal periods.

Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation amatigzation, or EBITDA, is not a measure of finaadgierformance under
GAAP. We define EBITDA as net income attributaldeNatural Grocers by Vitamin Cottage, Inc. beforeiest expense,
provision for income tax, depreciation and amotiaa and for the fiscal years ended Septembe2@02, 2011, 2010 and
2009, net income attributable to the noncontrolimegrest. We believe EBITDA provides additiongbirmation about (i) our
operating performance, because it assists us ipaony the operating performance of our stores oconsistent basis, as it
removes the impact of non-cash depreciation andtaaton expense as well as items not directlyitesy from our core
operations such as interest expense and income aaxk(ii) our performance and the effectivenessunfoperational strategies.
Additionally, EBITDA is a measure in our debt coaets under the credit facility, and our incentieenpensation plans base
incentive compensation payments on our EBITDA penfince.

Furthermore, management believes some investerEBETDA as a supplemental measure to evaluatevbell operating
performance of companies in our industry. Managdrhelieves that some investors’ understanding ofp@uformance is
enhanced by including this non-GAAP financial measas a reasonable basis for comparing our ongesgts of operations.
By providing this non-GAAP financial measure, tdgatwith a reconciliation from net income attrithl&ato Natural Grocers
by Vitamin Cottage, Inc., we believe we are enhag@nvestors’ understanding of our business andesults of operations, as
well as assisting investors in evaluating how wadlare executing our strategic initiatives. Our petitors may define
EBITDA differently, and as a result, our measur&BITDA may not be directly comparable to EBITDAaher companies.
Items excluded from EBITDA are significant compotsein understanding and assessing financial pegoom. EBITDA is a
supplemental measure of operating performancelties not represent and should not be considerisdlation or as an
alternative to, or substitute for net income oreotfinancial statement data presented in our cateteld financial statements as
indicators of financial performance. EBITDA hasiliations as an analytical tool, and should not tres@ered in isolation, or
as a substitute for analysis of our results asrtegainder GAAP. Some of the limitations are:

» EBITDA does not reflect our cash expendituresubure requirements for capital expenditures or remtaal
commitments;

» EBITDA does not reflect changes in, or cash reguéets for, our working capital needs;

» EBITDA does not reflect any impact for straightdirent expense for leases classified as capitaliaaiacing lease
obligations;
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(4)

(%)

(6)

(7)

(8)

» EBITDA does not reflect the interest expense, erdhsh requirements necessary to service intergsingipal payments
on our debt;

» EBITDA does not reflect our tax expense or the aasfuirements to pay our taxes; and

« although depreciation and amortization are non-casinges, the assets being depreciated and antowilteften have to
be replaced in the future and EBITDA does not eéféay cash requirements for such replacements.

Due to these limitations, EBITDA should not be ddased as a measure of discretionary cash avaitahis to invest in the
growth of our business. We compensate for theséaliions by relying primarily on our GAAP resultschusing EBITDA as
supplemental information. We further believe that presentation of this non-GAAP financial measwgatprovides
information that is useful to analysts and investogcause it is an important indicator of the gjtief our operations and the
performance of our business.

The following table reconciles net income attritioléeto Natural Grocers by Vitamin Cottage, IncEBITDA, dollars in
thousands:

Year ended September 30,

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Net inccme attributable to
Natural Grocers by Vitamin
Cottage, INC....coeevvvvvvennennn, $ 10,552 6,649 3,504 4,408 3,53¢
Net income attributable to
noncontrolling interest..... — 828 1,106 1,189 1,51
NEet iNCOMH......ccvvvieeeeiiiiiiieeees 10,552 7,477 4,610 5,597 5,051
Interest expense................ 2,166 568 669 967 1,14¢
Provision for income taxes. 6,379 3,955 2,167 2,466 2,03¢
Depreciation and
amortization.................... 13,496 9,949 7,691 5,510 4,20¢
EBITDA ... $ 32,593 21,949 15,137 14,540 12,44

EBITDA margin is defined as the ratio of EBITDA et sales. We present EBITDA margin because isésllby management
as a performance measurement of EBITDA generatad fret sales. See footnote (3) above for a discusgiEBITDA as a
non-GAAP financial measure and a reconciliatiometffincome to EBITDA.

When calculating change in comparable store saledegin to include sales from a store in our caalgle store base on the
first day of the thirteenth full month followingdtstore’s opening. We monitor the percentage chamgemparable store sales
by comparing sales from all stores in our comp&abdre base for a reporting period against sedes the same stores for the
same number of operating months in the comparalplerting period of the prior year. When a storé ihancluded in
comparable store sales is remodeled or relocatedowtinue to consider sales from that store todmeparable store sales.
When calculating daily average comparable storessale include the comparable store sales divigaddonumber of selling
days in each period. We use this metric to rentbgesffect of differences in the number of sellitays we are open during the
comparable periods.

When calculating change in mature store sales,agétio include sales from a store in our matuveesbase after the store has
been open for any part of five fiscal years (foample, our mature stores for fiscal year 2013 &mes that opened during or
before fiscal year 2008). We monitor the percentdgmge in mature store sales by comparing salesdtl stores in our
mature store base for a reporting period agaires $eom the same stores for the same number ohtipg months in the
comparable reporting period of the prior year. Whestore that is included in mature store salesnsdeled or relocated, we
continue to consider sales from that store to beeireatore sales. When calculating daily averagture store sales, we
include the mature store sales divided by the nurobselling days in each period. We use this imétrremove the effect of
differences in the number of selling days we arenoguring the comparable periods.

Gross square footage and selling square footatle @nd of the period include the square footagalfstores that were open
as of the end of the period presented.

Average comparable store size for gross squarafekselling square feet are calculated using\tbeage store size for all
stores that were in the comparable store baseths ehd of the period presented.
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(9) Comparable store sales per selling square foalésilated using comparable store sales for th@g@ativided by the weighted
average selling square feet per store based amtbent of time the store was included in the cowplerstore base during the
period.

(10) Total debt includes capital and financing éabligations, notes payable to related partiesptiistanding principal balance of
our term loan and outstanding borrowings on ouolkgrg credit facility. As of September 30, 201e term loan was fully
repaid. As of September 30, 2013, the notes payalrielated parties was fully repaid. As of bS#ptember 30, 2013 and
September 30, 2102, no amounts were outstandingr unat revolving credit facility.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Rancial Condition and Results of Operations.

The following Management’s Discussion and Analydiginancial Condition and Results of Operation@A) should be
read in conjunction with our consolidated finanattements and notes thereto and “Selected Faldbata,” which are included
elsewhere in this report on Form 10-K. This disaursand analysis contains forward-looking statemeiRefer to Forward-Looking
Statementsat the beginning of this report on Form 10-K #or explanation of these types of statements. efdirences to a “fiscal
year” refer to a year beginning on October 1 ofghevious year, and ending on September 30 of geah(for example “fiscal year
2013" refers to the year from October 1, 2012 tptSmber 30, 2013). Summarized numbers includeklisnsection, and
corresponding percentage or basis point changesotasum due to the effects of rounding

Company Overview

We operate natural and organic grocery and dietiapyplement stores that are focused on providinky gigality products at
affordable prices, exceptional customer servic#jtan education and community outreach. We beliese have been at the
forefront of the natural and organic foods movensémte our founding. We are headquartered in Lake\w@olorado, and as of
September 30, 2013, we operated 72 stores in f&&stacluding Colorado, Arizona, Idaho, Kansassdduri, Montana, Nebraska,
New Mexico, Oklahoma, Oregon, Texas, Utah and Wyagmas well as a bulk food repackaging facility digtribution center in
Colorado.

We offer a variety of natural and organic grocesrd dietary supplements that meet our strict tugliidelines. The size of
our stores varies from 5,000 to 16,000 selling sgfieet. For the year ended September 30, 201 3)eu stores averaged
approximately 11,500 selling square feet.

The growth in the organic and natural foods induatrd growing consumer interest in health and tioitrihas enabled us to
continue to open new stores and enter new mairkefiscal year 2013, we opened 13 new stores, ¢h eéfiscal years 2012 and
2011, we opened ten new stores, and in each @il ffgars 2010 and 2009, we opened six new storesuifently plan to open 15
new stores in fiscal year 2014, three of which wereed in Oklahoma, Idaho and Texas between Sept&3@ib2013 and the date of
the filing of this report on Form 10-K. As of thate of this report, we have signed leases fodditianal nine new store locations
expected to open in fiscal year 2014 in Coloradahb, Kansas, New Mexico, Oregon, Utah and Washingt

Performance Highlights

Key highlights of our recent performance are disedsbriefly below and are discussed in furtheriti#stieoughout this
MD&A. Key financial metrics, including, but nottiited to, comparable store sales, daily averaggacable store sales, mature
store sales and daily average mature store saadefined under the caption “Key Financial Metiit©ur Business,” presented later
in this MD&A.

* Net sales.Net sales were $430.7 million for the year endegt&aber 30, 2013, which is a $94.3 million, or 28,0
increase compared to net sales of $336.4 millionHe year ended September 30, 2012. Net salesaised at a compound
annual growth rate of 27.6% from fiscal year 20d figcal year 2013.

» Comparable store salesComparable store sales for the year ended Septe38b2013 increased 10.8% over the year
ended September 30, 2012. As of September 30, 2@l Bave had over 45 consecutive quarters of pesitbmparable
store sales growth.

+ Daily average comparable store saleBaily average comparable store sales for the geded September 30, 2013
increased 11.1% over the year ended Septembe03@, 2

» Mature store sales.Mature store sales for the year ended Septemh&033 increased 6.1% over the year ended
September 30, 2012. For fiscal year 2013, matores include all stores open during or beforeafigear 2008.
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Daily average mature store sale®aily average mature store sales for the yearcdeSeptember 30, 2013 increased 6.4%
over the year ended September 30, 2012.

Net income.Net income was $10.6 million for the year endedt&aper 30, 2013 which increased $3.1 million, orl24,
when compared to net income of $7.5 million for ylkear ended September 30, 2012.

Net income attributable to Natural Grocers by VitarGottage, Inc.Net income attributable to Natural Grocers by
Vitamin Cottage, Inc. was $10.6 million for the yeaded September 30, 2013, an increase of $3li@mibr 58.7%,
when compared to net income attributable to Nat@rakers by Vitamin Cottage, Inc. of $6.6 milliar the year ended
September 30, 2012.

EBITDA. EBITDA was $32.6 million in the year ended Septeng&f 2013, which increased $10.6 million, or 48,5%
from $21.9 million in the year ended September280,2. EBITDA is not a measure of financial perfarmoe under
GAAP. Refer to the “Selected Financial Data” sattid this report on Form 10-K for a definition oBH DA and a
reconciliation of net income attributable to Natu®aocers by Vitamin Cottage, Inc. to EBITDA.

Liquidity. As of September 30, 2013, cash and cash equivales$8.1 million, restricted cash was $0.5 million
available-for-sale securities was $1.1 million, dmere was $15.0 million available under our $1&illion revolving
credit facility.

New store growthWe have opened 45 new stores since the beginnifigcaf year 2009, ending with 72 stores as of
September 30, 2013. We opened 13, ten and tentoess $n the years ended September 30, 2013, 261 2Gi 1,
respectively. New store compound annual growth wats 21.2% from fiscal year 2011 to fiscal yeat30

Industry Trends and Economics

Outlook

We have identified the following recent trends &mctors that have impacted and may continue to énpar results of
operations and financial condition:

Opportunities in the growing natural and organicogery and dietary supplements indust@ur industry, which includes
organic and natural foods and dietary supplement#jinues to experience growth driven primarilyifigreased public
interest in health and nutrition. Capitalizing distopportunity, we continued to open new stomedpiding 13 new stores
during the year ended September 30, 2013, and dgpganto new geographies, including Oregon. Apen new stores,
our results of operations have been and may cantmbe materially adversely affected based ottithieg and number of
new stores we open, their initial sales and nesdeasts. The length of time it takes for a nexsesto become profitable
can vary depending on a number of factors incluttiegtion, competition, a new market versus antexjanarket, the
strength of store management, general economidteamg] and the amount of time it takes for theestm become
“mature”. New stores generally have lower salasgared to stores that have been open for longarfiba years. Once a
new store is open, it typically grows at a fastgethan mature stores for several years aftep#sing date. Mature stores
are stores that have been open for any part ofifeal years or longer.

In addition, as we expand across the U.S. and emdekets where consumers may not be as familidr eut brand, we
seek to secure prime real estate locations fostmues to establish greater visibility with consusnia those markets. This
strategy has resulted in higher lease costs iggdhe ended September 30, 2013 and we anticipate thereased costs
continuing into the foreseeable future. Our finahesults for the year ended September 30, 26fi&ct the effects of
these factors, and we anticipate future periodsb&iimpacted likewise.

Impact of broader economic trend§he grocery industry and our sales are affectegdmeral economic conditions,
including, but not limited to, consumer spendingyreomic conditions, the level of disposable consumespme, consumer
debt, interest rates, the price of commodities pibigical environment and consumer confidence.ibythe year ended
September 30, 2013, consumer confidence and comsyerding continued to increase, and these pesttenomic
trends were reflected in our results of operatuaiuning the year ended September 30, 2013. Intbk/¢ months ended
September 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 our comparabie stles grew 10.8%, 11.6% and 4.9%, respectively.

We believe there are several key factors that bawéributed to our success and will enable us tdicoe to expand
profitably and increase our comparable store salekiding a loyal customer base, increasing basizet growing consumer interest
in nutrition and wellness, a differentiated shopéxperience that focuses on customer servicdtionteducation and a shopper
friendly retail environment, and our focus on higlality, affordable natural and organic grocerieg dietary supplements.
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We plan for the foreseeable future to continue amenew stores and entering new markets at or abenent levels of
growth. During the past few years, we have sucagsixpanded our infrastructure to enable us fapsut our continued growth.
This has included successfully implementing our BR&tem, hiring key personnel and developing efitieffective new store
opening construction and operations processesaockting and expanding our bulk food repackagauiity and distribution center
in September of fiscal year 2012. We plan to imp@at a HRIS in fiscal year 2014 which we believé allow us to more efficiently
and effectively onboard and train our employeealdbcations.

We believe there are attractive opportunities ftaicontinue to expand our store base and fociuiscosasing comparable
store sales. As we continue to expand our store, es believe there are opportunities for incredseerage in fixed costs, such as
administrative expenses, as well as increased eties®f scale in sourcing products. However, dueur commitment to providing
high-quality products at affordable prices, sucremg economies may not be reflected in our gnaggin in the near term.
Additionally, higher fixed costs of our bulk foodpackaging facility and distribution center reqgtfrom the September 2012
relocation and expansion may not be offset byIrptaie changes or volume increases in the near.ter

Our operating results may be affected by a vanéipternal and external factors and trends desdrimore fully in the
section “Risk Factors” contained elsewhere in thj®rt on Form 10-K.

Key Financial Metrics in Our Business
In assessing our performance, we consider a vasfgigrformance and financial measures. The keysorea are as follows:
Net sales

Our net sales are comprised of gross sales nésa@duhts, in-house coupons, returns and allowamcenmparing net sales
between periods we monitor the following:

» Change in comparable store saléale begin to include sales from a store in comparatiire sales on the first day of the
thirteenth full month following the store’s openinde monitor the percentage change in comparabte stales by
comparing sales from all stores in our comparatolieedhase for a reporting period against sales fr@same stores for
the same number of operating months in the comfearaporting period of the prior year. When a st is included in
comparable store sales is remodeled or relocatedowtinue to consider sales from that store todmeparable store sales.
Our comparable store sales data may not be presentthe same basis as our competitors. We udertine'new stores”
to refer to stores that have been open for lessttiiteen months.

» Change in daily average comparable store salPsily average comparable store sales are cofleastore sales divided
by the number of selling days in each period. Weethis metric to remove the effect of differenaeshie number of selling
days we are open during the comparable periodsy@aeended September 30, 2013 had one less sédlinthan the year
ended September 30, 2012 due to the occurreneapfyfear in the year ended September 30, 2012.

» Change in mature store sale¥/e begin to include sales from a store in matweestales after the store has been open for
any part of five fiscal years (for example, our vnatstores for fiscal year 2013 are stores thanegeluring or before
fiscal year 2008). We monitor the percentage ceangnature store sales by comparing sales frost@lés in our mature
store base for a reporting period against sales fie same stores for the same number of openatimghs in the
comparable reporting period of the prior year. Whestore that is included in mature store salesn®deled or relocated,
we continue to consider sales from that store tmaeire store sales. Our mature store sales datamotde presented on
the same basis as our competitors.

» Change in daily average mature store salBsiily average mature store sales are mature sates divided by the number
of selling days in each period. We use this métriemove the effect of differences in the numidesatling days during
the comparable periods. The year ended Septemb@038 had one less selling day than the year e8dptember 30,
2012 due to the occurrence of leap year in the gaded September 30, 2012.

Transaction countTransaction count represents the number of traiosecteported at our stores over such period and
includes transactions that are voided, return &etisns and exchange transactions.

» Average transaction sizéAverage transaction size is calculated by dividieg sales by transaction count for a given time
period. We use this metric to track the trendsvierage dollars spent in our stores per customasaicion.
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Cost of goods sold and occupancy costs

Our cost of goods sold and occupancy costs indlueleost of inventory sold during the period (nfediscounts and
allowances), shipping and handling costs, distrdsuand supply chain costs (including the costsufbulk food repackaging
facility), buying costs, shrink and store occupanogts. Store occupancy costs include rent, comanem maintenance and real estate
taxes. Depreciation expense included in cost oflg@mld relates to depreciation of assets direrstyd at our bulk food repackaging
facility. The components of our cost of goods smd occupancy costs may not be identical to tbbseir competitors, and as a
result, our cost of goods sold and occupancy ats included in this report on Form 10-K may neidentical to those of our
competitors, and may not be comparable to sim#éaa dhade available by our competitors. Occupansis@s a percentage of sales
typically decrease as new stores mature and ineisses. We do not record straight-line rent expémsost of goods sold and
occupancy costs for the leases classified as ¢apitefinancing lease obligations, but rather patments are recognized as a
reduction of the related obligations and as inteegpense. Additionally, depreciation expense eeldb the capitalized asset is
recorded in store expenses.

Gross profit and gross margin

Gross profit is equal to our net sales less our @bgoods sold and occupancy costs. Gross masgimoiss profit as a
percentage of sales. Gross margin is impacted &gges in retail prices, product costs, occupansyscand the mix of products
sold, as well as the rate at which we open nevestor

Store expenses

Store expenses consist of store level expenseds,asusalary and benefits, share-based compenssttippljes, utilities,
depreciation, advertising, bank credit card chaegesother related costs associated with operaindgpurchasing support.
Depreciation expense included in store expensatersto depreciation for assets directly usedeastibres including depreciation on
capitalized real estate leases, land improvemkrasehold improvements, fixtures and equipmentcamaputer hardware and
software. Additionally, store expenses include gain or loss recorded on the disposal of fixe@tssprimarily related to store
relocations. The majority of store expenses arepemed of salary related expenses which we clasggage and which trend closely
with sales. Labor related expenses as a perceofagdes tend to be higher at new stores comparedrhparable stores, as new
stores require a certain level of staffing in orttemaintain adequate levels of customer servicebioed with lower sales. As new
stores increase their sales, labor related expassepercentage of sales typically decrease.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses consist of home officeteglaexpenses, such as salary and benefits, sheed-bampensation,
office supplies, hardware and software expensgsedmtion and amortization expense, occupancyscostluding rent, common
area maintenance, real estate taxes and utilipesfessional services expenses, expenses assbwiditeour board and other general
and administrative expenses. Depreciation expemeded in administrative expenses relates to aégiien for assets directly used
at the home office including depreciation on lamgpiovements, leasehold improvements, fixtures augpenent and computer
hardware and software. We expect that our admértigé expenses will continue to increase in fupgdods due to additional legal,
accounting, insurance, share-based compensatioathedexpenses we have incurred and will conttouecur as a result of being a
public company.

Pre-opening and relocation expenses

Pre-opening and relocation expenses may includessgrense, salaries, advertising, supplies and otfecellaneous costs
incurred prior to the store opening. Rent expesggenerally incurred from one to four months pt@a store’s opening date for store
leases classified as operating. For store leaassified as capital or financing leases, no prazimgerent expense is recognized.
Other pre-opening and relocation expenses are giénarcurred in the 60 days prior to the storeripg. Certain advertising and
promotional costs associated with opening a nere stay be incurred both before and after the sipems. All pre-opening and
relocation costs are expensed as incurred.

Operating income

Operating income consists of gross profit lesseséxpenses, administrative expenses and pre-opanthgelocation
expenses. Operating income can be impacted by aewwf factors, including the timing of new stoeeaings and store relocations,
whether or not a store lease is classified as anatipg or a capital or financing lease, as welhaseases in store expenses and
administrative expenses. The amount of time itd¢dke new stores to become profitable can vary deijpg on a number of factors,
including location, competition, a new market veram existing market, the strength of store managgngeneral economic
conditions and the amount of time it takes a nesesto become mature.
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Interest expense

Interest expense consists of the interest assdamth capital and financing lease obligationstetast expense also includes
interest we pay on our outstanding indebtednesighwhcludes our revolving credit facility and ridd party notes payable. As of
September 30, 2012, the term loan was fully repaisl of September 30, 2013, the notes payabldatekparties was fully repaid.
As of both September 30, 2013 and September 3@, 2il0amounts were outstanding under our revolemegit facility.

Results of Operations

The following table presents key components ofresults of operations expressed as a percentawet eéles for the
periods presented:
Year ended September 30,

2013 2012 2011

Statements of Income Data:*
Nt SAIES....uiiiiiiiie e 100.0% 100.0 100.0
Cost of goods sold and occupancy costs ................ 70.8 70.6 70.7

Gross Profit ... 29.2 29.4 29.3
SEOre EXPENSES ...t reeeee e e e 20.9 215 21.8
Administrative eXpenses .........ccoeeeeiiiiccccccee e 3.1 3.8 3.9
Pre-opening and relocation expenses ......cccccceeun..... 0.8 0.6 0.7

Operating iNCOME .......uuviiiiiiiiiieeieeeeeeeeee e 4.4 3.6 2.9
INtEreSt EXPENSE ..ovvvvieiieee e eeeeeee e (0.5) (0.2) (0.3)

Income before income taxes ...........ccccevveeeeernnenn. 3.9 3.4 2.6
Provision for inCOme taxXxes .......ccccccvveeeeeeeeeeeiiciieens (1.5) (1.2) (0.9)

NEtINCOME ...viiiiiie e s 25 2.2 1.7
Net income attributable to noncontrolling inter......... — (0.2) (0.4)

Net income attributable to Natural Grocers by Vitam

Cottage, INC. .oooeeevieeeeee e 2.5% 2.0 1.3

*Figures may not sum due to rounding.
Other Operating Data:
Number of stores at end of per.........cccccvinn. 72 59 49
Store unit count increase period over period............ 22.0% 20.4 25.6
Change in comparable store sales .. 10.8% 11.6 4.9
Change in daily average comparable store sales ..... 11.1% 11.3 4.9
Change in mature store sales...........ccoeeeeeeeeriiniiinnnee 6.1% 7.6 2.0
Change in daily average mature store sales............. 6.4% 7.3 2.0

Year ended September 30, 2013 compared to the gded September 30, 2012

The following table summarizes our results of opers and other operating data for the periodsgmtesl, dollars in
thousands:

Year ended September 30, Increase (Decrease)
2013 2012 Dollars Percent
Statements of Income Data:

NEE SAIES. ..o $ 430,655 336,385 94,270 28.0%
Cost of goods sold and occupancy COStS ....ccccceeu....eee 304,922 237,328 67,594 28.5
GroSs Profit .....oooveiiiiiiieee e 125,733 99,057 26,676 26.9

SEOre EXPENSES ...t eee e e e e 89,935 72,157 7,778 24.6

AdMINIStrative EXPENSES .......vvveiiiiviiiiececereeeeeeeaeeeeenennnn 13,479 12,733 746 5.9

Pre-opening and relocation eXpenses ......cccceeeeveeeenn.. 3,231 2,173 1,058 48.7
Operating iNCOME ......cccccvvvviiiiiieeeer e e 19,088 11,994 7,094 59.1
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Year ended September 30, Increase (Decrease)

2013 2012 Dollars Percent
Other income (expense):
Dividends and interest inCOmMe .............coeeeeeeeeenn. 9 6 3 50.0
INtErest EXPENSE .....uuiviiiiiiieieeeee et (2,166) (568) (1859 281.3
Income before income taxes .........ccccveeeveeeeeennnn. 16,931 11,432 5,499 48.1
Provision for income taxes .........cccccvuumiiviiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeen. (6,379) (3,955) (2,424 61.3
NEt INCOME ..eoiiiiiiiiiiie et e 10,552 7,477 3,075 141.
Net income attributable to noncontrolling inter............. — (828) 828 (100.0)
Net income attributable to Natural Grocers by
Vitamin Cottage, INC. .....oovveiiiiiiiiiiiiee, $ 10,552 6,649 3,903 58.7%
Net sales

Net sales increased $94.3 million, or 28.0%, to0A3nillion for the year ended September 30, 204Bpared to $336.4
million for the year ended September 30, 2012 pilgndue to a $58.2 million increase in new stoates and a $36.1 million, or
10.8%, increase in comparable store sales. Dadya@e comparable store sales increased 11.1%«fgetr ended September 30,
2013 as compared to the year ended September BB, PBe daily average comparable store sales isenas primarily driven by a
5.9% increase in daily average transaction couthtza#h.9% increase in average transaction size. p@mble store average
transaction size was $35.96 in the year ended Béete30, 2013 compared to $34.88 in the year eBdptember 30, 2012.

Gross profit

Gross profit increased $26.7 million, or 26.9%,%025.7 million for the year ended September 8032compared to
$99.1 million for the year ended September 30, 2@iRarily driven by positive comparable store saad new store growth. Gross
margin decreased to 29.2% for the year ended Séptedd, 2013 from 29.4% for the year ended SepteBMe2012 due to a shift in
sales mix toward products with lower margins, @dltioffset by purchasing improvements. Additidpathere was a decrease in
product margin for bulk products due to increasemtipction costs as a result of the relocation larger bulk food repackaging and
distribution center in September 2012. Occuparmsyscas a percentage of sales for the year engegdrSiger 30, 2013 remained flat
as compared to the year ended September 30, Zikrzhe year ended September 30, 2013, the Contmahpine leases for stores
which were classified as capital and financingdealsligations, one of which was under constructismf September 30, 2013 and
opened in the first quarter of fiscal year 2014r the year ended September 30, 2012, the Compahfohlir leases for stores which
were classified as capital and financing leasegakibns, two of which were opened in the fourthrtgreof fiscal year 2012 and two
of which were under construction as of Septembef8@2 and opened in the first quarter of fiscalry2013. If these leases had
qualified as operating leases, the straight-linee@se would have been included in occupancy castsour costs of goods sold and
occupancy costs as a percentage of sales during#neended September 30, 2013 would have beemdpyately 55 basis points
higher than as reported.

Store expenses

Store expenses increased $17.8 million, or 24.6%89.9 million in the year ended September 303Z0dm $72.2 million
in the year ended September 30, 2012. Store expasse percentage of sales were 20.9% and 21.5%efgears ended
September 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Thesdeserin store expenses as a percentage of salgsimasily due to a decrease in
salary related expenses as a percentage of satef) teverage from the increase in sales, astireased salary related expenses
required to support the sales growth was lessttimimcrease in sales. Advertising and other exp@s a percentage of sales
decreased in fiscal year 2013 as compared to fyeeal 2012 due to leverage from the increase @ssphrtially offset by an increase
in depreciation expense as a percentage of sales.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased $0.7 millior5.®&%6, to $13.5 million for the year ended Septend@er2013 compared
to the year ended September 30, 2012, primarilytoltlee increased costs as a result of being dagabinpany for a full year in
fiscal year 2013, including $0.1 million of sharased compensation expense for shares issued toereoftour Board of Directors,
and the addition of general and administrative tposs to support our store growth. Additionallgnainistrative expenses include
$0.3 million and $1.4 million in share-based an@® liAcentive compensation expense in the years eGdptember 30, 2013 and
2012, respectively, associated with awards graintéidcal year 2012 related to our IPO and theipaorbf subsequent awards to
certain employees who are not named executiveenffithat were issued in the fourth quarter of figear 2013. Administrative
expenses as a percentage of sales were 3.1% anhd@.&he years ended September 30, 2013 and 2842k ctively. Excluding
share-based and IPO incentive compensation expansess above, exclusive of the share-based compensxpense for shares
issued to members of our Board of Directors, adstiaiive expenses as a percentage of sales wéteahd 3.4% for the years
ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, respectivélg.d€crease in administrative expenses as a pageeot sales was a result of
our ability to support additional store investmeamsl sales without proportionate investments irrtoead.
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Pre-opening and relocation expenses

Pre-opening and relocation expenses increaseddillidn, or 48.7%, in the year ended September280.3 to $3.2 million
compared to the prior year due to the increasedeuf new store openings in fiscal year 2013, el a8 the timing of new store
openings and increased per-store expenses, dhe @ompany entering into more expensive leases-opening and relocation
expenses as a percentage of sales were 0.8% a&ndd.éhe years ended September 30, 2013 and 284 ctively. The numbers
of stores opened, relocated and remodeled werdlaw$ for the periods presented:

Year ended September 30,

2013 2012
L] (0] = RPN 13 10
Relocated StOreS ..........oovvvvvivviiiiiiemmmmee e 1 1
Remodeled StOres .......oooevviviiiviiiiieieeeeeeeeeeen, 2 —
16 11

Interest expense

Interest expense increased $1.6 million, or 281i8%e year ended September 30, 2013 compardxt tpetar ended
September 30, 2012 primarily due to a $2.1 millierease in interest expense related to capitafiaadcing lease obligations,
partially offset by a $0.5 million decrease in net&t expense due to the payoff of all outstandingunts under the term loan and
revolving credit facility in July 2012 in conjunoti with our IPO. If the capital and financing leasbligations had qualified as
operating leases, interest expense as a percsatasfin the year ended September 30, 2013 woukl ieen approximately 50 basis
points lower than as reported.

Income taxes

Our effective income tax rate for the years endept&nber 30, 2013 and 2012 was 37.7% and 34.6¢eately. The
increase in our effective income tax rate was dygait to changes in the blended state tax ratexddition, due to the purchase of
BVC at the time of the IPO in fiscal year 2012, @@mpany no longer has net income attributableotantrolling interest.
Excluding the impact of BVC for fiscal year 2012irdax rate for the year ended September 30, 2813ined relatively consistent
with the year ended September 30, 2012. We expedftective tax rate to increase in the future ttuanticipated increases in
taxable net income, due in part to the impact eérsing past deductions for bonus depreciation.

Additionally, we anticipate that during the firatarter of fiscal year 2014, the Company will expecie benefits from the
American Taxpayer Relief Act of 2012, which extedidlee 50% bonus depreciation on qualifying assadstiae special 15 year life
for qualified leasehold property and qualified iletaprovement property for property acquired frdanmuary 1, 2013 through
December 31, 2013. We expect that the Companyalgidi benefit by the extension of the Work Oppdtyufiax Credit through
December 31, 2013.

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interéstreased $0.8 million to zero for the year endguteSnber 30, 2013 as
compared to the year ended September 30, 2012pdhe purchase of the remaining noncontrollingriest in BVC in July 2012.
As a result of the purchase, we acquired 100%eétiuity interest in BVC. Effective October 31120BVC merged with and into
our operating company and ceased to exist.

Net income attributable to Natural Grocers by Vitar@ottage, Inc.

Net income attributable to Natural Grocers by Vitai@ottage, Inc. increased 58.7% to $10.6 millen$0.47 per diluted
earnings per share, in the year ended Septemb&038,from $6.6 million, or $0.30 per diluted eags per share, in the year ended
September 30, 2012.

In connection with our IPO in the fourth quarterfistal year 2012, we purchased the 45% noncomtgpihterest in BVC
not previously owned by us. Prior to the purchafstne noncontrolling interest, we held a contr@li55% interest in BVC. As such,
our consolidated statements of income for the yeaded September 30, 2012 and 2011 include theweseand expenses of BVC as
required by GAAP, with 45% of BVC's net income rej@al as net income attributable to noncontrollimgiest in our consolidated
statements of income for the years ended SepteBih@012 and 2011.

The pro forma net income presented below illussratkat our net income would have been had we o8& of BVC for
the full year ended September 30, 2012. On a cratipa basis, pro forma net income increased 41®%4.0.6 million or $0.47 per
diluted earnings per share for the year ended 8tye30, 2013 as compared to pro forma net incdr$&.@ million, or $0.32 per
diluted earnings per share for the year ended 8dqae30, 2012. Our effective tax rate increased gesult of the BVC acquisition,
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as the income attributable to the noncontrollirgriest was nontaxable income prior to the acqaisitbut is included in our taxable
income after the acquisition.

Adjusted pro forma net income reflects pro formaineome and further excludes the after tax impdshare-based and incentive
compensation expenses related to the July 25, BIDZAnd subsequent awards to certain employeesarehioot named executive
officers in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2013n a comparative basis, adjusted pro forma metnie increased 35.0% to $10.9
million, or $0.48 per diluted earnings per sharetifie year ended September 30, 2013 as compaeetjusted pro forma net income
of $8.0 million, or $0.36 per diluted earnings phare for the year ended September 30, 2012.

The following table reconciles net income attritliliéato Natural Grocers by Vitamin Cottage, Incpto forma net income
and adjusted pro forma net income, dollars in thads, except per share data:

Year ended September 30,

2013 2012

Net income attributable to Natural Grocers by Vita

Cottage, INC. .oocooiiiieeee e e s $ 10,552 6,649
Net income attributable to noncontrolling inter .................... — 828
NELINCOME. ... 10,55: 7,477
Provision for iNCOMEe taXes ............ueeiiieieieeieuiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeaeen, 6,37¢ 3,955
Income before iINCOMe taxes .......cccvvvviveieeeeemniiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeae 16,93: 11,432
Pro forma provision for income taxes .......cccoccoeeiieiiiieeiinnen. (6,379 (4,264)
Pro forma net inCome ... $ 10,552 7,168
Share-based compensation (excluding Board of Qirschare-

based compensation) of $489 and $1,106, net ofirdaxes

of $184 and $412, respectively .. . 30t 694
IPO incentive compensation of $0 and $286 nem«:ninne taxe

of $0 and $107, respectively .........oovvecccemiieeiiiiieeeeees — 179
Adjusted pro forma netincome ........cccccveeeeeeiiivceeeveee e, $ 10,857 8,041
Per Share Data:
Adjusted pro forma net income per common shate..............

ST L Lo R $ 0.48 0.36

DIlULE v e $ 0.48 0.36

Management believes that investors’ understandimgioperformance is enhanced by including this-G#AP financial
measure of pro forma net income, together withcameiliation from net income attributable to Nalugxocers by Vitamin Cottage,
Inc., as a reasonable basis for comparing our ogg@isults of operations. Many investors are istekin understanding the
performance of our business by comparing our re$idin ongoing operations period over period, aecbalieve this non-GAAP
measure provides investors with comparable dataghewer period to illustrate pro forma results e owned 100% of BVC for all
periods presented, excluding the after tax impashare-based compensation expense for our ChiehEial Officer and certain
employees who are not named executive officers.cOmpetitors may define this non-GAAP financial & differently, and as a
result, our measure of pro forma net income maybedlirectly comparable to those of other companiems excluded from pro
forma net income are significant components in ustdeding and assessing financial performance. MdmsGAAP measure is a
supplemental measure of operating performancelties not represent and should not be considelisdlation or as an alternative
to, or substitute for net income or other finanskatement data presented in the consolidateddialbstatements as indicators of
financial performance. This non-GAAP financial ma@a@shas limitations as an analytical tool, and &hoot be considered in
isolation, or as a substitute for analysis of @sults as reported under GAAP. We further beliéa¢ dur presentation of this non-
GAAP financial measurement provides informatiort ikaiseful to analysts and investors becausedaheymportant indicators of the
strength of our operations and the performanceaupbasiness.

EBITDA

EBITDA increased 48.5% to $32.6 million in the yeaded September 30, 2013 compared to $21.9 militime year
ended September 30, 2012. EBITDA as a percer#le$ svas 7.6% and 6.5% for the year ended Septe36h&013 and 2012,
respectively. Adjusted EBITDA (which excludes $8lion and $1.4 million for fiscal year 2013 a@812, respectively, of share-
based and IPO incentive compensation expensesgised 41.7% to $33.1 million for the year endedeSeiper 30, 2013 as
compared to $23.3 million for the year ended Sept30, 2012. The stores with leases that arsifies as capital and financing
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lease obligations, rather than being reflectedpasaiing leases, increased EBITDA as a percentag@as by approximately 60
basis points for the year ended September 30, 20E3to the impact on cost of goods sold and oaapeosts as discussed above,
as well as occupancy costs that would have beédudied in pre-opening expenses prior to the staypshing date if these leases had
been accounted for as operating leases.

The following table reconciles net income attrililéato Natural Grocers by Vitamin Cottage, IncEBITDA and to
Adjusted EBITDA, dollars in thousands:

Year ended September 30,

2013 2012

Net income attributable to Natural Grocers by Vita

Cottage, INC. ..ooooiiieee et $ 10,552 6,649

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest. — 828
NELINCOME ..ot 10,552 7,477

INtEreSt EXPENSE ...coeeeeeievieeeeeveieeememmm e e e e e e e e eeeeenees 2,166 568

Provision for income taxes ...........ccooooeiiciiiiinninns 6,379 3,955

Depreciation and amortization .............cccceeeriinnees 13,496 9,949
EBITDA ittt smmnmie e sabaee e e 32,593 21,949
Share-based compensation (excluding Board of Qirsct

share-based compensation).........cccccceeveeeiiiiinnnnns 489 1,106
IPO incentive cOmMpensation ................ooeeeeennnne — 286
Adjusted EBITDA .....coiiiiiiieee e e iveee e $ 33,082 23,341

For a discussion of our use of the non-GAAP finalnmeasure EBITDA, please refer to the “Selectethikcial Data”
section of this report on Form 10-K. For a disaus®f our use of the non-GAAP financial measurguated EBITDA, please refer
to the paragraph immediately preceding “LiquidindaCapital Resources” below in this “Management'scDssion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” isecof this report on Form 10-K.

Year ended September 30, 2012 compared to the gded September 30, 2011

The following table summarizes our results of opers and other operating data for the periodsgmtesl, dollars in
thousands:

Year ended September 30, Increase (Decrease)
2012 2011 Dollars Percent
Statements of Income Data:

NEE SAIES ...ttt $ 336,385 264,544 71,841 27.2%
Cost of goods sold and occupancy Costs .....cccce......... 237,328 187,162 50,166 26.8
GroSS Profit ....occeeeiiciiiieiiie et 99,057 77,382 21,675 28.0

SEOre EXPENSES ...ccevvieeiiieicee e e e e err e e e e ee e 72,157 57,610 4,517 25.3
AdMINIStrative EXPENSES .......vvvviiiiviiiieeecereeeeeeeeeeeeeneenn 12,733 10,397 2,336 .522
Pre-opening and relocation eXpenses ......cccceeeeveeeeenn.. 2,173 1,964 209 10.6
Operating iNCOME ......ccccceviiiiiiiieeeer e e e 11,994 7,411 4,583 61.8
Other income (expense):
Dividends and interest inCOmMe ..............ommmmeeeeeeeeenn. 6 10 4) (40.0)
INtEreSt EXPENSE .....uvvvvriiiiiriieeeeeee e eee e (568) (669) 101 s
Other iNCOMEe, Net .......oeiiiiiiiiiiiee e — 25 (25) n/a
Income before income taxes .........ccccveeeeeeeenennen. 11,432 6,777 4,655 68.7
Provision for income taxes ..........ccccuvuumieriiiiiiiiieieeeeeen. (3,955) (2,167) (1,y88 825
NELINCOME .ot e 7,477 4,610 2,867 62.2
Net income attributable to noncontrolling inter............. (828) (1,106) 278 (25.1)
Net income attributable to Natural Grocers by
Vitamin Cottage, INC. .....cocvviiiiiiiiiiiiiceee, $ 6,649 3,504 3,145 89.8%
Other Operating Data:
Number of stores at end of peri...........eeeeeeeiiiiiiiininnnnnn. 59 49
Store unit count increase period over period................ 20.4% 25.6
Change in comparable store sales ........cccceeeeeveeeeeeenn. 11.6% 4.9
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Net sales

Net sales increased $71.8 million, or 27.2%, to6$83nillion for the year ended September 30, 20fAmared to $264.5
million for the year ended September 30, 2011 due$41.3 million increase in new store sales ad85 million, or 11.6%,
increase in comparable store sales. Daily averagwarable store sales increased 11.3% for theeyelrd September 30, 2012 as
compared to the year ended September 30, 2011inGiemse in comparable store sales was due @A ifcrease in transaction
count and a 4.3% increase in average transactierasicomparable stores. Comparable store avamggaction size increased to
$34.88 in the year ended September 30, 2012 fr8m83n the year ended September 30, 2011.

Gross profit

Gross profit totaled $99.1 million for the year eddSeptember 30, 2012 compared to $77.4 millionhferyear ended
September 30, 2011. Cost of goods sold and occyparsts increased $50.2 million, or 26.8%, to $23iiillion for the year ended
September 30, 2012 compared to $187.2 millionHeryiear ended September 30, 2011 primarily due tocxease in cost of goods
sold and occupancy costs from new stores. Grosgimgucreased to 29.4% for the year ended SepteBHhe2012 from 29.3% for
the year ended September 30, 2011. Product magiained relatively flat year over year with thergase in gross margin being
driven by a decrease in occupancy costs as a flegeeof sales. The decrease in occupancy costpersentage of sales was driven
by leverage at comparable stores as a result tfased comparable store sales compared with fizegpancy costs.

Store expenses

Store expenses increased $14.5 million, or 25.8%72.2 million in the year ended September 302Z0dm $57.6 million
in the year ended September 30, 2011. Store expassa percentage of sales were 21.5% and 21.8¥tefgears ended
September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Thesdeerin store expenses as a percentage of salgsimasly due to a decrease in
salary related expenses as a percentage of satel) a lesser extent, a decrease in advertisipgrese, offset by an increase in
depreciation expense as a percentage of salewattoees. Store labor related expenses as a pageeof sales decreased 30 basis
points for the year ended September 30, 2012 cardparthe prior year, due to leverage from thegase in comparable store sales,
as the increased salary related expenses requoisapport the sales growth was less than the iser@esales. Direct store
advertising expense as a percentage of sales dedraa a result of decreased production costs aggan producing otealth
Hotline newsletter and sales flyer in-house in fiscal y&&2. This decrease in production costs wastdffgan increase in the
volume of newspaper advertising as a result ofregenew markets. Additionally, in fiscal year Z)ktore expenses included $0.3
million in loss on disposal of fixed assets prihagssociated with the relocation of one store.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased $2.3 milliori22:5%, to $12.7 million for the year ended Septen®@e 2012 compared
to the year ended September 30, 2011, primarilytd@e$1.1 million share-based incentive compeoratkpense and a $0.3 million
cash incentive compensation expense including fHage@s, both associated with our IPO, as welhmaincrease in general and
administrative positions in fiscal year 2012 toon our store growth. Administrative expensea agrcentage of sales were 3.8%
and 3.9% for the years ended September 30, 2012G1] respectively. Excluding the $1.4 millionsimare-based and IPO
incentive compensation expenses associated witlP@radministrative expenses as a percentagdes sere 3.4% and 3.9% for
the years ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, tiesfhec The decrease in administrative expenses@ercentage of sales was a
result of our ability to support additional stonr¥éstments and sales without proportionate investsria additional overhead.

Pre-opening and relocation expenses

Pre-opening and relocation expenses increaseddili@n, or 10.6%, in the year ended September2BQ2 compared to the
prior year due to the timing of new store openiagd number of store relocations period over peraftlitionally, we moved our
bulk food repackaging and distribution center stéil year 2012. Pre-opening and relocation expemsea percentage of sales were
0.6% and 0.7% for the years ended September 3@, &0d 2011, respectively. The numbers of storeaexheelocated and
remodeled were as follows for the periods presented

Year ended September 30,

2012 2011
NEW SEOMES...on e 10 10
Relocated StOreS ........coeeeiiiiiiiiieiivceeemee e 1 —
Remodeled StOres .......cooovvviviiiiieiiiiee e — 1
11 11
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Interest expense

Interest expense decreased $0.1 million, or 15id%e year ended September 30, 2012 comparee tgethr ended
September 30, 2011 due to the payoff of all outitapamounts under the term loan and revolvingitfadility in July 2012. This
decrease was offset by an increase in interesinsepes a result of interest related to two capitdlfinancing lease obligations that
were entered into in fiscal year 2012 and resuhiddss than $0.1 million in interest expense mttiree months ended September 30,
2012.

Income taxes

Our effective income tax rate for the years endept&nber 30, 2012 and 2011 was 34.6% and 32.0¢eatxely. The
increase in our effective income tax rate was prilgndue to changes in nontaxable net income attable to noncontrolling interest
and, to a lesser extent, different state incomeates in the states where we operate and the fnaidraearnings in those states.

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interdetreased $0.3 million, or 25.1%, in the year ersiggtember 30, 2012
compared to the year ended September 30, 201 Ireassilhof the purchase of the remaining noncoliginterest in BVC in
July 2012. As a result of the purchase, we now d@@% of BVC. Effective October 31, 2012, BVC meigvith and into our
operating company and ceased to exist.

Net income attributable to Natural Grocers by Vitar@ottage, Inc.

Net income attributable to Natural Grocers by Vitai@ottage, Inc. increased 89.8% to $6.6 milliothie year ended
September 30, 2012 from $3.5 million in the yeateshSeptember 30, 2011. Pro forma net incomdatéile to Natural Grocers by
Vitamin Cottage, Inc. (which illustrates net incoaif we owned 100% of BVC for all periods preseijtincreased 71.2% to $7.2
million or $0.32 per diluted earnings per shareljusted pro forma net income attributable to Ndt@Gacers by Vitamin
Cottage, Inc. (which illustrates net income aséfowned 100% of BVC for all periods presented)wdiag the after tax impact of
share-based and IPO incentive compensation expeitsels were entirely contingent upon the completidiour IPO) increased
92.0% to $8.0 million for fiscal year 2012 withuliéd earnings per share of $0.36.

The following table reconciles net income attriliniéato Natural Grocers by Vitamin Cottage, Incpto forma net income
and adjusted pro forma net income, dollars in thads, except per share data:

Year ended September 30,

2012 2011
Net income attributable to Natural Grocers by Vitai@ottage Inc. ......... $ 6,6 3,504
Net income aributable to noncontrolling interest ........ceee.cccoeeeiiiiinees 828 1,106
N[ 0 g ToT o] 0 TP PR 7,477 4,610
Provision for iNCOME taXeS ..........uuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiei e 3,955 2,167
Income before INCOME tAXES .....oooioiiieee e 11,432 6,777
Pro forma provision for iNCOME taxes .......cceeeeiviriiriiiiiiiiieeeee e 284) (2,589)
Pro forma Net iNCOME ........ooiiiiiiiiiii e 7,168 4,188
Share-based compensation of $1,106 and $0, netofrie taxes

of $412 and $0, reSPeCtiVElY .......ooviviieeee e, 9% —
IPO incentive compensation of $286 and $0, nenhodine taxes of $107,

and $0, rESPECLVEIY ...ooviiiiiiiiiiie e 179 —
Adjusted pro forma NetiNCOME ..........vuiieeeeeeie i $ 8,041 4,188

Per Share Data:
Adjusted pro forma net income per common share...........cccccvvvevveennnn.
ST L Lo OSSR $ 0.3¢€ 0.19

DilULEA ..o e $ 0.3¢ 0.19

EBITDA

EBITDA increased 45.0% to $21.9 million in the yeaded September 30, 2012. Adjusted EBITDA (wleitiudes $1.4
million and $0 for fiscal year 2012 and 2011, retpely, of share-based and IPO incentive compémsaixpenses associated with
the IPO) increased 54.2% to $23.3 million for fisgear 2012.

The following table reconciles net income attritlléato Natural Grocers by Vitamin Cottage, InCEBITDA and to
Adjusted EBITDA, dollars in thousands:
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Year ended September 30,

2012 2011

Net income attributable to Natural Grocers by Vita

Cottage, INC. ..vvveeiiiei e $ 6,649 3,504

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest. 828 1,106
NEt INCOME ..o 7,477 4,610

INtErest eXPENSE .....cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiieememmm e 568 669

Provision for income taxes ...........ccooooeiiieiiiiininens 3,955 2,167

Depreciation and amortization ............ccccceeereinnnns 9,949 7,691
EBITDA et 21,949 15,137
Share-based compensation 1,106 —
IPO incentive compensation 286 —
Adjusted EBITDA ......ccooocvivveeeine $ 23,341 15,137

Management believes that some investors’ underistgrad our performance is enhanced by including¢heon-GAAP
financial measures of EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDApRorma net income and Adjusted pro forma netimeas a reasonable
basis for comparing our ongoing results of operati@ome investors are interested in understatdengerformance of our business
by comparing our results from ongoing operationsopkeover period and we believe these non-GAAP messsprovide some
investors with comparable data period over peroitlustrate pro forma results had we owned 100%B\6€ for all periods presented
and to exclude expenses that were contingent umoadmpletion of our IPO. By providing these nonA&FAfinancial measures,
together with reconciliations from net income aitteble to Natural Grocers by Vitamin Cottage, ,Ime believe we are enhancing
some investors’ understanding of our business andesults of operations, as well as assisting sorestors in evaluating how well
we are executing our strategic initiatives. Our petitors may define these non-GAAP financial meesuifferently, and as a result,
our measure of EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA, Pro farmet income and Adjusted pro forma net income nwdbe directly
comparable to those of other companies. Items drdidrom EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA, Pro forma rietome and Adjusted
pro forma net income are significant componentsrderstanding and assessing financial performarteese non-GAAP measures
are supplemental measures of operating performatelo not represent and should not be considersdlation or as an
alternative to, or substitute for net income oreotfinancial statement data presented in the ca@eH financial statements as
indicators of financial performance. These non-GA&RNcial measures have limitations as analyticals, and should not be
considered in isolation, or as a substitute fotyaigof our results as reported under GAAP. Wéhterr believe that our presentation
of these GAAP and non-GAAP financial measuremerasige information that is useful to analysts anthe investors because they
are important indicators of the strength of ourragiens and the performance of our business. Fisaussion of our use of the non-
GAAP financial measure EBITDA, please refer to‘tBelected Financial Data” section of this reportramrm 10-K.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our ongoing primary sources of liquidity are casinerated from operations, current balances of @adtcash equivalents,
available-for-sale securities and borrowings uragrrevolving credit facility. Additionally, we retved $58.1 million in proceeds,
net of underwriting fees, from our IPO in the fduguarter of fiscal year 2012. The net proceedsuofiPO were used to repay our
term loan and all outstanding amounts under owlvég credit facility, purchase the noncontrollimgjerest in BVC, pay expenses
associated with the IPO and pay the cash portiaein restricted stock awards issued at the afatar IPO.

Our primary uses of cash are for capital expenel#redominantly in connection with opening newesand relocating
and remodeling certain existing stores, purchakes/entory, operating expense, debt service amgarate taxes. As of
September 30, 2013, we had $8.1 million in cashcasth equivalents, $0.5 in restricted cash and $ilibn in available-for-sale
securities, as well as $15.0 million available uragr revolving credit facility. On October 31, Z)wve amended our revolving
credit facility and reduced the amount of availatredit to $15.0 million and reduced the unusedmitment fee from 0.375% to
0.20%. On December 12, 2013, we entered intoveended and restated credit agreement that, ambeg things, extends the
maturity date of the Company’s existing revolvingdit facility by three years to January 31, 2Qdroyvides the Company with the
right to request the issuance of letters of credlibws the Company to increase the amount availabtier the revolving credit
facility, which currently continues to be $15.0 lioif, up to an additional amount that may not exc®20.0 million by obtaining an
additional commitment or commitments, and elimisaaequirement for a consolidated EBITDA to reveratio.

We plan to continue to open new stores, whichgnasgiously required and may require us to borroditaahal amounts
under our revolving credit facility in the futunéd/e plan to spend approximately $35 million to $3Wliom on capital expenditures
during fiscal year 2014. We believe that cash ash@quivalents and short-term investments, togetitle the cash generated from
operations and the borrowing availability under mwolving credit facility will be sufficient to net our working capital needs and
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planned capital expenditures, including capitalesxptures related to new store needs for at lbashéxt twelve months. Our
working capital position benefits from the facttthhae generally collect cash from sales to custortte@same day or, in the case of
credit or debit card transactions, within days frilve related sale.

Following is a summary of our operating, investargl financing activities for the periods presentidiars in thousands:

Year ended September 30,

2013 2012 2011

Net cash provided by operating activit............. $ 25,717 25,202 16,742
Net cash used in investing activiti.................... (34,624 (25,558) (20,512)
Net cast(used in) provided by financing activities

...................................................................... (252 17,269 3,702
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash

EQUIVAIENES ... emmeee (9,159 16,913 (68)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year ..... 17,291 378 446
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year ........ $ 8,132 17,291 378

Operating Activities

Cash provided by operating activities consists prily of net income adjusted for non-cash itemsluding depreciation
and changes in deferred taxes, and the effect dfimgcapital changes. Cash provided by operatatiyities increased $0.5 million,
or 2.0%, to $25.7 million in the year ended Septen®®, 2013, from $25.2 million in the year endegt®8mber 30, 2012. The
increase in cash provided by operating activitias wrimarily due to an increase in net income diisséed for depreciation and
amortization resulting from the addition of newrstg offset by changes in working capital driverthgy timing of payment on
inventory purchases. Our working capital requiratador inventory will likely continue to increass we continue to open new
stores.

Cash provided by operating activities increased $éllion, or 50.5%, to $25.2 million in the yeamded September 30,
2012 compared to $16.7 million in the year endgat&aber 30, 2011. The increase in cash providemplyating activities period
over period was primarily due to an increase inimedme adjusted for non-cash items and changesiking capital driven by
fluctuations in the timing of payment on accouragable, accrued expenses and inventory purchases.

Investing Activities

Cash used in investing activities consists prirgasflcapital expenditures. Cash used in investotyiies increased $9.1
million, or 35.5%, to $34.6 million in the year esttiSeptember 30, 2013 from $25.6 million in theryraled September 30, 2012.
The increase in capital expenditures from the gealed September 30, 2013 compared to the year Sej#dmber 30, 2012, was
primarily driven by the timing, increased costs ameased number of new stores opened duringeghegnded September 30, 2013.
The use of cash for capital expenditures was pigroffset by an increase in proceeds from investtivities from the sale of
property and equipment of $5.0 million, primarislated to the sale of land and the respective imgildnder a sale-leaseback
transaction. Additionally, we purchased $0.5 miilin available-for-sale securities, offset by mities of available-for-sale
securities of $1.0 million in the year ended Sejtten80, 2013.

We opened 13 new stores in the year ended Sept80b2013, relocated one store and remodeled twesstin addition,
we plan to open 15 new stores and remodel twostariscal year 2014. Since September 30, 20&3hawe opened three new
stores, and we have signed leases for an additimalnew stores expected to open in fiscal yedd2We plan to spend
approximately $35 million to $37 million on capitpenditures during fiscal year 2014 in assoaiatth the 15 planned new stores
and two store remodels. We anticipate that our stewes will require, on average, an upfront cdjpitgestment of approximately
$2.5 million per store.

Acquisition of property and equipment not yet pd@treased $1.5 million to $3.5 million in fiscaby€013 compared to
fiscal year 2012 due to the timing of new storendipgs and relocations. We opened four new stardselocated one store in the
fourth quarter of fiscal year 2013 compared to apgfour new stores, relocating one store and ngeur bulk food repackaging
and distribution center in the fourth quarter stéil year 2012.

Cash used in investing activities increased $510omj or 24.6%, to $25.6 million in the year endgelptember 30, 2012
from $20.5 million in the year ended September28d,1 and is due to the timing of capital expenéiuwelated to new stores and
relocation of one store, and the bulk food repagland distribution center in fiscal year 2012, & as the purchase of $1.8 million
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in available-for-sale securities, offset by an @age in proceeds from the sale of property angetgrit of $0.6 million, and $0.9
million received from payments on related partyesateceivable and reimbursement of premiums pagpbitadollar life insurance.

Financing Activities

Cash used in financing activities consists prinyasil payments of capital and financing lease obidges, repayments of
related party note payable and paid equity issuaasts for the year ended September 30, 2013. @shin financing activities was
$0.3 million for the year ended September 30, 2@$3;ompared to cash provided by financing actiwitif $17.3 million in the year
ended September 30, 2012. The cash provided byding activities for the year ended September 8@22ncluded $58.1 million in
proceeds from our fourth quarter 2012 IPO, offse$89.8 million use of proceeds for repayment obants outstanding under our
term loan and revolving credit facility, purchagal® noncontrolling interest in BVC and paymentgpenses associated with the
IPO.

Cash provided by financing activities increased.618illion, or 366.4%, to $17.3 million in the yeanded September 30,
2012 compared to $3.7 million in the year ended&uaper 30, 2011. The increase in cash providednay€ing activities period
over period is due to $58.1 million in proceedsreed from our IPO, offset by $27.2 million in repaent of all amounts
outstanding under our term loan and revolving driedility, $10.1 million used to purchase the nomicolling interest in BVC and
$2.5 million in expenses paid in association witin °O.

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013, veema distributions to noncontrolling interestr Ehe fiscal years
ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, we made disirbwof $0.8 million and $1.0 million, respectiyeto noncontrolling interests.
Due to our acquisition of the 45% noncontrollinteiest in BVC in connection with our IPO, thesdrilisitions ceased during fiscal
year 2012 and will not be incurred beyond fiscalry2012.

Credit Facility and Note Payable—Related Party
Credit Facility

We are a party to a revolving credit facility. JBigan Chase Bank, N.A. serves as the lender andhestirative agent under
the credit facility.

Effective October 31, 2012, we signed an amendnoeifie credit facility to reduce the amount avdgafor borrowing
under the revolving credit facility to $15.0 milfidrom $21.0 million and to reduce the unused cotmment fee from 0.375% to
0.20%. The reduction in the unused commitmentvag retroactive to August 1, 2012. On Decembel023, we entered into an
amended and restated credit agreement, as furtiserided in Item 8, Note 22, contained elsewhethigreport on Form 10-K.

The amount available under the revolving credilitgds $15.0 million. Prior to the amendment ama$tatement of the
credit facility noted above, the credit facility svacheduled to mature on June 30, 2014. We hadnoonts outstanding on the
revolving credit facility at September 30, 2013 &1.0 million available for borrowing as of Septem30, 2013. Interest is
determined by the lender’s administrative agentiarstiated at the adjusted LIBOR rate for the ggeperiod plus the lender spread.
The average annual interest rates for the yearsdeSdptember 30, 2013 and 2012 were 3.30% and 2r&épectively.

The term loan commitment associated with the raagleredit facility was initially set at $21.0 méh. In July 2012, we
repaid all amounts outstanding under the term tfeé815.8 million. Prior to the payoff, we were téged to make quarterly
payments of $0.1 million on the term loan. Intékeas determined by the lender’'s administrativenaged was stated at the base
rate for the interest period plus the applicabtelés spread. The average annual interest ratésefgrears ended September 30, 2012
and 2011 were 2.02% and 2.19%, respectively.

The revolving credit facility requires compliancéwcertain operational and financial covenantsl(iding a leverage ratio
and a fixed charge coverage ratio). The revolvirglit facility also contains certain other limitais on our ability to incur additional
debt, guarantee other obligations, grant liensssets and make investments or acquisitions asedkiimthe agreement. Additionally,
the revolving credit facility prohibits the paymeaaftcash dividends to the holding company fromdperating company, without the
bank’s consent except when no default or evenetdudt exists. If no default or event of defaulists, dividends are allowed for
various audit, accounting, tax, securities, indditatiion, reimbursement, insurance and other resislerexpenses in the ordinary
course of business. We do not expect such restricto impact our ability to meet our cash obligas. The terms and conditions of
the agreement for the revolving credit facility eassociated documents are customary and includmauother things, guarantees,
security interest grants, pledges and subordinsitidks of September 30, 2013 we were in compliavitiethe debt covenants.
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Note Payable—Related Party

At September 30, 2012, we had one outstanding unsgaote payable to a related party, which baer@st at 5.33%
annually and had a scheduled maturity of Octob&820n May 2013, we paid the remaining outstandiatance of this note to The
Margaret A. Isely Spouse’s Trust. As of Septen8r2013, no further commitment remained undernbig payable.

Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our contractual gdgiions as of September 30, 2013, dollars in thulsa

Payments Due by Period

Less than More than
Total 1 year 1 -3 years 3 -5years 5 years
Interest payments (1) .....ccccoeeeeeveeenvicmeenn. $ 22 22 — — —
Operating 1eases (2) ....cccceevevvvreeesscmmeen. 208,866 16,760 36,191 34,937 120,978
Capital and financing lease obligations,
including principal and interest payments
(B) coeii 43,831 2,969 5,956 5,961 28,945
Contractual obligations for construction
related activities (4) ..vveeeeevevieeiiieeen. 1,542 1,542 — — —
$ 254,261 21,293 42,147 40,898 149,923

(1) We assumed the interest payments to be paid dtivéngemainder of the revolving credit facility ugian unused commitment
fee of 0.20% for amounts not borrowed as of Sep&zréb, 2013.

(2) Represents the minimum lease payments due undepeuating leases, excluding annual common areatem&nce, insurance
and taxes related to our operating lease obligation

(3) Represents the payments due under our capitalizemcfng lease obligations for nine stores, eidhwinich were open as of
September 30, 2013 and one that opened in theyfiester of fiscal year 2014. We do not record expense for these capital
leases, but rather rental payments under the t#gatses are recognized as a reduction of theadagitl financing lease
obligations and interest expense.

(4) Contractual obligations for construction relatethaties include future payments to general cortmessthat are legally binding
as of September 30, 2013 and relate to new storgremtion, relocations and remodels.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of September 30, 2013, our off-balance sheahgaments consisted of operating leases and thawngbortion of our
revolving credit facility. All of our stores, bufood repackaging facility and distribution centedadministrative facilities are
leased, and as of September 30, 2013, nine leagesclassified as capital and financing lease abibgs, and the remaining leases
were classified as operating leases in our corsgliifinancial statements. We have no other offstiad sheet arrangements that
have had, or are reasonably likely to have, a nateurrent or future effect on our consolidatethficial statements or financial
condition.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2013, the Financial Accounting Stand@dard, or FASB, issued Accounting Standards UnaatASU,
No. 2013-02 “Reporting of Amounts Reclassified ©fiAccumulated Other Comprehensive Income.” ASU Rl 3-02 supersedes
the presentation requirements for reclassificatmutsof accumulated other comprehensive incometh BSU No. 2011-12 and
2011-05. ASU No. 2013-02 requires an entity taggegate the total change of each component ef oimprehensive income
either on the face of the income statement orseparate disclosure in the notes. Amounts that@reequired to be reclassified in
their entirety to net income must be cross-refezdrto other disclosures that provide additionahifleThis update is effective for our
first quarter of fiscal year 2014. We do not expgbetadoption of this update to have a materigotibn our consolidated financial
statements.
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Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of our consolidated financial stegets in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires us take estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts etsdfbilities, revenues, expenses and relatedatiures of contingent assets and
liabilities. Actual amounts may differ from thesgtienates. We base our estimates on historical é&qu and on various other
assumptions and factors that we believe to be ned® under the circumstances. We evaluate ouuatiog policies and resulting
estimates on an ongoing basis to make adjustmentonsider appropriate under the facts and ciraumss.

We have chosen accounting policies that we bebegeappropriate to report accurately and fairly aperating results and
financial position, and we apply those accountinficges in a consistent manner. Refer to our cadatdd financial statements and
related notes for a summary of our significant actimg policies. We believe that the following agnting policies are the most
critical in the preparation of our consolidatecdafiicial statements because they involve the mdatudtf subjective or complex
judgments about the effect of matters that areraftéy uncertain.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes using the asset abilitjamethod. This method requires recognitiordeferred tax assets and
liabilities for expected future tax consequenceteofporary differences that currently exist betwdentax basis and financial
reporting basis of our assets and liabilities. Drefé tax assets and liabilities are measured wesiiagted tax rates in the respective
jurisdictions in which we operate. We considerrieed to establish valuation allowances to reduterieel income tax assets to the
amounts that we believe are more likely than ndig@ecovered.

We recognize the effect of income tax positiong/dhthose positions are more likely than not ofrfgesustained.
Recognized income tax positions are measured dathest amount that is greater than 50% likelpaihg realized. Changes in
recognition or measurement are reflected in thegeén which the change in judgment occurs.

Significant accounting judgment is required in deti@ing the provision for income taxes and relaedruals, deferred tax
assets and liabilities. In the ordinary courseusfibess, there are transactions and calculatioesenthe ultimate tax outcome is
uncertain. In addition, we are subject to periaidits and examinations by the IRS and other ataddocal taxing authorities.
Although we believe that our estimates are readenabtual results could differ from these estiraate

To the extent we prevail in matters for which rgssrhave been established, or are required torpayrs in excess of our
reserves, our effective income tax rate in a giusamcial statement period could be materially etiéel. An unfavorable tax
settlement would require use of our cash and wragdlt in an increase in our effective income e iin the period of resolution. A
favorable tax settlement would be recognized &slaation in our effective income tax rate in theiqe of resolution.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

We assess our long-lived assets, principally pitymerd equipment, for possible impairment at leastually, or whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate thigingramount of an asset may not be recoverableoWgability is measured by a
comparison of the carrying amount of the assetkdduture undiscounted cash flows expected todneigted by the assets. We
aggregate long-lived assets at the store leveltwivie consider to be the lowest level in the orgation for which independent
identifiable cash flows are available. If the camgyvalue of the long-lived asset or asset groumisrecoverable on an undiscounted
cash flow basis, impairment is recognized to thterxthe carrying value exceeds its fair value.

Our judgment regarding events or changes in cirtamegs that indicate an asset’s carrying value meape recoverable is
based on several factors such as historical amatdsted operating results, significant industrgdseand other economic factors.
Further, determining whether an impairment existpiires that we use estimates and assumptionfcuiating the future
undiscounted cash flows expected to be generaté¢ioebgssets. These estimates and assumptionsdeelabyears into the future
and include assumptions on future store revenuetrgotential impact of operational changes, caditipe factors, inflation and the
economy. Application of alternative assumptionsldquoduce materially different results.

Leases
We lease retail stores, a bulk food repackagintjtiaand distribution center, and administrativiiaes under long-term

operating, capital financing leases or capitaldsasAccounting for leased properties requires diampe with technical accounting
rules and significant judgment by management. Apion of these accounting rules and assumptiomerhg management will
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determine whether the lease is accounted for aparating lease, whether we are considered therdanaccounting purposes or
whether the lease is accounted for as a capitsé leeaccordance with ASC 84(zases

If the lease is classified as an operating ledase niot recognized on our consolidated balancetshad rent expense,
including rent holidays and escalating payment sglisirecognized on a straight-line basis oveettpected lease term.

If we are determined to be the owner for accounpiagposes, we record the fair market value of dlaséd asset and a
related capital lease finance obligation on oursotidated balance sheet. The leased asset is #peaaiated over the estimated
useful life of the asset. Rent payments for thprsperties are not recorded as rent expense, therneent payments are recognized
as a reduction of the capital lease finance obtigand as interest expense.

If the lease is classified as a capital leaserewerd the present value of the minimum lease patsrend a related capital
lease obligation on our consolidated balance shéetasset is then depreciated over the expedisd term. Rent payments for these
properties are not recorded as rent expense, tharnent payments are recognized as a reductitreafapital lease obligation and
as interest expense.

Significant accounting judgment and assumptiongegeired in determining the accounting for leagaduding:
« fair market value of the leased asset, which iggaly estimated based on project costs or comparabrket data. Fair

market value is used as a factor in determiningthdrehe lease is accounted for as an operaticgmital lease, and is
used for recording the leased asset when we agendieed to be the owner for accounting purposes;

expected lease term that includes contractual leaseds, and may also include the exercise ofwaheptions if the
exercise of the option is determined to be readgradsured or where failure to exercise such optigould result in an
economic penalty. The expected lease term is asedfactor in determining whether the lease is@ted for as an
operating lease or a capital lease and in detengpitie period over which to depreciate the cafgtde asset ; and

incremental borrowing rate which is estimated basmetteasury rates for debt with maturities complerso the expected
lease term and our credit spread and other premidihs incremental borrowing rate is used as afdntdetermining the
present value of the minimum lease payments wisithén used in determining whether the lease iswated for as an
operating lease or capital lease, as well as focating our rental payments on capital leases éatvinterest expense and
a reduction of the outstanding obligation.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosuresabout Market Risk.

We are exposed to interest rate changes of ourtknng debt. We do not use financial instrumentsfading or other
speculative purposes.

Interest Rate Risk

Our principal exposure to market risk relates tanges in interest rates with respect to our rexglaredit facility. As of
September 30, 2013 we had no amounts outstandingrocredit facility. Our credit facility carrietofting interest rates that are tied
to the one month LIBOR, and therefore, our statémehincome and our cash flows are exposed toggsaim interest rates. Based
upon a sensitivity analysis at September 30, 2818jpothetical 100 basis point change in interastsrwould change our annual
interest expense by an insignificant amount inytb&r ended September 30, 2013.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Natural Grocers by Vitamin Cottage, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Natural Grocers by Vitamin Cottage, &md subsidiaries (the
Company) as of September 30, 2013 and 2012, aneldted consolidated statements of income, congmste income, cash flows,
and changes in stockholders’ equity for each ofyfa's in the three-year period ended Septembe&?3@®. These consolidated
financial statements are the responsibility of@menpany’s management. Our responsibility is to egpan opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on outsaudi

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet éudibtain reasonable assurance about whethdintiecial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examingrga test basis, evidence supporting the amoumdtslizclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing tteuating principles used and significant estimat@sle by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement pred@raWe believe that our audits provide a reastmbhsis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegeferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the financial position of
Natural Grocers by Vitamin Cottage, Inc. and subsiés as of September 30, 2013 and 2012, ancethdts of their operations and
their cash flows for each of the years in the thyear period ended September 30, 2013, in confgrwith U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

/sl KPMG LLP

Denver, Colorado
December 12, 2013
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Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash eqUIVAIENTS ..........ovviii e
R (ST 1 [e1 (=10 [ o= 1= o [
Short term investments — available-for-sale SEIBEHIL...........cccoooevvvvieiiiiiiiiiee e e

Accounts receivable, net
Merchandise inventory
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Deferred income tax assets
Total current assets
Property and equipment, net

Other assets:

Long-term investments — available-for-sale seaesiti
Deposits and other assets
Goodwill and other intangible assets, net
Deferred financing costs, net

Total other assets

Total assets

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses

NATURAL GROCERS BY VITAMIN COTTAGE, INC.

(Dollars in thousands, except share and per shaseta)

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Capital and financing lease obligations, curremtipn .............ccccccvviiiieieeereeeee e cmeeeenns

Note payable — related party, CUrrent POrtioN ...........vvviviiiiiiiieeieeeeee e
Total current liabilities
Long-term liabilities:
Capital and financing lease obligations, net ofeut portion
Deferred income tax liabilities

DLy (] (=10 B (=1 | T
Leasehold incentives

Note payable—related party, net of current portiQn...........cccccceeeeeeiiiininiiiiiiieeee

Total long-term liabilities

Total liabilities
Commitments (Notes 13 and 21)
Stockholders’ equity:

Common stock, $0.001 par value. Authorized 50,000 ghares, 22,441,253 and
22,372,184 issued and outstanding, reSPectively..........vvvvveeeeeeiiii e

Additional paid in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Retained earnings
Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

September 30,
2013 2012
$ 8,132 17,291
500 —
1,149 778
2,401 1,855
45,472 37,544
1,097 596
1,114 843
59,865 58,907
98,910 64,603
— 974
203 196
900 927
25 55
1,128 2,152
$ 159,903 125,662
$ 28,918 26,032
9,306 7,783
174 12
— 260
38,398 34,087
19,648 5,514
6,877 4,144
4,731 3,618
5,716 5,328
— 22
36,972 18,626
75,370 52,713
22 22
53,704 52,676
— (4)
30,807 20,255
84,533 72,949
$ 159,903 125,662

See accompanying notes to consolidated financi&sients.
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NATURAL GROCERS BY VITAMIN COTTAGE, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Income
(Dollars in thousands, except share and per shaeta)

Year ended September 30,

2013 2012 2011
NET SAIES. .. $ 430,655 336,385 264,544
Cost of goods sold and 0CCUPANCY COSES ....eummmeemreeriririiiiiiiireeeeeeeeeenn, 304,922 237,328 187,162
GrOSS Profit oo —————— 125,733 99,057 77,382
Y0 L= 01T T2 89,935 72,157 57,610
AdMINISLrativVe EXPENSES ....uvvvriiiiiiiiiiiieeecreeeee e e e e e e ee s sss s rreeeerereaes 13,479 12,733 10,397
Pre-opening and relocation EXPENSES .....cceeeecccrereeeeeeeeeeeiieiiieiininnens 3,231 2,173 1,964
Operating iNCOME ... e e e e e e e e e eee e 083 11,994 7,411
Other income (expense):
Dividends and interest iINCOME ...........oieieeiiiiiieieeeee e e 9 6 10
INEErESt EXPENSE ...ttt ettt et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e (2,166) (568) (669)
Other iINCOME, NEL ......iiiiiiiiiiie et — — 25
Total Other EXPENSE ...ttt ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e 137) (562) (634)
Income before iINCOMEe taXes ........occiieiiiiiiiiiieee e 16,931 432 6,777
Provision for iNCOME taXeS .......cccuuuuiiiiiiiiiiiiieieee e (6,379) (3,955) (2,167)
=] g Lo o] 141 TSRS 10,552 1,477 4,610
Net income attributable to noncontrolling inter............ccccccevnnn. — (828) (1,106)
Net income attributable to Natural Grocers by
Vitamin Cottage, INC. .....occvviiiii e $ 10,552 6,649 3,504
Net income attributable to Natural Grocers by Vitamin @g#, Inc. per
common share:
BASIC evvviiiieeiiiiiii et e e e e e e nnnas $ 0.47 0.30 0.16
D 0] 1= PRSPPI SOPPPRRR $ 0.47 0.30 0.16
Weighted average common shares outstanding:
BASIC evviiiiieeiiiiii it e e e e nrnas 22,399,346 22,372,184 22,372,184
DIULEA oo 22,441,382 22,463,093 22,461,405

See accompanying notes to consolidated financi&sients.
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NATURAL GROCERS BY VITAMIN COTTAGE, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
(Dollars in thousands)

Year ended September 30,

2013 2012 2011
[N TS 0 g ToT o] 1 T3P EPURUURPRRPR $ 10,552 7,477 4,610
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale sdm@s; net of tax
(expense) benefit...........oooiii e 4 (4) —
Other comprehensive income (I0SS) ..........ceeeeemumiriiiiiiiieiieeieeaenn. 4 (4) —
Comprehensive INCOME .........oooii e 10,556 7,473 4,610
Less: Comprehensive income attributable to nomobimyg interest ... — (828) (1,106)
Comprehensive income attributable to Natural Grobgr
Vitamin Cottage, INC. .....ocovveieiiiiceeeeee e $ 10,556 6,645 3,504

See accompanying notes to consolidated financigsients.
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NATURAL GROCERS BY VITAMIN COTTAGE, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(Dollars in thousands)
Year ended September 30,

See accompanying notes to consolidated financitérsients
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2013 2012 2011
Operating activities:
LY T ToT0 T3 L= $ 10,552 7,477 4,610
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigea by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization ..............ceeeeeieereeniiiiiiieee e 13,496 9,949 7,691
Loss (gain) on disposal of property and equipment.........cccccooevvviveeeeesiivnnnnn. 43 301 (25)
Share-based compensation (excluding cash portioestificted stock award paid
of $0, $335 and $0, rESPECLIVEIY) ........e o eveeeeireeesiieeestieeesieeeeanieeeeanes 602 780 —
Excess tax benefit from share-based compensatian (592) (620) —
Deferred income tax expense 2,452 2,673 3,938
Non-cash interest expense ................ 47 38 50
Interest accrued on investments and amortizatigurerhium 27 4) —
Other amOortization .............cooouieiitmmm e 26 68 68
Changes in operating assets and l@abiliti€S. e ..cccvvveeeeiiiiiiiee e
(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable, net (546) 283 56
Income tax receivable .......... . (601) 1,489 (712)
MerchandiSe INVENTOTY ........ooouviiiiie i e (7,928) (7,724) (4,256)
Prepaid expenses and Other aSSEtS ... eerreerieeniiiiieieeeesniiineeens 105 (270) 76
Increase in:
ACCOUNES PAYADIE ..oeiiiiiiiiiiiii e e e 4,480 6,860 2,108
Accrued eXPeNnSES .......cevvriiriiieeeiininns 2,283 2,561 849
Deferred rent and leasehold incentives ...... 1,271 1,241 2,289
Net cash provided by operating acCtiVitieS .. evvveeeeeeriiivrirreeesiinnns 25,717 25,202 16,742
Investing activities:
Acquisition of property and eqUIPMENt .......cccceiiiiiiereeriiiiiiiee e (39,708) (25,259) (20,446)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment.... 5,005 608 35
Purchase of available-for-sale SECUNMLIES eerrcevivvviiieeeiiiiiiiie e (521) (1,751) —
Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale securities..... 920 — —
Proceeds from maturity of available-for-sale S&@8i.............ccccevvvviiiiieeiiiiiinnnen. 1,010 — —
Increase in restricted Cash ..o (500) — —
Payments received on notes receivable, relatey part. — 270 —
Payments received for premiums paid on split-ddflainsurance ........................ — 660 —
Notes receivable, related party—insurance premiumsS..........ooovvvveeeeeeiiiveneeeeenns — 4) (36)
Increase in split-dollar life insurance premiums — (82) (65)
Net cash used in investing activities (34,624) (25,558) (20,512)
Financing activities:
Borrowings under credit facility ............coeeeeeeeeeeiiiiiie e 81 — 5,847
Repayments under credit facCility .........ccueeeereiriiii (81) (27,236) (500)
Repayments under notes payable ..........ceccceiiiiiieeiiiiiiiee e — — (120)
Repayments under notes payable, related party...... (282) (924) (533)
Capital and financing lease obligations payments... (121) — —
Distributions to noncontrolling iNterests ......cc.....ccccveeeeennnns — (810) (990)
Purchase of remaining 45% noncontrolling intere®YC — (10,051) —
Proceeds from common stock issued in initial publffering, net of commissions — 58,135 —
Excess tax benefit from share-based compensation.............ccccccevvviiiiiiie s 592 620 —
Equity issuance costs and BVC transaction COSLS..e......occuvvivrieeiiiiiiiireeeesniienennn (268) (2,460) —
Payments on withholding tax for restricted stock uesting ........... (155) — —
L0oan fEES PAIT ....ovviiiiiiiiiiii e (18) (5) (2)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities..................c..oe... (252) 17,269 3,702
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equisalent...................... (9,159) 16,913 (68)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of Year. cu.....ccccvveeeeiiiiiiiie e 17,291 378 446
Cash and cash equivalents, end Of YEAr .. .evveerieeiiiiiiiiiieeiiece e 8,132 17,291 378
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest, net of capitalized intecé<80, $25 and $21, respectively .. 7 524 615
Cash paid for interest on capital and financingéeabligations .. 2,036 39 —
INCOME tAXES PAID .....vevveiieeee ittt v e e e e e et e e e e e e et e e e e e s s s nrneeeeeeennnaeees 3,916 519 12
Supplemental disclosures of non-cash investingfimadcing activities:
Acquisition of property and equipment not yet paid............cccccevvviiiiiiee i, 3,545 5,007 2,055
Property acquired through capital and financingdeabligations ................c.......... 14,372 5,526 —
Equity issuance costs NOt Yet Paid ........ccceeceeeeriiiiiiieieee e — 256 —
Tax benefit associated with acquisition of noncalfitrg interest in BVC — 3,592 —



NATURAL GROCERS BY VITAMIN COTTAGE, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholder&quity
Fiscal years ended September 30, 2013, 2012 and 201
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Natural
Common Stock — Vitamin Cottage Natural Common Stock — Accumulated Grocers by
Food Markets, Inc. NGVC, $0.001 par other Additional Vitamin Total
Class A Class B value comprehensive paid in Retained Cottage, Inc.  Noncontrolling stockholders’
Shares  Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount (loss) income capital earnings total equity interest equity
Balances September 30, 2010 .......... 1,000 $ 1 625,112 $ 7 — 3 — $ — 3 — 3 10,102 $ 10,896 $ 1,41 $ 12,307

Distributions to noncontrolling

INterest ......cccvvvvviienieiiieens — — — — — — — — — — (990 (990)
Net income attributable to Natural

Grocers by Vitamin Cottage,

INC. e — — — — — — — — 3,504 3,504 — 3,504
Net income attributable to

noncontrolling interest .......... — — — — — — — — — — 1,10t 1,106

Balances September 30, 2011 1,000 1 625,112 793 — — — — 13,606 14,400 1,57 15,927

Distributions to noncontrolling

INterest ......cocvvvvviieniciiiieens — — — — — — — — — — (810 (810)
Net income attributable to

noncontrolling interest .......... — — — — — — — — — — 8% 828
Accumulated other comprehensive

0SS oo — — — — — — 4 — — 4) — 4)

Net income attributable to Natural

Grocers by Vitamin Cottage,

INC. e — — — — — — — — 6,649 6,649 — 6,649
Exchange of Vitamin Cottage

Natural Food Marketdnc. stocl

for common stock of Natural

Grocers by Vitamin Cottage,

INC. ot ene e qap) ) (625,112) (793) 17,378,62 17 — 777 — — — —
Purchase of noncontrolling
INErest.....cooevveiviceieee — — — — 670,05¢ 1 — (8,507 — (8,506 (1,5%) (10,051

Tax benefit of purchase of

noncontrolling interest

(NOtE 1) .o — — — — — — — 3,592 — 3,592 — 3,592
Shares issued upon consummation

of initial public offering, net of

$4,376 underwriter discounts

and commissions (Note 1) .... — — — — 4,167,36 4 — 58,131 — 58,135 — 58,135
ISsuance CoSts ........cccccovvvriviiinnens — — — — — — — (2,717 — (2,717) — (2,717
Share-based compensation ......... — — — — 156,13¢ — — 780 — 780 — 780
Excess tax benefit of share-based

compensation ........c..ccceeeeeenn. — — — — — — — 620 — 620 — 620

Balances September 30, 2012 — — — — 22,372,184 22 (4) 52,676 20,255 72,949 — 72,949

Net income attributable to Natural
Grocers by Vitamin Cottage,

INC. o — — — — — — — — 10,552 10,552 — 10,552
Accumulated other comprehensive
INCOME ..o — — — — — — 4 — — 4 — 4
Issuance costs . — — — — — — — 12) — 12) — 12)
Share-based compensation .......... — — — — 69,06¢ — — 448 — 448 — 448
Excess tax benefit of share-based
COMPENSALION .....ccvvverviaiienis — — — — — — — 592 — 592 — 592
Balances September 30, 2013 .......... — $ — — $ — 22,441,253 $ 22 $ — $ 53,704 $ 30,807 $ 84,533 $ —$ 84,533

See accompanying notes to consolidated financd sients.
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NATURAL GROCERS BY VITAMIN COTTAGE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2013 and 2012

1. Organization
Nature of Business

Natural Grocers by Vitamin Cottage, Inc. (NaturabGers or the holding company) and its consolidatdssidiaries
(collectively, the Company) operate retail storest specialize in natural and organic groceriesdi@try supplements. The
Company operates its retail stores under its tradiehatural Grocers by Vitamin Cotta§eavith 72 stores as of September 30, 2013,
including 31 stores in Colorado, 12 in Texas, feach in Kansas, Montana, New Mexico and Oregoegtbach in Arizona and
Nebraska, two each in Oklahoma and Wyoming, andeaié in Idaho, Missouri and Utah, as well as & ladd repackaging facility
and distribution center in Colorado. The Company 58 and 49 stores as of September 30, 2012 arld Bfxpectively.

2. Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significarkccounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The holding company was incorporated in Delawardpnil 9, 2012. The accompanying consolidated friahstatements
include all the accounts of the Company’s whollyned subsidiaries, Vitamin Cottage Natural Food M&skinc. (the operating
company), Vitamin Cottage Two Ltd. Liability CompafVVC2), Natural Systems, LLC and Boulder Vitamiottage Group, LLC
(BVC). The operating company formed the holding pany in order to facilitate the purchase of thea#img noncontrolling
interest in BVC and consummation of the Companyitail public offering (IPO) during fiscal year 2P1 Prior to the Company’s
IPO on July 25, 2012, the Company had a majorit Sbvnership of BVC. Prior to the settlement of lR®, the Company issued
670,056 shares of stock in the holding companypaid approximately $10.1 million in cash to purshdshe remaining 45%
noncontrolling interest in BVC. Prior to the merg@VC owned fiveNatural Grocers by Vitamin Cottagetail stores, which were
managed by the operating company. Effective Oct8ke2012, BVC merged with and into the operatingipany and ceased to
exist. All significant intercompany balances arahsactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Initial Public Offering

The holding company was incorporated in anticipattbthe Company’s IPO. Prior to the IPO, the hdccompany was a
wholly owned subsidiary of the operating compaityconnection with the Company’s IPO during thertbuquarter of fiscal year
2012, the Company completed a reorganization irthvh) the existing shareholders of the operatimgpamy exchanged capital
stock of the operating company for shares of comstock of the holding company and b) the operatmgpany purchased the
remaining 45% noncontrolling interest in BVC foc@mbination of cash and common stock of the holdimmpany as described
above. The holding company’s only material assésidirect 100% ownership in the operating compann July 25, 2012, the
Company issued 4,167,367 shares to the publiculg&meously with the IPO, certain selling sharekadsold 4,046,918 shares to
the public resulting in no additional proceedsh® €ompany. The total number of shares issudtkitRO was 8,214,285.

Based on the public offering price of $15.00, @wmnpany received gross proceeds from the issudntd®v7,367 shares
issued to the public in the IPO of approximatel $6million, and paid underwriting costs of 7% amproximately $4.4 million, for
net proceeds of approximately $58.1 million. Thenany also incurred issuance costs of approxim&I7 million.

The Company accounted for the acquisition of theCBMncontrolling interest, as described above nasqaity transaction.
Since the transaction was treated as an equitgacdion, the transaction costs were also refleasesl reduction of equity and a
financing activity in the statement of cash flows the year ended September 30, 2012. The Commeanyded the issuance of the
670,056 shares in common stock at par value, rebdeash and cash equivalents by approximately $hilibn, eliminated
approximately $1.5 million in noncontrolling intsteon the balance sheet as of September 30, 26d2¢aorded the remaining
amount as additional paid in capital. As a resfithe acquisition of the remaining noncontrollinterest, the Company was entitled
to tax deductions to the extent of any step upvirbiasis on the assets of BVC, limited to the casisideration paid. Accordingly,
the tax basis in excess of book basis at the dgiarohase resulted in deferred tax assets of appately $3.6 million as of
September 30, 2012.

As of September 30, 2012, the Company used appatiyn$39.2 million of the net proceeds from th®1® pay down all
outstanding amounts under the credit facility gfragimately $26.4 million, pay the cash portiortteé BVC purchase of
approximately $10.1 million, pay expenses assotiafith the IPO of approximately $2.4 million, andypthe cash portion of
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restricted stock awards of approximately $0.3 onilli For the year ended September 30, 2013, thep@wyrused approximately $0.3
million of the proceeds to pay the remaining isogatosts associated with the IPO, and the remapriogeeds from the IPO of
approximately $18.6 million were used to fund wearkicapital and for general corporate purposes.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith generally accepted accounting principlethia United States of
America (GAAP) requires management to make estisnatel assumptions that affect the reported amafirtssets and liabilities,
the disclosure of contingent assets and liabiliethe date of the financial statements and therted amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Managemergws its estimates on an ongoing basis, inclutlioge related to allowances for
self-insurance reserves, valuation of inventotisgful lives for depreciation and amortization adgerty and equipment, valuation
allowances for deferred tax assets and liabildied litigation based on currently available infotima. Changes in facts and
circumstances may result in revised estimates andbresults could differ from those estimates.

Segment Information

The Company has one reporting segment, naturabegahic retail stores. Financial Accounting StaddaéBoard (FASB)
Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 28@gment Reportingstablishes standards for reporting informatioous a
company’s operating segments.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include currency on htgemdand deposits with banks, money market fundseedit and debit
card transactions which typically settle withinglrbusiness days of year end. The Company consillidighly liquid investments
with a remaining maturity of 90 days or less whequired to be cash equivalents.

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash totals $0.5 million as of Septen®9e2013 and represents cash that was pledgée second quarter 2013
as collateral for a standby letter of credit redai® the Company’s workers’ compensation insuraridee Company elected to pledge
this cash as collateral for the letter of crediteduce cost associated with its workers’ compémsatsurance. There was no
restricted cash balance as of September 30, 2012.

Investments

Available-for-sale investments are recorded atvfalue. Unrealized holding gains and losses oilabla-for-sale
investments are excluded from earnings and aretegpas a separate component of stockholders’yequtitl realized. A decline in
the fair value of any available-for-sale securigjdw cost that is deemed to be other-than-tempdcairg period greater than two
fiscal quarters results in a reduction of the ¥@ilue. Declines in fair value deemed to be othanttemporary are charged against
net earnings. Investments that have an originalirity date of less than one year are classifieshast-term assets, and investments
that have an original maturity date greater thaa year are classified as long-term assets.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consists primarily of receiestffom vendors for certain promotional progranesysietter advertising
and other miscellaneous receivables and are pegbapt of any allowances for doubtful accounts.déenmeceivable balances are
generally presented on a gross basis separatesingmrelated payable due. The Company evaluatesbility to collect the
receivables and believes the amounts appearingeooansolidated balance sheets to be fully cobexas of September 30, 2013 and
2012. Accordingly, no allowance for doubtful acctaunas been recorded for the years ended Sept&hp2013, 2012 and 2011.

Concentration of Credit Risk
Financial instruments that potentially subject @w@mpany to a concentration of credit risk consiBhprily of investments
in cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivadlégaestments in available-for-sale securitiesee Company’s cash and cash

equivalent account balances, which are held in nfajancial institutions, exceeded the Federal Bigdasurance Corporation’s
federally insured limits by approximately $4.2 naifi as of September 30, 2013.
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Vendor Concentration

For the years ended September 30, 2013, 2012 drid @0rchases from the Company’s largest vendooardf its
subsidiaries represented approximately 55%, 53%b86 of all product purchases made during the etisgeperiods. However, the
Company believes that, if necessary, alternate asncbuld supply similar products in adequate gtiastto avoid material
disruption to operations.

Merchandise Inventory

Merchandise inventory consists of goods held fte.sehe cost of inventory includes certain costoagmted with the
preparation of inventory for sale including invenytoverhead costs. Merchandise inventory is cawietie lower of cost or market.
Cost is determined using the weighted averagersettod.
Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is stated at historical lesst accumulated depreciation. In accordance WAtBB ASC

Topic 835,Interest the Company capitalizes interest, if applicabkepart of the historical costs of leasehold imprognts.
Depreciation is provided using the straight-linetme over the following estimated useful livesloé related assets.

Useful lives
(in years)
(= Vg To T 00T o] 01Y/=10 0 =] o1 £ 5-15
Leasehold and building improvemMENtS ........cccceeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeer e e e 2-20
Capitalized real estate leases for build-to-SOItest..............ccceeevvviiiiiiiciiiiinnne, 40
Capitalized real estate 18aSES .......cccoceceeeeeiiieiee e 15
FiXtures and @QUIPIMENT ........oooiuiiiiit oot e e e e e e e e e eaaaeeeeaaannnns 5-7
Computer hardware and SOftWare ... 3-5

For land improvements and leasehold and buildingravements, depreciation is recorded over the shoftthe assets’
useful lives or the lease terms. Maintenance, refeid renewals that neither add to the valueeptbperty nor appreciably prolong
its life are charged to expense as incurred. Gaidslosses on disposition of property and equiprasntncluded in store expenses in
the year of disposition, and primarily relate torstrelocations.

The Company capitalizes certain costs incurred datbeloping or obtaining internal-use software. i@diged software
costs are included in property and equipment irctiresolidated balance sheets and are amortizedtwwestimated useful lives of
the software. Software costs that do not meet alagation criteria are expensed as incurred.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company records its financial assets and iigsilat fair value in accordance with the framewimr measuring fair
value in authoritative guidance. The framework lgisgthes a fair value hierarchy that distinguishesmMeen assumptions based on
market data (observable inputs) and the Compamnwisassumptions (unobservable inputs). The threzddeare defined as follows:

Level 1— Inputs are unadjusted quoted prices fentital assets or liabilities in active markets;

Level 2— Inputs include quoted prices for similasets or liabilities in active markets, and infgbts are observabfer
the asset or liability, either directly or indirggtfor substantially the full term of the finantiastrument; and

Level 3— Inputs are unobservable and are considggadficant to the fair value measurement.

Transfers between levels of the fair value hierpiafe deemed to have occurred as of the date @it or transfer.
Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Intangible assets primarily consist of goodwilademarks, favorable operating leases and covenatt®-compete.
Goodwill and thevitamin Cottage@rademark have indefinite lives and are not armed; rather, they are tested for impairment at
least annually. Intangible assets with definite¢ivare amortized over their estimated useful lives. Company evaluates the
reasonableness of the useful lives of these intdewat least annually.

In accordance with ASU No. 2011-08tangibles—Goodwill and Other (Topic 350); Testiagodwill for Impairment,
goodwill is reviewed for impairment at least antyialThe Company’s annual impairment testing idqrened as of September 30. In
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performing the Company’s analysis of goodwill, G@mpany first evaluates qualitative factors, inalgdrelevant events and
circumstances, to determine whether it is mordyikgan not that the fair value of a reporting usitess than its carrying amount. If
it is not more likely than not that the fair valofa reporting unit is less than its carrying antotime two-step impairment test is not
necessary. If it is determined that it is morelijikaan not that the fair value of a reporting ugitess than its carrying amount, then
the Company would perform the two-step impairmest.tUnder the first step, the fair value of theoréing unit is compared with its
carrying value (including goodwill). If the fair ige of the reporting unit is less than its carryuadue, an indication of goodwill
impairment exists for the reporting unit and ther@any must perform step two of the impairment tesasurement). Under step
two, an impairment loss is recognized for any egadghe carrying amount of the reporting unit'©dwill over the implied fair
value of that goodwill. Thus far, the Company heorded no impairment charges related to goodwill.

Impairment of Intangible and Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets, such as property and equipmehparchased intangible assets subject to amadigare reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circurnstaimdicate that the carrying amount of an assgtmot be recoverable. The
Company aggregates long-lived assets at the steetWwhich the Company considers to be the loveatllin the organization for
which independent identifiable cash flows are aldd. If circumstances require a long-lived assetsset group to be tested for
possible impairment, the Company first comparesamodinted cash flows expected to be generatedabystbre to its carrying value.
If the carrying value of the long-lived asset osetggroup is not recoverable on an undiscounteld ft@s basis, impairment is
recognized to the extent that the carrying valumeess its fair value. The Company considers faciocd as historic and forecasted
operating results, trends and future prospectsentumarket value, significant industry trends attter economic and regulatory
factors in performing these analyses. Thus farGbmpany has recorded no impairment charges ddiatatangible or long-lived
assets.

Deferred Financing Costs

Certain costs incurred with borrowings or estalotisht of credit facilities are deferred. These castsamortized over the
life of the borrowing or the life of the credit flity using the effective interest method.

Leases

The Company leases retail stores, a bulk food keqgarg facility and distribution center and admirasive offices under
long-term operating or capital and financing lea3é®se leases include scheduled increases in mmirants and renewal
provisions at the option of the Company. The ldas® for accounting purposes commences with the tthet Company takes
possession of the space and ends on the latee pfittmary lease term or the expiration of any reaigweriods that are deemed to be
reasonably assured at the inception of the lease.

Operating leases

The Company accounts for operating leases withhrelidays and escalating payment terms by recoggittie associated
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease teor certain leases, the Company has also reteagh from landlords to
compensate for costs incurred by the Company irimgake store locations ready for operation (leakkmcentives or tenant
allowances). Leasehold incentives received froandlbrd are deferred and recognized on a straightbasis as a reduction to rent
expense over the lease term.

Capital financing leases

From time to time, the Company enters into leagds developers for build-to-suit store locatioridpon lease execution,
the Company analyzes its involvement during thestrostion period with respect to ASC Topic 848ases.As a result of defined
forms of lessee involvement, the Company coulddentked the “owner” for accounting purposes durimgcdbnstruction period, and
may be required to capitalize the project costghalance sheet. If the project costs are diageth the Company performs a sale-
leaseback analysis upon completion of the constnucgpursuant to ASC Topic 84Deasesto determine if the Company can remove
the assets from its balance sheet. If the assebt®e removed from the balance sheet, the faikehaalue of the building remains
recognized as an asset on the balance sheet,&iting corresponding capital lease financing oliiggaequal to the fair market
value of the building less any amount the Compamjributed towards construction. The Company da¢secord rent expense for
the rental payments under capital financing ledsaistather rental payments under the capital firanlease obligations are
recognized as a reduction of the capital leasenfimgy obligation and as interest expense. Theadpase asset is depreciated on a
straight line basis over a 40 year life for buigrand an indefinite life for land.
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Capital leases

Also from time to time, the Company enters intsksathat per ASC Topic 840easesare deemed to be capital leases. On
these leases, the Company capitalizes the preakm& of the minimum lease payments and recordsraggonding capital lease
obligation. The Company does not record rent expdor the rental payments under capital leasasather rental payments under
the capital lease obligations are recognized aslaction of the capital lease obligation and asrést expense. The capital lease
asset is depreciated on a straight line basisthesterm of the related lease.

Self-Insurance

The Company is self-insured for certain lossedirgjao employee medical, dental benefits and warkempensation.
Stop-loss coverage has been purchased to limitsexpdo any significant level of claims. Self-instilosses are accrued based upon
the Company’s estimates of the aggregate claimsri@d but not reported using historical experiedd® estimated accruals for
these liabilities could be significantly affectdduture occurrences and claims differ from histatitrends.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized at the point of sale, nat-bbuse coupons, discounts, returns and allowai&dss taxes are not
included in sales. The Company charges sales taX taxable customer purchases and remits thess taonthly to the appropriate
taxing jurisdiction. The Company records a def¢énevenue liability within accrued expenses wheselts the Company’s gift cards
or issues gift cards to employees or for loyaltyaed or promotional purposes, and records a satswahcustomer redeems the gift
card. Generally, the gift cards do not expire. Toenpany currently does not record breakage foreshpsrtions of gift cards.

Cost of Goods Sold and Occupancy Costs

Cost of goods sold and occupancy costs includesdsieof inventory sold during the period net cfodiunts and allowances,
as well as, distribution, shipping and handlingtspstore occupancy costs and costs of the bulik fepackaging facility and
distribution center. The amount shown is net ofougs rebates from third-party vendors in the fofnquantity discounts and
payments. Vendor consideration associated withyarodiscounts is recorded as either a reductianexthandise inventory or cost
of goods sold. Store occupancy costs include oemymon area maintenance and real estate taxese @&itcupancy costs do not
include any rent amounts for the store leasesitiledbgs capital and financing lease obligatioree(Blote 13).

Store Expenses

Store expenses consist of store-level expensesasushlaries, benefits and share-based compensaijgplies, utilities,
depreciation, gain or loss on disposal of assedso#tmer related costs associated with operatiopp®ti Store expenses also include
purchasing support services and advertising an#tetiag costs.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses consist of salaries, benafid share-based compensation, occupancy ceptgcihtion, office
supplies, hardware and software expenses, profedsiervices expenses and other general and adimaiivis expenses.

Pre-Opening and Relocation Expenses

Costs associated with the opening of new storeslocating existing stores are expensed as incurred
Advertising and Marketing

Advertising and marketing costs are expensed asried and are included in store expenses and meHogp and relocation
expenses in the consolidated statements of incdotal advertising and marketing expenses for tleesyended September 30, 2013,
2012 and 2011 were approximately $6.2 million, $&illion and $5.4 million, respectively, net of \dor reimbursements received

for newsletter advertising. Advertising expensentmirsements received from vendors totaled apprdeimn&1.5 million, $1.3
million and $1.1 million for the years ended Septem30, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
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Share-Based Compensation

The Company adopted an Omnibus Incentive Planrninection with the IPO on July 25, 2012. Restrictechmon stock
units are granted at the market price of the stocthe day of grant and expensed over the appéoaddting period.

The excess tax benefits for recognized compensatists are reported as a credit to additional-pazhpital and as
operating cash outflows, but only when such extasbenefits are realized by a reduction to curtaxes payable.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes using thet assl liability method. This method requires retgtign of deferred
tax assets and liabilities for expected futuredamsequences of temporary differences that cuyremibt between the tax basis and
financial reporting basis of the Company’s assetslabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilitees measured using enacted tax rates
in the respective jurisdictions in which the Compaperates.

The Company considers the need to establish vatuatiowances to reduce deferred income tax ags¢h® amounts the
Company believes are more likely than not to bevered.

The Company recognizes the effect of income taxipas only if those positions are more likely thaat of being
sustained. Recognized income tax positions are uneést the largest amount that is greater than I8@%y of being realized.
Changes in recognition or measurement are refléntdee period in which the change in judgment escAlthough the Company
believes that its estimates are reasonable, agsalts could differ from these estimates. In addjtthe Company is subject to
periodic audits and examinations by the InternaleReie Service (IRS) and other state and local geauthorities.

Any interest or penalties incurred related to inedaxes are expensed as incurred and treatedraampent differences for
tax purposes.

Noncontrolling Interest in Consolidated Financidhfments

Prior to the Company’s IPO on July 25, 2012, thenBany had a majority 55% ownership of BVC which edriive
Natural Grocers by Vitamin Cottagetail stores managed by the operating compamynddiately prior to the IPO, the Company
issued common stock and paid cash to purchaseth&ming 45% noncontrolling interest in BVC. Nontwolling interest in the
Company’s consolidated financial statements rekatéise noncontrolling 45% ownership in BVC priorthe purchase. Net income
attributable to noncontrolling interest and nebime attributable to the Company are reported stgdgiia the consolidated
statements of income and statements of compretemgiome.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2013, the Financial Accounting Standd@dard, or FASB, issued Accounting Standards UnaatASU,
No. 2013-02 “Reporting of Amounts Reclassified ©fiAccumulated Other Comprehensive Income.” ASU Rl 3-02 supersedes
the presentation requirements for reclassificatmurtsof accumulated other comprehensive incometh BSU No. 2011-12 and
2011-05. ASU No. 2013-02 requires an entity tagggegate the total change of each component ef attmprehensive income
either on the face of the income statement orseparate disclosure in the notes. Amounts that@resquired to be reclassified in
their entirety to net income must be cross-refezdrto other disclosures that provide additionahiflethis update is effective for the
Company beginning in the first quarter of fiscadly2014. The Company does not expect the adopfitinsoupdate will have a
material effect on its consolidated financial stagats.

3. Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share excludes dilution andnspaited by dividing net income attributable to Nat@rocers by
Vitamin Cottage, Inc. stockholders by the weightedrage shares outstanding during the period. d&ileairnings per share reflects
the potential dilution that could occur if the Coang’s granted but unvested restricted stock unéiewo vest, resulting in the
issuance of common stock that would then sharkdarearnings of the Company. Presented below is basi diluted earnings per
share for the years ended September 30, 2013,&@12011, dollars in thousands, except share anshpee data:
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Year ended September 30,

2013 2012 2011

Net income attributable to Natural Grocers

Vitamin Cottage, INC. .......ccccciviiiiiiiieeeenee $ 10,552 6,649 3,504
Weighted average common shares

OULSEANAING ..vevieiiiieiiiiee e 22,399,346 22,372,184 22,372,184
Effect of dilutive securities ............ccoceeeceevnenee. 42,036 90,909 89,221
Weighted average common shares outstanding

including effect of dilutive securities .......... 22,441,382 22,463,093 22,461,405
Basic earnings per share ...........ccooo e $ 0.47 0.30 0.16
Diluted earnings per share .............cccceeeeeeenn. $ 0.47 0.30 0.16

The Company did not declare any dividends in treyended September 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011.

As of September 30, 2013, the Company had 50,00G08res of common stock authorized and 22,44 kRBa&f&s issued
and outstanding, as well as 10,000,000 sharesefdnped common stock authorized with none issuédoartstanding.

4. Investments

The Company holds money market fund investmentsafeaclassified as cash and cash equivalentppbaimately $0.5
million and $0.2 million as of September 30, 2008 2012, respectively.

The Company also had available-for-sale securijeserally consisting of certificates of deposit;porate bonds and
municipal bonds totaling approximately $1.1 milliand $1.8 million, of which approximately $1.1 ridtht and $0.8 million were
classified as short-term as of September 30, 26832812, respectively. At September 30, 2013atlerage maturities of the
Company’s short-term investments was approximdbedymonths. At September 30, 2012, the averageinitias of the Company’s
short-term and long-term investments were approvamaight and 17 months, respectively.

The Company established an investment policy irfabeth quarter of fiscal year 2012, with the oljee to achieve
maximum yields on invested funds while protectimggpal, as well as ensuring that funds will baitable to meet operating cash
flow requirements. The investment policy estaldisthe type of investments that are acceptablajre=gthat each investment have a
certain high level of rating as established by &ad and Poor’s or Moody’s and limits the amour&iy one investment that may be
held based on the market value of the total fundiseatime of investment purchase. As of SepterBe2013 and 2012, the
Company’s investments in available-for-sale semgitvere in compliance with the Company’s investnpeticy.

During the years ended September 30, 2013 and 2@dZompany recorded insignificant amounts ofregeincome and
expense relating to amortized premiums paid. Tdwagany had no money market fund investments ofablaifor-sale investments
as of September 30, 2011.

As of September 30, 2013, available-for-sale séesriotaling approximately $1.1 million were intnmrealized gain
positions with an insignificant amount recordedatumulated other comprehensive income for ternpamareases in fair value,
consisting of five securities in gain positions dodr securities in loss positions due to the arpatibn of premiums paid to acquire
the securities. As of September 30, 2012, avatédat-sale securities totaling approximately $1i8iom were in net unrealized loss
positions with an insignificant amount recordedatumulated other comprehensive income for tempataclines in fair value,
consisting of three securities in gain positiond aime securities in loss positions due to the éizaifon of premiums paid to acquire
the securities. There was no other-than-temponapgairment on available-for-sale securities asegt€mber 30, 2013 or September
30, 2012.

5. Fair Value Measurements

The Company records its financial assets and iimsilat fair value in accordance with the framekvor measuring fair
value in authoritative guidance. The framework lelgthes a fair value hierarchy that distinguishesMeen assumptions based on
market data (observable inputs) and the Compamwrisassumptions (unobservable inputs). Non-findrasaets, such as goodwill
and long-lived assets, are accounted for at fdirevan a non-recurring basis. These items areddst impairment on the
occurrence of a triggering event or in the casgomfdwill, at least on an annual basis.
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The carrying amounts of financial instruments motuded in the table below, including those casth @ash equivalents that
are not invested in money market funds, restricish, accounts receivable, accounts payable aed atbrued expenses,
approximate fair value because of the short matofithose instruments. The Company believes timtarrying values approximate
fair values of note payable- related party witHimaaterial respects, as the spread between thedstaterest rate and market rates do
not cause a material difference in valuation, alt agethe absence of credit risk on the instruméstof September 30, 2013, the
entire balance of the note payable- related patyldeen paid.

As of September 30, 2013 and 2012, the Companyhgfbllowing financial assets and liabilities thegtre subject to fair
value measurements according to the fair valuatgay, dollars in thousands:

As of September 30,
2013 2012
Input Carrying Carrying
Level Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value

Cash and cash equivalents:
Money market fund . 1 $ 501 501 246 246
Investments — avallable for sale securltles

Certificates of deposit ........ccccccoeeeii . 2 585 585 979 979
Corporate bonds .......cccccceeeeeeiiiiin i 2 376 376 485 485
Municipal bonds .......ccccccceeeeeeiiiiiiiiieeeen, 2 188 188 288 288

The money market fund and available-for-sale s&esrare carried at fair value. For debt securfbesvhich quoted market
prices are not available, the fair value is detagdiusing an income approach valuation technigatecttmsiders, among other things,
rates currently observed in publicly traded debtkeigs for debt of similar terms to companies witmparable credit risk. During the
years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, the Cgmpachased approximately $0.5 million and $1.8iam| respectively, in
available-for-sale securities. During the yeamdeshSeptember 30, 2013 and 2012, available-forsealerities of approximately $1.0
million and $0, respectively, matured, and avadafiolr-sale securities of approximately $0.1 millemd $0 million, respectively,
were sold, resulting in an increase in the moneskatdund (level 1) and a decrease in availablestxurities (level 2). During the
years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, therenwdransfers between levels and the Company hdelveb3 assets. See Note 4
for additional disclosures.

6. Property and Equipment

The Company had the following property and equipnbatances as of September 30, 2013 and 2012rslallghousands:

Useful lives As of September 30,
(in years) 2013 2012
Construction in process ............ n/a $ 5,421 3,642
Capitalized real estate leases for bUI|d to smt
stores, including unamortized land of $617
and $600, respectively ........cccocoeervieaene 40 15,774 5,205
Capitalized real estate leases ........ccccee—.. 15 4,866 —
Land improvements .........cccccceveeeeeeesiiennnns 5-15 1,000 832
Leasehold and building improvements .......... -2 59,058 45,438
Fixtures and equipment . 5-7 56,459 41,830
Computer hardware and software .................. 3-5 8,252 6,697
150,830 103,644
Less accumulated depreciation and
amortization ... (51,92 (39,041)
Property and equipment, net ...................... $ 98,910 64,603

Capitalized real estate leases include the assebafid-to-suit stores and buildings under cagi&akes as of September 30,
2013 and 2012, respectively (see Note 2 and Note 13

Construction in process includes approximately $iilBon and $1.9 million as of September 30, 2@t8 2012,
respectively, related to construction costs fotdsta-suit leases in process for which the Compaag deemed the owner during the
construction period.
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Costs capitalized for computer software developrf@nthe years ended September 30, 2013 and 2062approximately
$0.1 million and $0.1 million, respectively, prinfgidue to capitalization of internal staff compatien. Total costs capitalized for
qualifying construction projects on leasehold andding improvements and fixtures and equipmenkides approximately $0.4
million and $0.3 million, for the years ended Seqter 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively, relatedtarmal staff compensation.
Insignificant amounts of interest costs were céipitd for the year ended September 30, 2012. Aratitin expense related to

capitalized internal staff compensation was appnately $0.3 million and $0.5 million for the yeansded September 30, 2013 and
2012, respectively.

Depreciation and amortization expense for the yeaded September 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 is suzedaas follows,
dollars in thousands:

Year ended September 30,

2013 2012 2011
Depreciation and amortization expense included in

cost of goods sold and occupancy costs ........... $ 709 436 449
Depreciation and amortization expense included in

SIOre EXPENSES.....coeiiiiiiiiiiii e 12,365 8,710 6,403
Depreciation and amortization expense included in

administrative eXpenses ........cccccceeeeeeeeeeeeen. 422 803 839

Total depreciation and amortization expense .... $ 13,496 9,949 7,691

7. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill and other intangible assets as of Septe®®e2013 and 2012, are summarized as followsadoin thousands:

Useful lives As of September 30,
(in years) 2013 2012
Amortizable intangible assets:
Covenants-not-to-compete ............ceeevveeeeenes 5.0 $ 293 293
Favorable operating lease ................ccec... 5.0 339 339
Other intangibles .............cccccoiiiiceeeen 0.5 22 22
Amortized intangible assets ..................... 654 654
Less accumulated amortization .................... (654) (627)
Amortized intangible assets, net ............... — 27
Trademark ... Indefinite 389 389
Total other intangibles, net ..................... 389 416
GOoOAWIll . Indefinite 511 511
Total goodwill and other intangibles,
NEL vttt ettt s $ 900 927

Amortization expense was less than $0.1 milliomragimately $0.1 million and $0.1 million for thegrs ended
September 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectivatgrelis no scheduled amortization expense for¢he gnded September 30, 2014
as the Company’s amortized intangible assets #yeafmortized as of September 30, 2013.

8. Accrued Expenses

The composition of accrued expenses as of Septed@h@013 and 2012, are summarized as followsadoih thousands:

As of September 30,

2013 2012
Payroll and employee-related expenses . - $ 5,247 4,413
Accrued income, property, sales and use tax payable ............ 2,686 2,197
Deferred revenue related to gift card sales... 625 556
(@1 0= S U PP P PP PTTUUPRRUPPR 748 617

Total accrued expenses $ 9,306 7,783
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9. Deferred Financing Costs

The Company has capitalized costs incurred in gggits credit facility (see Note 10). Deferreddircing costs, net of
accumulated amortization were less than $0.1 milind approximately $0.1 million as of September2813 and 2012,
respectively. Accumulated amortization was apprataty $0.9 million and $0.8 million as of SeptemB6ér 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

Total amortization expense for deferred financingts was less than $0.1 million for the years er@ggtember 30, 2013
and 2012, respectively, and approximately $0.lionilfor the year ended September 30, 2011. Scheéduertization expense is
less than $0.1 million for the year ending Septem®@ 2014 at which time the deferred financingtswgll be fully amortized.

10. Long-Term Debt
Credit Facility

The Company has a credit facility which consista oévolving credit facility and had a term loaattlvas fully repaid in
fiscal year 2012 (see further discussion of th@lkgrg credit facility and the term loan below) hd operating company is the
borrower under the credit facility and its obligais under the credit facility are guaranteed byhitiding company.

The credit facility requires compliance with centaperational and financial covenants includingwetage ratio and fixed
charge coverage ratio. The credit facility alsotaors certain other limitations on the Company'sigito incur additional debt,
guarantee other obligations, grant liens on asgetanake investments or acquisitions as definéldarcredit facility agreement.
Additionally, the revolving credit facility prohits the payment of cash dividends to the holdingpammy from the operating
company, without the bank’s consent except whedefault or event of default exists.

If no default or event of default exists dividerade allowed for various audit, accounting, taxusgies, indemnification,
reimbursement, insurance and other reasonable sgpémthe ordinary course of business. The Coyngaas not expect such
restrictions to impact its ability to meet cashigétions. The terms and conditions of the agreeroerihe revolving credit facility
and associated documents are customary and in@dottng other things, guarantees, pledges and sobtaihs. At September 30,
2013 and 2012, the Company was in compliance \Wihdebt covenants.

On December 12, 2013, the Company entered intor@nded and restated credit agreement. See Ndbe 2@ther
discussion.

Revolving Credit Facility

On October 31, 2012, the Company amended the agréegaverning the revolving credit facility to dease the credit
facility limit from $21.0 million to $15.0 milliorand to lower the unused commitment fee to 0.20% ©a375%. The reduction in
the unused commitment fee was retroactive to Augu2012. The credit facility was scheduled to matn June 30, 2014 before the
Company entered into the amended and restated €aetlity (see Note 22). The Company may borrovepgay and re-borrow
amounts under this revolving credit facility at a&imge prior to the maturity date.

The Company had no amounts outstanding on its veangptredit facility as of September 30, 2013 afd2 During the
year ended September 30, 2013, the Company hadxamgitely $0.1 million drawn on the revolving crefiicility, for one day.
Proceeds from the Company’s IPO on July 25, 2012 weed to pay off outstanding amounts under thelving credit facility of
$10.6 million. Interest is determined by the lersladministrative agent and is stated at the ae§LlkIBOR rate for the interest
period plus the lender spread. The average anntesbst rate for the years ended September 30, 2012 and 2011 was 3.30%,
2.54% and 2.38%, respectively.

Term Loan

The Company had no amounts outstanding under theléan as of September 30, 2013 and 2012. Prodemdshe
Company’s IPO on July 25, 2012 were used to prépayhen outstanding amount under the term lo&16f8 million. The
Company cannot borrow additional amounts on tha tean and as such had no activity under the tean in the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2013. Interest was determined bletftrer's administrative agent and was statedeaglfernate base rate for the
interest period plus the applicable lender spréad.average interest rate for the years ended i@bpte30, 2012 and 2011 was
approximately 2.02% and 2.19%, respectively.

67



Capital and Financing Lease Obligations

The Company has nine leases that are includealpitat and financing lease obligations (see Notaa®13). The Company
does not record rent expense for these capitateaidestate leases, but rather rental payments timeleapital leases are recognized
as a reduction of the capital and financing leddigation and as interest expense (see Note 13).

Interest

The Company incurred gross interest expense abappately $2.2 million, $0.6 million and $0.7 nidh in the years ended
September 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectivalgrdst expense for the year ended September 38, r2lates primarily to interest
on capital and financing lease obligations. Irdeexpense for the years ended September 30, 2012041 relates primarily to
interest for activity under the credit facility,cluding amortization of deferred financing cost$e Company did not capitalize any
interest for the year ended September 30, 201haddnsignificant amounts of interest capitalizedthe years ended September 30,
2012 and 2011.

11. Note Payable—Related Party

As of September 30, 2012, the Company had an urestcwte payable, bearing interest at 5.33% annudith an
outstanding balance of approximately $0.3 millidthe balance of the note payable — related parsyfully repaid during fiscal year
2013.

12. Split-Dollar Life Insurance Premiums—Related Pay

The Company had an agreement with a related patythat owned a split-dollar life insurance pylidated January 1,
1994, on Philip Isely. One of the semiannual poficgmium payments was paid by the Company each ge€aitionally, the
Company entered into a note receivable on Augus?Q®4, with the co-trustees of the related patsgttwhereby the Company had
agreed to pay the other semiannual policy premiusmehch policy year. The agreement stated that tiigepolicy was paid, the
Company would be repaid the premiums paid pluseésteat 2.5% per annum. The Company entered intdlateral assignment with
the related party trust whereby the split-doll& insurance policy was held as collateral sectoityts advances for premiums paid
to date.

On June 14, 2012, the Company entered into an mgmewith Zephyr Isely, Kemper Isely and Heathetsgly, as co-
trustees of The Philip and Margaret A. Isely Jdinist Number One to terminate and cancel the dplitr life insurance agreement,
the collateral assignment, the loan agreementelated promissory note effective with the paymenthe co-trustees/trust of all
outstanding sums payable to the Company. As of 1d4n2012, the outstanding amounts were approxlyn&€e7 million for the
premiums paid under the split-dollar life insuraageeement and $0.2 million for the premiums paidl iaterest accrued per the loan
agreement for a total receivable to the Compar§0d¥ million. On June 15, 2012, the trust rephid &mount in full, and consistent
with the original terms of the agreement, the Comydaas no further arrangements with the relatetigsaor the trust and no further
obligations to pay the split-dollar life insurangalicy premiums or any death benefit.

13. Lease Commitments
Operating Leases

The Company leases retail stores, a bulk food keggaig facility and distribution center and admirative offices under
long-term operating leases through 2033. Thesedaaslude scheduled increases in minimum rentgemelval provisions at the
option of the Company. Deferred rent expense &epfember 30, 2013 and 2012 was approximatelyr$dlion and $3.6 million,
respectively. Tenant improvement allowances reckfk@m landlords (leasehold incentives) are recorakeliabilities and recognized
evenly as a reduction to rent expense over the lesm. Leasehold incentives at September 30, 26d2012 were approximately
$5.7 million and $5.3 million, respectively.

The Company has seven leases with Chalet Propdtti€s(Chalet), one lease with the Isely Family daFrust LLC and
one lease with 3801 East Second Avenue LLC, aledlparties (see Note 16). The terms and reried td these related party leases
are similar to leases with nonrelated parties andamarket rental rates. The leases began aiugatimes with the earliest occurring
in November 1999, continue for various terms thioBgbruary 2027 and include various options towemesent annual lease
payments range from less than $0.1 million to apipmately $0.3 million per lease.
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The future minimum annual commitments under thengeof the Company’s operating leases having initiakmaining
terms in excess of one year as of September 3@, &@&las follows, dollars in thousands:

Third Related Total Operating
parties parties Leases
$ 15,110 1,650 16,760
16,578 1,654 18,232
16,326 1,633 17,959
15,883 1,635 17,518
15,784 1,635 17,419
108,861 12,117 120,978
$ 188,542 20,324 208,866

Total rent expense, including common area expemsgsvarehouse rent, for the years ended Septerib2033, 2012 and
2011 totaled approximately $14.8 million, $12.1lioil and $9.9 million, respectively, which is indeed in cost of goods sold and
occupancy costs and administrative expenses iodhsolidated statements of income. In additiopraximately $0.6 million, $0.5

million and $0.4 million is included in pre-openiagd relocation expense associated with rent expenstores that had not yet
opened for the years ended September 30, 2013,&@2011, respectively.

For the year ended September 30, 2013, the Conmgmngleted one sale-leaseback transaction with exlatad party for
proceeds of approximately $5.0 million, with a gamthe sale of approximately $0.2 million whictsteeen deferred and will be
amortized over the initial lease term. Concurkeith the sale, the Company entered into an agreetodease the property back
from the purchaser over an initial lease term ofdars. The Company classified the lease as apgratd considers the transaction
as a normal leaseback under the provisions of A§@cI840,Leaseswith no other continuing involvement.

Capital and Financing Lease Obligations

Capital and financing lease obligations as of Saptr 30, 2013 and 2012, are as follows, dollathamsands:

As of September 30,

2013 2012
Capital lease finance obligations, due in monthtallments

through fiscal year 2028 and 2027, respectively.................... $ 13,746 4,181
Capital lease obligations due in monthly installtsehrough fiscal

VAN 2028 ... e 4,792 —
Capital lease finanaebligation for assets under construction, du

monthly installments through fiscal year 2028 af@?2,

(=TS o1 Tox 11Y/= | PSSR 1,284 1,345

Total capital and financing lease obligations...............cceneee 19,822 5,526
LeSS CUIMTENt POIION.....cooi ittt (174) (12

Total capital and financing lease obligations, afeturrent

(0101110 ] o IR USRS UPPROUPRPPPPO $ 19,648 5,514

Capital lease finance obligations

From time to time, the Company enters into leasés @evelopers for build-to-suit store locationdpon lease execution,
the Company analyzes its involvement during thestroction period with respect to ASC Topic 848ases.As a result of defined
forms of lessee involvement, the Company coulddsntked the “owner” for accounting purposes durimgdbnstruction period, and
would be required to capitalize construction coststs balance sheet. If the project costs wepda&ed, the Company performs a
sale-leaseback analysis upon completion of theeptdp determine if the Company can remove thet &ssa its balance sheet. If
the asset cannot be removed from the balance shedgir market value of the building remains be balance sheet along with a
corresponding capital lease finance obligation etputne fair market value of the building less amgounts the Company
contributed toward construction. The Company teguital lease finance obligations totaling approxeha$13.7 million and $4.2
million as of September 30, 2013 and 2012, respalgti The leases that created the obligationsrexqri become subject to renewal
clauses at various dates through fiscal year 202& Company does not record rent expense foratdpétse finance obligations, but
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rather rent payments per the leases are recogagzadeduction of the related capital lease finatdigation and as interest expense.
Depreciation expense for the related capitalizaddeassets is included in store expenses in treolidated statements of income. At
the end of the lease term, the offsetting balan€#ise capitalized assets, net of accumulated degiren, and capital lease finance
obligation will be de-recognized.

Capital lease obligations

The Company had capital lease obligations totadjproximately $4.8 million as of September 30, 20TBe Company had
no capital lease obligations as of September 302 2®er ASC Topic 84Qeasescertain of the Company’s leases for store locatio
are considered capital leases, and as such, the&@gnhas capitalized the present value of the minirtease payments under the
leases for the stores and recorded related cégéisd obligations. The leases that created thgatioin expire or become subject to
renewal clauses at various dates through fiscal3@28. The Company does not record rent expemsmpital lease obligations,
but rather rent payments per the leases are rexmyjas a reduction of the related capital leasigatidn and as interest expense.
Depreciation expense for the related capitalizaddeassets is included in store expenses in trmligated statements of income.

Capital lease finance obligation for assets undamstruction

As of September 30, 2013, the Company has recappximately $1.3 million for construction in pess and
approximately $1.3 million in capital lease finaratgligations for assets under construction. Omgestuction is complete, the
Company expects to be deemed to have continuirg\viement and to capitalize any additional costsavfstruction. As of
September 30, 2012, the Company had recorded appatety $1.9 million for construction in processiaapproximately $1.3
million in capital lease finance obligations. T@empany will not record rent expense for thesedgsalsut rather rental payments
under the leases will be recognized as a reduofitime capital lease finance obligation and agé@sieexpense. Depreciation expense
for the related capitalized lease assets is indudstore expenses in the consolidated stateroéimisome. At the end of the lease
term, the offsetting balances of the capitalizesktss net of accumulated depreciation, and the¢atdgase finance obligation will be
de-recognized.

Future payments for capital lease finance obligasi@nd capital lease obligations

Future payments under the terms of the leasegfemexl stores included in capital lease financagatitins and capital lease
obligations as of September 30, 2013 are as follda#ars in thousands:

Interest Principal Total future

expense on payments on Interest payments on

capital lease capital lease expense on Payments on capital lease
finance finance capital lease capital lease  finance and capita
obligations obligations obligations obligations lease obligations
2014 ., $ 1,979 51 681 120 2,831
2015 .. 1,971 59 667 134 2,831
2016 ..o 1,961 69 650 151 2,831
2017 oo 1,950 79 631 170 2,830
2018 ..o 1,938 99 608 192 2,837
Thereafter........c.ccccooeee. 16,386 3,402 3,597 4,025 27,410
$ 26,185 3,759 6,834 4,792 41,570

Future payments under the terms of the leasééostiore location at which construction was in pesg as of September 30,

2013, based on the store opening date in thedfirsiter of fiscal 2014, is as follows, dollarsmtisands:

Interest expense o
capital lease
finance obligation
for assets under

Payments on
capital lease
finance obligation
for assets under

Future

paymentsunder terms of
capital lease finance
obligation for assets

construction construction under construction

2014 $ 135 3 138
2015 134 13 147
2016 133 14 147
2017 131 16 147
2018 129 18 147
Thereafter 1,132 403 1,535

$ 1,794 467 2,261
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14. Stockholders’ Equity
The Company did not pay dividends during the yeaded September 30, 2013, 2012 or 2011.
15. Share-Based Compensation

The Company adopted an Omnibus Incentive PlanRlae) on July 17, 2012. Restricted stock unit aswannted pursuant
to the Plan, if they vest, will be settled in sisaoéthe Company’s common stock. At the adoptiothefPlan, there were 1,090,151
shares of common stock available for issuance loredg under the Plan, of which 751,889 remain kkdé for grants as of
September 30, 2013. The Plan provides for awardgtidns, stock appreciation rights, stock gramstricted stock units, other
share-based awards and cash-based incentive atwaflicers, board members and key employees andutants. As of September
30, 2013, only restricted stock units had beentgthonder the Plan, at no out-of-pocket cost tweif§, board members and key
employees. Except as described below with redpebe Chief Financial Officer, these restricteacktunits vest subject to requisite
service requirements, immediately in part or arlgualterms over a one-to-four year period. Themmecipients are not entitled to
cash dividends or to vote with regard to non-vesgstricted stock units, and the units are suligetdrfeiture during the vesting
period. Restricted stock units are granted atrtheket price of the Company’s stock on the dayrahgand are expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period.

The shares of non-vested restricted stock units &eptember 30, 2013 were as follows:

Weighted average

Shares grant date fair value
Nonr-vested as of September 30, 2011 ............. — $ —
Granted........ccceviiiiiiiiee e 269,351 1.41
Forfeited ... — —
Vested .o (178,442 1.32
Non-vested as of September 30, 2012 ............ 90,909 1.66
Granted ......ccceeiiiiiieeeee e e 68,911 32.87
Forfeited ... (209 34.07
Vested. ..o (73,563 7.25
Non-vested as of September 30, 2013............. 86,053 21.80

As of September 30, 2012, the Company had issietdated stock unit awards to its Chief Financi#fi€@r and a member
of the Board of Directors (Board). The restricgtdck grant to the Chief Financial Officer (CFO Adjpwas in accordance with the
terms of her employment agreement that was signddrie 2008 which stated she was entitled to re@eiyrant of restricted stock
units equal to 1.2% of the fully diluted sharedre Company in connection with an IPO. Two thiofithe CFO Award vested
immediately upon completion of the IPO and wadexin a combination of common stock and cash. rEh@aining one third,
which has vested or will vest in three equal pavesr a six, 12 and 18 month period following th®]Pave been or are to be settled
100% in shares of common stock. Per ASC Topic 31&k Compensatiothe occurrence of the IPO was deemed a performance
condition, and therefore no expense for fiscal YH2 was recorded until the performance conditvas deemed probable (i.e. the
closing of the IPO). Upon completion of the IPGhie fourth quarter of fiscal year ended Septer86e2012, the Company
recorded the entire expense associated with thehinds of the CFO Award that vested immediatetg portion that was settled in
common shares was equity classified and expendbe grant date fair value and the portion that settled in cash was liability
classified and expensed at the market value oddteof the IPO. The remaining one third of th@dGkward was valued at the
grant date fair value, once the performance canitias deemed probable (occurrence of the IPOjtop®f the expense relating
to the vesting period that had already expired¢ 2008 to July 25, 2012) was expensed, and theimgrgaamount was or will be
expensed ratably over vesting period.

Each independent member of the Company’s Boagdhisted a number of non-vested stock units unagePtan equal to the
number of shares of common stock having a vall&56f000 (based on the closing price of common stocthe New York Stock
Exchange on the date of grant), which is granteth gaar on the date of the Company’s annual meefistpckholders, or a pro rata
portion in the case of a mid-year appointment.

The Company recorded total share-based compensagmanse before income taxes of approximately B@l®n and $1.1
million in the years ended September 30, 2013 &i@ 2respectively. No share-based compensatioansegpwas recorded in the
year ended September 30, 2011. The share-basqubosation expense is included in cost of goodsaaddoccupancy expenses,
store expenses or administrative expenses in theotidated statements of income consistent withnithaner in which the applicable
officer, board member or key employee’s compeneatikpense is recorded. As of September 30, 26&8; tvas approximately
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$1.6 million of unrecognized share-based compemsatkpense related to non-vested restricted stoitk, unet of estimated
forfeitures, which the Company anticipates willreeognized over a weighted average period of aedely four years.

16. Related Party Transactions
The Company has ongoing relationships with relatgiies as noted:

3801 East Second Avenue, LLThe Company has one operating lease (see Notierl8)tore location with 3801 East
Second Avenue LLC, an entity owned by the MargArdsely Family Trust. The trust is controlled Kgmper Isely, Zephyr Isely
and Heather Isely, who act as its trustees. Raidttp 3801 East Second Avenue LLC was less thahm@llion for each of the years
ended September 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011.

Isely Family Land Trust LLC:The Company has one operating lease (see Noterl8)tore location with the Isely Family
Land Trust LLC (Land Trust). The Land Trust is owri®y the Isely Children’s Trust and by the Margaketsely Family Trust. Rent
paid to the Land Trust was approximately $0.3 onillfor each of the years ended September 30, 2012, and 2011.

Chalet: The Company has seven operating leases (seelRpteith Chalet. Chalet is owned by four of the Qamy’s non-
independent board members: Kemper Isely, Zephy, Iskeather Isely and Elizabeth Isely, and othéatesl family members. Rent
paid to Chalet was approximately $1.3 million, $t#lion and $1.2 million for the years ended Septer 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011,
respectively.

17. Income Taxes

The following are the components of the provisionihcome taxes as of September 30, 2013, 2012@bd, respectively,
dollars in thousands:

Year ended September 30,

2013 2012 2011

Current federal income tax expense
(DENEFIL) e $ 3,376 1,102 (1,547)
Current state income tax expense (benefit) ..... 551 180 (224)
3,927 1,282 (1,771)
Deferred federal income tax..........cccoevoeeeee. 2,156 2,339 3,425
Deferred state income tax..........cocvverseeenes 296 334 513
2,452 2,673 3,938
Total provision for income taxes................. $ 6,379 3,955 2,167

The differences between the U.S. federal statiutamyme tax rate and the Company’s effective tas aae as follows:

Year ended September 30,

2013 2012 2011

Statutory tax rate .......ceeeeeveiiieeeiiiie 34.% 34.0 34.0
Nontaxable income attributable

noncontrolling interest...........ccccccvvieeeee. — 2.7) (6.2)
State income taxes, net of federal income tax

EXPENSE ...ttt e 3.3 3.0 34
Other, NEL.....uiieeeee e e e 0.4 0.3 0.8

Effective taxrate ........ccoeeeeevivneiiivmmnn. 37.% 34.6 32.0

Deferred taxes have been classified on the corselidbalance sheets as follows, dollars in thowusand

As of September 30,

2013 2012
CUITENE ASSELS ...uvviiiiieiiiiiiiie ettt e e e e $ 1,114 843
Long-term liabilities ........ccuvvveiiiiiiiieremeeeecceee e (6,877) aq
Net deferred tax liabilities ...........ccccovvviviiiiiniinieeeeee, $ (5,763) (3,301)
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The tax effects of temporary differences that gise to significant portions of deferred tax assetd deferred tax liabilities
are as follows, dollars in thousands:

As of September 30,

2013 2012
Deferred tax aSSetS ....ccccuuviriiiiiiiiieeeieeee e
Capital and financing lease obligations ................ $ 7,553 2,052
Goodwill and BVC related intangibles 3,209 3,377
Leasehold inCentives ...........coooveiiiiiicccciiiiieeeeeeeee 2,179 1,978
Deferred rent ........ooovveerieiie e e 1,803 1,344
Trademarks ......ccccooovveriveeniiee e 1,024 998
Accrued employee benefits ................e e eeeennnnnnns 728 515
Other ..o 386 329
Intangible assets - other .........ccccoovveceeee oo, 80 88
Gross deferred tax assets .......cccovvveevreceeeerineeenns 16,962 10,681
Deferred tax liabilities ...........coocviiiimeeec s
Property and equipment ...........cccoviicmeecec s (20,497) (11,960)
Leasehold improvements ............ooooiiiceeeeeeeeieeeeeeeenn, (2,228) (2,012)
Favorable operating lease ...........ccccooeeeeeeniiiiiiies — (10)
Gross deferred tax liabilities .............comeeeeeeeeeenen. (22,725) (13,982)
Net deferred tax liabilities ..............ccccooiiiiiiiiiennnn. $ (5,763) (3,301)

Prior to the purchase of the noncontrolling intere®8BVC in connection with the IPO (see Note 2y Bwas treated as a
partnership under the Internal Revenue Code anitbsigtate statutes; therefore, no provision duility for federal or state income
taxes related to the noncontrolling interest in BW&s included in the consolidated financial statetméor the years ended
September 30, 2012 and prior. The deferred tax atedar the Company’s book versus tax basis iB5% interest of BVC was
reflected in the consolidated tax provision as idetbasis in BVC for the year ended September GD2 2prior to acquisition and for
the years ended September 30, 2011 and priorowiol the purchase of the noncontrolling interadBVC, income from BVC is
treated as taxable income to the Company and iedlimithe provision for federal and state incom@sa As a result of the
acquisition of the remaining noncontrolling inteayébe Company is entitled to tax deductions toakient of any step up in tax basis
on the assets of BVC, limited to the cash constdmrgaid. Additionally, for tax purposes, in thear ended September 30, 2012,
the Company recorded the noncontrolling interestipase by stepping up acquired fixed asset baldncapproximately $0.8
million to reflect fair market value and recordettidional intangibles of approximately $9.2 milliodccordingly, the tax basis in
excess of book basis at the date of purchase edsultdeferred tax assets of approximately $3.6anil

The Company believes that it is more likely thahthat it will fully realize all deferred tax asseh the form of future
deductions based on the nature of the deductitipdeary differences and expected future taxablerre

As of September 30, 2013 and 2012, the Companypprbximately $0.1 million and $0.2 million, respieely, in tax
effected operating loss carryforwards related atesincome taxes. The Company utilized less tiah fillion in tax effected state
income tax carryforwards in the year ended Septe®Be2012, and will utilize less than $0.1 milliontax effected state income tax
carryforwards in the year ended September 30, 2013.

The Company files income tax returns with fedestdte and local tax authorities. With limited exoeps, the Company is
no longer subject to federal income tax examination fiscal years 2011 and prior and is no lormdiject to state and local income
tax examinations for fiscal years 2008 and prior.

The American Taxpayer Relief Act of 2012 was emdatelJanuary 2013. The impact of the new law leentrecognized in
the period of enactment. The primary impact afifecthe Company is the extension of the 50% bomysetiation on qualifying
assets and the special 15 year depreciation lifguialified leasehold property and qualified retaiprovement property for property
acquired from January 1, 2013 through Decembef@13. The Company may also benefit from the Anagri€axpayer Relief Act
of 2012 and by the extension of the Work Opportufidx Credit through December 31, 2013.

18. Defined Contribution Plan

The Company has a defined contribution retireméan fthe Retirement Plan) covering substantiallyaiployees who
meet certain eligibility requirements as to age mdth of service. The Retirement Plan incorparéte salary deferral provisions of
Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. Emgegymay defer up to the annual maximum limit pibedrby the Internal
Revenue Code. The Company, on a discretionary,lrasishes 25% of participant contributions up toaximum annual employer
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match of $2,500. The Company’s matching contributicluded in administrative expenses was approéin&0.4 million, $0.3
million and $0.3 million for the years ended Septen30, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

19. Segment Reporting

The Company has one reporting segment, naturabegahic retail stores. The Company’s revenues arigetl from the
sale of natural and organic products at its stakb®xisting operations are domestic.

Sales from the Company’s natural and organic retafles are derived from sales of the followingduicis which are
presented as a percentage of sales for the yedesl S&eptember 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 as follows:

20. Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

As of September 30,

2013 2012 2011
........ 65% 62.7 59.8
........ 24.8 27.0 29.3
......... 10.0 10.3 10.9
100.0% 100.0 100.0

The summarized quarterly financial data presengtovibreflect all adjustments, which in the opinmirmanagement, are of
a normal and recurring nature necessary to préaielytthe results of operations for the periodegamted.

Summarized unaudited quarterly financial data el year is as follows, dollars in thousandsepx@er share data:

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2013

Three montkaded

December 31, March 31, June 30, September 30,
2012 2013 2013 2013
NEL SAIE....eiiieiiiiiiiiie et $ 95,83: 106,485 113,164 115,175
Cost of goods sold and occupancy costs.............. 67,994 74,668 80,571 81,689
GroSS Profit c.eeeeeieeiieiiiiie e 27,837 31,817 32,593 33,486
SEOre EXPENSES....iiiiiiieieiieeeeiit e 20,203 22,163 23,181 328,
Administrative eXPEeNSES .........uuvveeeeiiiieecccneeeeeeeenns 3,326 3,342 3,242 3,569
Pre-opening and relocation expenses.......ccceee-... 519 796 961 955
Operating iNCOME.........cccccvvvviiiriiieeereeeeeeee e 3,789 5,516 5,209 4,574
Other income (expense):
Dividends and interest inCOMe ... 2 2 3 2
INtErest EXPENSE........uvvvivviiiiieieeeesmmmmmm e eennneeees (255) (401) (610) (900)
Total other eXpense...........ccccvvvvvvrs s eeeeees (253) (399) (607) (898)
Income before income taxes ............cccoeeeuee. 3,536 5,117 4,602 3,676
Provision for income taxes...........cccccvuumieniinviennne. (1,315) (1,900) (1,716) (1,148
NELINCOME ..eiiiiiiiiiiiee e e 2,221 3,217 2,886 2,228
Net income attribuble to noncontrolling interest...... — — — —
Net income attributable to Natural Grocers by
Vitamin Cottage, INC. ......ooeveiiiiiiiiiiiiaaen. $ 2,22] 3,217 2,886 2,228
Basic earnings per share(l) ........ccceveeeeceecvveennnen. $ 0.1 0.14 0.13 0.10
Diluted earnings per share(1) .......cccccoeeaceeceeeeeennn. 0.1 0.14 0.13 0.10
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012 Three monthaded
December 31, March 31, June 30, September 30,
2011 2012 2012 2012
NEL SAIES.....c et $ 74,83¢ 84,907 86,707 89,932
Cost of goods sold and occupancy costs ............ 53,240 59,223 61,307 63,558
GroSS Profit ....eeeveeiieciiiiiee e 21,599 25,684 25,400 26,374
SEOre EXPENSES ....coiiiiiiiiiiiiiiae e erereeee e e e e e eeeeeneees 16,440 18,028 18,199 ,499
Administrative eXPEeNnSES ...........ceeiieiiieeeccneeeeaaaenn 2,712 2,813 2,760 4,448
Pre-opening and relocation expenses ......ccccee-... 427 427 458 861
Operating iNCOME .......cccccvvvviniiiiieeereeeee e 2,020 4,416 3,983 1,575
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Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012 Three montksded

December 31, March 31, June 30, September 30,
2011 2012 2012 2012
Other income (expense):
Dividends and interest income .............coum.... 1 3 1 1
INterest eXpense ........ccccvvvveeeeeeeerscmmneas (175) (155) (144) (94)
Total other expense ...........ccccvvvveee (174) (152) (143) (93)
Income before income taxes 1,846 4,264 3,840 1,482
Provision for income taxes ...........cccccevvevrvnnvnnnnnn. (586) (1,487) (1,300) (582)
NEL INCOME ..oooiiiiiiiiie e e 1,260 2,777 2,540 900
Net (income) loss attributable to noncontroll
INEEIEST e e (270) (292) (339) 73
Net income attributable to Natural Grocers by
Vitamin Cottage, INC. .....cccoveviiiiiiiiiiaien. $ 99( 2,485 2,201 973
Basic earnings per share .........ccceeeveeeccccceeeeeeennn. $ 0.0< 0.11 0.10 0.04
Diluted earnings per share ..........ccccocceeeiiiiinneee. 0.0< 0.11 0.10 0.04

21. Commitments and Contingencies
Self-Insurance

The Company is self-insured for claims under ilthebenefit plans, subject to a stop loss polidye self-insurance
liability related to claims under the Company’s ltlie@enefit plans is determined based on analyfsietal claims. The amounts
related to these claims are included as a comparigratyroll and employee related expenses in adeedpenses. Liabilities
associated with the risks that are retained byCihvapany are estimated, in part, by consideringhcsl claims experience,
demographic factors and other actuarial assumptidinie the Company believes that its assumptioasappropriate, the estimated
accrual for these liabilities could be significgrdiffected if future occurrences and claims diffem these assumptions and historical
trends.

Legal

The Company is periodically involved in variousdégroceedings that are incidental to the condfiits dousiness,
including but not limited to employment discrimiiwat claims, customer injury claims and investigasioWhen the potential liability
from a matter can be estimated and the loss isaenesl probable, the Company records the estimassd Due to uncertainties
related to the resolution of lawsuits, investigasi@nd claims, the ultimate outcome may differ ftbmestimates. Although the
Company cannot predict with certainty the ultimasolution of any lawsuits, investigations androkiasserted against it,
management does not believe any currently pendigal broceeding to which the Company is a partyheile a material adverse
effect on its business, prospects, financial camdlitcash flows or results of operations.

22. Subsequent Events

Effective December 12, 2013, the Company enteredain amended and restated credit agreemenathang other things,
extends the maturity date of the Company’s existevplving credit facility by three years to Januad, 2017, provides the
Company with the right to request the issuancetbéts of credit, allows the Company to increaseatimount available under the
revolving credit facility, which continues to be3@ million, up to an additional amount that may exceed $10.0 million by
obtaining an additional commitment or commitmeaty] eliminates a requirement for a consolidatedTER to revenue ratio.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Agunting and Financial Disclosure.
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaimg adequate internal control over financigaking, as defined in
Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). Internal control offeancial reporting is designed to provide reasdmalssurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and preparatiohconsolidated financial statements for externappses in accordance with GAAP.
Our internal control over financial reporting indks those policies and procedures that:

. pertain to the maintenance of records that, irmaomable detail, accurately and fairly reflectdmspositions of our
transactions and assets;

. provide reasonable assurance that transactiorre@aled as necessary to permit preparation ofotidased
financial statements in accordance with generalbepted accounting principles, and that our reseipd
expenditures are being made only in accordanceamthorizations of our management and directord; an

. provide reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized acquisitionsg os disposition
of our assets that could have a material advefsetafn the consolidated financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢tmisstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectivenessuttufe periods are subject to the risk that contmdy become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of caanpé with the policies or procedures may deteworat

We have assessed the effectiveness of our inteonddol over financial reporting as of SeptemberZiL3 using the criteria
described in Internal Control — Integrated Framéw{@©92) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Gimgdions of the Treadway
Commission. Based on our assessment of the desiyretated testing of the internal control oveafinial reporting, management
has concluded that, as of September 30, 2013, weerhaintained effective internal control over fingth reporting.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our ppatexecutive officers and principal financial amctounting officer,
evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure otsiind procedures pursuant to Rule 13a-15 undebéleurities Exchange Act of
1934 as of the end of the period covered by thpsnteon Form 10-K. The evaluation included certatarnal control areas in which
we have made and are continuing to make changagptove and enhance controls. In designing anduetialg the disclosure
controls and procedures, management recognizedilyatontrols and procedures, no matter how weligtheed and operated, can
provide only reasonable assurance of achievinglélseed control objectives. In addition, the desi§disclosure controls and
procedures must reflect the fact that there am@ures constraints and that management is requragply its judgment in evaluating
the benefits of possible controls and proceduresive to their costs.

Based on that evaluation, our principal executiffieers and principal financial and accounting offi concluded that our
disclosure controls and procedures were effecsvef &eptember 30, 2013.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Repogin

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013jeveloped and implemented new controls and todkiadal actions to
address a previously identified material weaknesar internal control over financial reportingasSeptember 30, 2012 related to
our evaluation and accounting for lease transastimeluding build-to-suit leases. These new adstrand additional actions
included, among other things, changes in persohirglg of an external consulting firm to provideidance on applying the complex
accounting standards related to leases, devele@piddmplementing improved policies, processes aadgulures to review and
document lease activities, and hiring an exteroabkalting firm to assist with implementation of tBempany’s internal audit
function, as further discussed in our Quarterly &®epon Form 10-Q for the quarters ended June @D3,2March 31, 2013 and
December 31, 2012. After completion of the tesththe design and operating effectiveness of thesecontrols, we concluded that
we had remediated the previously identified matevisakness as of September 30, 2013.
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Except as described above, there were no changes internal control over financial reporting chgithe most recent fiscal
guarter that have materially affected, or are reably likely to materially affect, our internal dool over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information.
None.

PART IlI
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporée Governance.

The information required by this item is incorp@aherein by reference to the information providader the headings
“Executive Officers and Directors," “Corporate Gavance” and “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership®é&ng Compliance” in our
definitive Proxy Statement for the 2014 Annual Megtof Stockholders to be filed with the Commissieithin 120 days of
September 30, 2013 (the “2014 Proxy Statement”) hélee adopted a code of business conduct and éflaicestablishes the
standards of ethical conduct applicable to allwfdirectors, officers, including our principal exgive, financial and accounting
officers, employees, consultants and contractous.oc@de of business conduct and ethics is pubdiehilable on our website at
www.naturalgrocers.corand we will post any amendments to, or waivermfra provision of this Code of Business Conduct and
Ethics by posting such information on our websitethe address and location specified above.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

The information required by this item is incorp@aherein by reference to the information in th&£2Broxy Statement
under the headings “Executive Compensation” andé@or Compensation.”

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain BeneficialDwners and Management and Related Stockholder Matts.

The information required by this item concerninguséies authorized for issuance under equity camp#gon plans and
security ownership of certain beneficial owners arahagement is incorporated by reference to thoerimdtion in the 2014 Proxy
Statement under the headings “Securities Authoriaetssuance Under Equity Compensation Plans™&eaurity Ownership of
Certain Beneficial Owners and Management.”

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transdmns, and Director Independence.

The information required by this item concernirenactions with related persons and director ina#dgece is incorporated
by reference to the information in the 2014 Proigt&nent under the headings “Certain RelationshipsRelated Party
Transactions” and “Corporate Governance.”

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

The information required by this item is incorp@eby reference to the information in the 2014 pi$tatement under the
heading “Ratification of Independent Registeredleuliccounting Firm—Principal Accounting Fees aner8ces.”

PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
1. Financial Statements: See Part Il, Item 8 of thort on Form 10-K.
2. Financial Statement Schedules: Schedules not lidtesle have been omitted because the informatapriresl to be set forth
therein is not applicable or is shown in the finahstatements or notes herein.

3. Exhibits: The exhibits listed in the accompanyindéx to exhibits are filed or incorporated by refere as part of this report on
Form 10-K.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused

this report to be signed on its behalf by the usideed, thereunto duly authorized on December Q232

Natural Grocers by Vitamin Cottay Inc.

By: /sl KEMPER ISELY

Kemper Isely,
Its Co-President

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following

persons in the capacities and on the dates indicate

Name

Title

Date

/sl KEMPER ISELY

Kemper Isely

/s| ZEPHYR ISELY

Zephyr Isely

/sl SANDRA BUFFA

Sandra Buffa

/s/ ELIZABETH ISELY

Elizabeth Isely

/sl HEATHER ISELY

Heather Isely

/s/ MICHAEL CAMPBELL

Michael Campbell

/sl EDWARD CERKOVNIK

Edward Cerkovnik

/sl RICHARD HALLE

Richard Halle

(Principal Executive Officer, Qoresident,
Director)

(Principal Executive Officer, Qresident,
Director)

(Principal Financial and AccourdiOfficer,
Chief Financial Officer)

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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December 12, 2013

December 2@13

December 12, 2013

December 12, 2013

December 12, 2013

December 12, 2013

December 12, 2013



EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit
Number Description Form

File No.

Exhibit
Number

Filing Date

2.1 Limited Liability Company Interest Purchase and Form S-1
Contribution Agreement between Vitamins, Inc., Hodva
& Forey, Inc., Natural Grocers by Vitamin Cottayjes.
and Vitamin Cottage Natural Food Markets, Inc. dakbene
14, 2012
2.2 Form of Agreement and Plan of Merger by and among  Form S-1
Vitamin Cottage Natural Food Markets, Inc., Vitamin
Merger, Inc. and Natural Grocers by Vitamin Cottdge.
3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorpamat Form S-1
3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws Form S-1
4.1 Reference is made to Exhibits 3.1 and 3.2
4.2 Specimen Common Stock Certificate Form S-1
4.3 Form of Notice of Grant of Stock Unit Award orim S-8
4.4 Form of Registration Rights Agreement Forrh S-
10.1 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement by and Form S-1
between Vitamin Cottage Natural Food Markets, Inc.,
Natural Grocers by Vitamin Cottage, Inc. and Samdr:
Buffa, dated June 26, 2012*
10.2 Credit Agreement among Vitamin Cottage Natural Food Form S-1
Markets, Inc., the Lenders Party thereto, and Jigiior
Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent, dated
September 29, 2006
10.3 First Amendment to Credit Agreement by and among Form S-1
Vitamin Cottage Natural Food Markets, Inc. and JiRjao
Chase Bank, N.A., dated November 2, 2006
10.4 Second Amendment to Credit Agreement by and among Form S-1
Vitamin Cottage Natural Food Markets, Inc. and Jirjao
Chase Bank, N.A., dated December 13, 2006
10.5 Third Amendment to Credit Agreement among Vitamin  Form S-1
Cottage Natural Food Markets, Inc. the Lenders utite
Credit Agreement and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as
Lender and Administrative Agent, dated June 26,7200
10.6 Fourth Amendment to Credit Agreement among Vitamin Form S-1
Cottage Natural Food Markets, Inc., the Lenderseutite
Credit Agreement and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as
Lender and Administrative Agent, dated November 30,
2008
10.7 Fifth Amendment to Credit Agreement among Vitamin Form S-1
Cottage Natural Food Markets, Inc., the Lenderseutite
Credit Agreement and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as
Lender and Administrative Agent, dated June 309200
10.8 Sixth Amendment to Credit Agreement among Vitamin ~ Form S-1
Cottage Natural Food Markets, Inc., the Lenderseutite
Credit Agreement and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as
Lender and Administrative Agent, dated June 300201
10.9 Seventh Amendment to Credit Agreement among Vitamin Form S-1
Cottage Natural Food Markets, Inc., the Lenderseutite
Credit Agreement and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as
Lender and Administrative Agent, dated December 21,
2010
10.10 Eighth Amendment to Credit Agreement among Vitamin Form S-1
Cottage Natural Food Markets, Inc., the Lenderseutite
Credit Agreement and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as
Lender and Administrative Agent, dated May 13, 2011
10.11 Ninth Amendment to Credit Agreement among Vital Form S-1
Cottage Natural Food Markets, Inc., the Lenderseutite
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333-182186

333-182186

333-182186
33342

33-882186

333-182886
333-182186
333-182186

333-182186

333-182186

333-182186

333-182186

333-182186

333-182186

333-182186

333-182186

333-182186

333-182186

2.1

2.2

3.1
3.2

4.2.
4.2.
4.3

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

June 29, 2012

July 12, 2012

July 5, 2012
July 5, 2012

July 20, 2012
July 27, 2012
July 5, 2012

June 29, 2012

June 29, 2012

June 29, 2012

June 29, 2012

June 29, 2012

June 29, 2012

June 29, 2012

June 29, 2012

June 29, 2012

June 29, 2012

June 29, 2012



Exhibit
Number

Description

Form

File No.

Exhibit
Number

Filing Date

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16
10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

Credit Agreement and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as
Lender and Administrative Agent, dated July 11,201
Tenth Amendment to Credit Agreement among Vitamin
Cottage Natural Food Markets, Inc., the Lenderseutite
Credit Agreement and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as
Lender and Administrative Agent, dated January?2d_2
Subordination Agreement by and among Vitamin Cattag
Two Ltd. Liability Company, and Vitamin Cottage MNel
Food Markets, Inc., in favor of JPMorgan Chase Bank
N.A., as administrative agent, dateeptember 29, 2006
First Amendment to Subordination Agreement by and
between Vitamin Cottage Two Ltd. Liability Comparac
Vitamin Cottage Natural Food Markets, Inc., in faab
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N,Aas administrative agent, da
June 26, 2007

Amended and Restated Promissory Note by Vitamin
Cottage Natural Food Markets, Inc., for the bergfit
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Lender, dated
December 21, 2010

Form of Omnibus Incentive Plan*

Summary of Compensation Arrangements for Non-
Employee Directors*

Form of Indemnification Agreement*

Shopping Center Lease by and between Chalet Prepert
LLC and Vitamin Cottage Natural Food Markets, Inc.,
dated January 1, 2010

Form S-1

Form S-1

Form S-1

Form S-1

Form S-1
Form S-1

Form S-1
Form S-1

Ground lease by and between 3801 East Second Avenue Form S-1

LLC and Vitamin Cottage Natural Food Markets, Inc.,
dated March 1, 2001

Commercial Lease by and between Chalet Propetti€s,
and Vitamin Cottage Natural Food Markets, Inc.edat
June 1, 2006

Sublease by and between Chalet Properties, LLC and
Vitamin Cottage Natural Food Markets, Inc., datedell,
2006

Lease by and between Chalet Properties, LLC arah\fit
Cottage Natural Food Markets, Inc., dated Septerhber
2011

Lease by and between Chalet Properties, LLC anddBou
Vitamin Cottage Group, LLC, dated July 1, 2011

Lease by and between Isely Family Land Trust, Lb@ a
Vitamin Cottage Natural Food Markets, Inc., dated
February 29, 2012

Lease by and between Chalet Properties, Austin, ahd
Vitamin Cottage Natural Food Markets, Inc., dated
February 29, 2012

Building Lease by and between Chalet Propertie€ and
Vitamin Cottage Natural Food Markets, Inc., dated
December 8, 2010

Distribution Agreement between United Natural Fodds.
and Vitamin Cottage Natural Food Markets, Inc.edat
May 20, 2008#

Addendum A to Distribution Agreement between United
Natural Foods, Inc. and Vitamin Cottage Naturaldr
Markets, Inc., dated February 27, 2009#

Agreement Addendum to Distribution Agreement betwee
United Natural Foods, Inc. and Vitamin Cottage Maitu
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Form S-1

Form S-1

Form S-1

Form S-1

Form S-1

Form S-1

Form S-1

Form S-1

Form S-1

Form S-1

333-182186

333-182186

333-182186

333-182186

33382186
333-182186

333-182186

333-182186

333-182186

333-182186

333-182186

333-182186

333-182186

333-182186

333-182186

333-182186

333-182186

333-182186

333-182186

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16
10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

June 29, 2012

June 29, 2012

June 29, 2012

June 29, 2012

July 5, 2012
June 29, 2012

June 29, 2012

June 29, 2012

June 29, 2012

July 5, 2012

June 29, 2012

June 29, 2012

June 29, 2012

June 29, 2012

June 29, 2012

June 29, 2012

June 29, 2012

June 29, 2012

June 29, 2012



Exhibit
Number

Description Form

Exhibit

File No. Number

Filing Date

10.31

10.32

10.33

10.34

10.35

10.36

10.37

10.38

14

21.1

23.1

31.1

31.2

31.3

32.1

Food Markets, Inc., dated March 10, 2012#

Third Amendment to Distribution Agreement between
United Natural Foods, Inc. and Vitamin Cottage Maitu
Food Markets, Inc., dated June 3, 2012#

Form of Stockholders Agreement, by, between andngmo Form S-1
Natural Grocers by Vitamin Cottage, Inc. and

stockholders to be named therein

Eleventh Amendment to Credit Agreement among Vitami Form 10-K
Cottage Natural Food Markets, Inc., the Lenderseutite

Credit Agreement and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as

Lender and Administrative Agent, dated October2811,2

Third Amended and Restated Promissory Note by Mitam Form 10-K
Cottage Natural Food Markets, Inc., for the bergfit

JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Lender, dated Oc®iher

2012

Pledge and Security Agreement by and between Natura Form 10-K
Grocers by Vitamin Cottage, Inc. and JP Morgan €has
Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent, for the raeblenefi
of the Secured Parties, dated October 31, 2012
Guaranty made by Natural Grocers by Vitamin
Cottage, Inc. in favor of JP Morgan Chase Bank,.Na&
Administrative Agent, for the ratable benefit oét8ecurei
Parties, dated October 31, 2012

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement arddamin —
Cottage Natural Food Markets, Inc., the Lenders$yPar

thereto, and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as

Administrative Agent, dated December 12, 2013

Amendment and Reaffirmation of Loan Docum dated —
December 12, 2013 among Vitamin Cottage NaturadFoo
Markets, Inc., Natural Grocers by Vitamin Cottalye,.,
Natural Systems, LLC, Vitamin Cottage Two Ltd. Lilap
Company and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as
Administrative Agent for the Lenders and each other
Secured Party under the Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement referred to abc

Code of Ethics

Form S-1

Form 10-K

Form 10-K

List of subsidiaries Form 10-K
Consent of KPMG LLP —
Certification of Kemper Isely, a Principal Execw@i®fficer —
Required Under Section 302(a) of the Sarbanes-Oxdity

of 2002

Certification of Zephyr Isely, a Principal ExecwiOfficer —
Required Under Section 302(a) of the Sarbanes-Oxdty

of 2002

Certification of Sandra Buffa, Principal Finandifficer —
Required Under Section 302(a) of the Sarbanes-Oxty

of 2002

Certification of Principal Executive Officers andriipal —
Financial Officer Required Under 18 U.S.C. 81350, a

adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanesy@ydt

of 2002
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333-182186 10.31

333-182186 10.32

001-35608 10.33

001-35608

10.34

001-35608

10.35

001-35608 10.36

001-35608 14

001-35608 21.1

June 29, 2012

July 12, 2012

December 12
2012

December 12
2012

December 12
2012

December 12
2012

December 12
2012
December 12
2012



1017 The following materials from Natural Grocers byafiiin Cottage, Inc.’s Annual Report on FormK.@er the year ende
September 30, 2013, formatted in XBRL (eXtensiblsiBess Reporting Language): (i) Consolidated Badheets, (i
Consolidated Statements of Income, (iii) Consoédabtatements of Comprehensive Income, (iv) Cothsiad
Statements of Cash Flows, (v) Consolidated Statest@rChanges in Shareholders’ Equity, and (vi)d$db
Consolidated Financial Statements.

*Indicates a management contract or compensatary @ arrangement
# Confidential portions have been omitted purstaiat request for confidential treatment.

T The certifications attached as Exhibit 32.1 #etompany this Annual Report on Form 10-K, aredestmed filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission and are nad todorporated by reference into any filing of NatuGrocers by Vitamin
Cottage, Inc. under the Securities Act of 193%raended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 193dnended, whether made before
or after the date of this Form 10-K, irrespectiVaioy general incorporation language containedighdiling.

A Furnished, not filed. Users of this data subadittlectronically herewith are advised pursuaiute 406T of Regulation S-T that
the interactive data files are deemed not filepant of a registration statement or prospectupimposes of Section 11 or 12 of the
Securities Act of 1933, are deemed not filed farppges of Section 18 of the Securities Act of 1388} otherwise are not subject to
liability under these sections.
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s NATURAL
GROCERS’

Corporate and Shareholder Information — January, 2014

Board of Directors

Kemper Isely, Chairman of the Board, Director

Zephyr Isely, Director

Heather Isely, Director, Corporate Secretary, Chair of the Compensation Committee
Elizabeth Isely, Director

Michael T. Campbell, Director, Chair of the Audit Committee

Richard Halle, Director

Edward Cerkovnik, Director

Named Executive Officers

Kemper Isely, Co-President

Zephyr Isely, Co-President

Heather Isely, Executive Vice President
Elizabeth Isely, Executive Vice President
Sandra Buffa, Chief Financial Officer

Ordering Financial Statements

A copy of our Annual Report and Form 10-K may be obtained by written, phone or email requests to:
Investor Relations

Natural Grocers by Vitamin Cottage

12612 West Alameda Parkway

Lakewood, Colorado 80228

(303) 986-4600

SBuffa@VitaminCottage.com

Annual Meeting

March 5, 2014

1:00 p.m. mountain time

Natural Grocers by Vitamin Cottage
12612 West Alameda Parkway
Lakewood, Colorado 80228

Transfer Agent & Registrar

Information about stock certificates, change of address, ownership transfer or other stock matters
can be obtained from American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC via:

Mail: American Stock Transfer & Trust Company

6201 15" Avenue

Brooklyn, NY 11219

Email: info@amstock.com

Phone: 1-800-937-5449

Hearing Impaired (TTY): 1-866-703-9077 or 718-921-8386

Web: www.amstock.com

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
KPMG LLP

Trading Information
The common stock of Natural Grocers by Vitamin Cottage is traded on the New York Stock Exchange
(symbol: NGVC). If you wish to become a shareholder, please contact a stockbroker.
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